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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEESE

For the year ended 31 December #i2 1= =+—HIFF/ZF

Consolidated Results

mERE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--—& TE-TE —E-NE —E-)\F S 3
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THEL AL FEn THEL
(re-presented)
(EE51)
Continuing operations FEREEY
REVENUE £ 5,504,341 6,766,470 9,767,512 1,873,968 191,519
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BHAEN,/ (E8) 223,798 (351,283) 1,000,740 286,419 (53,425)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE FIEHEY (3,541) (29,629) (532,545) (106,344) (3,541)
PROFIT/LOSS) FOR THE REBECEEBMNATE
YEAR FROM CONTINUING sl (E5i8)
OPERATIONS 220,257 (380,912) 468,195 180,075 (56,966)
Discontinued operation BRILREER
PROFIT/LOSS) FORTHE YEAR ~ REC & I HTLEKH)
FROM DISCONTINUED AEEHEF/ (B8
OPERATION 84,452 (409,710) 30,830 (18,238) 158,813
PROFIT/LOSS) FORTHE YEAR ~ AEEEH,/ (B) 304,709 (790,622) 499,025 161,837 101,847
PROFIT/LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE AT AT JE(ERF]/ (B1E) :
TO:
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ~ AAFEA A 334,621 (735,144) 385,850 103,138 87,940
NON-CONTROLLING JEEHIE R
INTERESTS (29,912) (65,478) 113,175 58,699 13,907
304,709 (790,622) 499,025 161,837 101,847
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE B &F|/ (BiE)
FROM CONTINUING REFERDREREED
AND DISCONTINUED (represented)
OPERATIONS (lE5)
Basic (cents) EAR GBI 6.41 (16.16) 8.90 2.83 0.05
FROM CONTINUING REBECEER
OPERATIONS
Basic (cents) EARGEI) 4.79 (7.16) 8.19 3.33 (0.04)
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities HREBEREE
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1+-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--F —T-TF —E-NF —Z-N\E I
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAL AL FEn THEL
TOTAL ASSETS BEEE 20,150,319 23,666,615 20,175,573 12,636,662 5,966,028
TOTAL LIABILITIES BELE (15,358,362) (19,589,259) (15,527,018 (8,646,900) (3,586,070)
4,791,957 4,077,356 4,648,555 3,989,762 2,379,958
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO: DAL
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ~ RAFEAA 2,953,934 2,282,849 2,907,798 2,760,603 1,759,462
NON-CONTROLLING JEEHIE R
INTERESTS 1,838,023 1,794,507 1,740,757 1,229,159 620,496
4,791,957 4,077,356 4,648 555 3,989,762 2,379,958
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Glory Sun Land Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”) (the “Annual Report” or the “Report”).

Industry and Market Overview

In 2021, the global economic situation became more complex, challenging
and uncertain with the spreading of the COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”)
worldwide. While implementing the prevention and control strategy of
“preventing the importation of cases and the rebound of domestic pandemic
situation”, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) government has
maintained a global leading position in economic development and pandemic
prevention and control. In 2021, the PRC’s gross domestic product (GDP)
increased by approximately 8.1% year-on-year, with the economic aggregate
exceeding RMB110 trillion and GDP per capita reaching US$12,000,
which accomplished a good start of the “14th Five-Year Plan” and a further
enhancement of the economic scale and international influence of the
PRC. But meanwhile, against the backdrop of the continuous spread of the
pandemic and the geopolitical turmoil, the PRC still faces the pressures of
shrinking demand, disrupted supply, and weakening expectations. In the
future, economic development will continue to adhere to the principle of
seeking progress while prioritizing and ensuring stability.

Under the macro policy of “housing is for living rather than speculation”
and “Three Red Lines”, in late 2020 and early 2021, the PRC government
successively introduced regulatory policies such as “Management of
Concentration of Real Estate Loan” and “Two Concentrations of Land
Supply” to limit the over-expansion of the real estate industry. Affected by
regulatory policies, the risks of high-leverage operations of some real estate
companies had gradually surfaced, and the industry’s financing channels
were experiencing overall shrinkages. At the same time, the continued
simmering of the liquidity crisis has aggravated the wait-and-see attitude of
property buyers, capital market participants and other market participants,
and the lack of willingness to buy property has deteriorated the real estate
sales. In 2021, both the new and second-hand housing markets were under
cold sentiment, resulting in the significantly intensified downward pressure
on housing prices. Constrained by factors such as the tightening of the
credit environment and financing channels, the depressed sales market,
and the intensification of debt repayment pressure, the real estate industry
has experienced a concentrated outbreak of credit risks, debt defaults, and
difficulties in repayment of wealth management products, which severely
affected the market confidence and yet signified the beginning of profound
industrial transformation.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Pandemic prevention and control policies have restricted the physical
business activities of cultural entertainment. In 2021, the operating revenue of
cultural entertainment and leisure service sector in the PRC was RMB130.6
billion, an increase of 18.1% over the previous year, but a decrease of 17.5%
over the pre-pandemic level in 2019, which demonstrated that the sector
was still undergoing recovery. As the PRC’s economy continues its steady
recovery and under the new dual-cycle development model, the overall
cultural and entertainment consumption market in the PRC tends to be active.
The consumption potential will be gradually released, and the willingness to
consume will significantly improve, leading to a steady market recovery.

The solid development of the domestic real economy has driven the rapid
growth of logistics demand. In 2021, the PRC'’s logistics showed a firm
recovery trend. The total social logistics for the year exceeded RMB335
trillion, an increase of 9.2% year-on-year. The logistics supply service system
and the supply chain resilience were further improved. Driven by factors
such as high-quality economic development, supply chain coordination,
and improved logistics service quality, it is expected that during the “14th
Five-Year Plan” period, the logistics industry will continue its steady and
progressive development, and will accelerate its industrial transformation and
upgrading.

In 2021, the Group maintained its strategic focus and steadily advanced
the development strategy with the property development and investment
as the core and the cultural sports business as the back-up. Meanwhile, in
order to actively respond to policy adjustments and market changes, the
Group rose to the challenge and acted proactively to improve the efficiency
of and save the cost of the management and control operation according
to the sophisticated strategic plan and the actual needs of its business
development. The Group consolidated and integrated the horizontal
functional departments at the group level, and made corresponding structural
adjustments in designated areas. The Groups has optimized the allocation of
resources, disposed assets when appropriate, actively resolved gearing risks,
overcome liquidity difficulties and ensure normal operation and production.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

Business Review

Property investment and development
Taking root in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area,

the Group’s property development and investment sector continues to
consistently maintain its development strategy of “deeply exploring the
business of property investment and development in strong first-tier cities,
new first-tier cities and strong second-tier cities”. Currently, the Group has a
total of eight (8) property development projects in six (6) PRC cities, including
Shenzhen, Changchun, Changsha, Weinan, Shantou and Yunfu. With a gross
construction floor area of over 2.80 million square meters, such projects
comprise commercial complexes, high-class residences, hotels, commercial
apartments, villas, garden houses and other multi-format and segmented
products.

Under the influence of the industry’s macro-economic policies and the
sluggish market conditions, the Group’s financing channels were obstructed
temporarily in 2021, with operating cash flow in short supply. Project
completion settlement, external debt repayment, supplier payments, the
completion of the pre-sale target and the receivables collection progress were
all affected to varying degrees. To resolve liquidity difficulties and alleviate
repayment pressure, the Group communicated closely with stakeholders
such as creditors, financial institutions and the government to continuously
optimize the debt structure, dispose of assets in low-tier urban projects that
are slow for sales, as well as expedite the sale of inventory and secure full
collection of receivables. The Group also managed expenditures flexibly,
improved the efficiency of fund utilisation, and accelerated the production and
operation pace so as to get back on the right track.

The Group carried out construction projects in an orderly manner, made every
effort to meet the delivery targets of the sold projects, and adopted a flexible
marketing and sale strategy, for accomplishing the sale openings of different
projects across various places with on-time delivery. The Changsha Project
and the Weinan Project Phase Il were opened for sale with good market
response. The Yunfu Yuelanshan Project Phase | and the Shantou Chaoyang
Project Phase Il were delivered ahead of schedule. The Weinan Project Phase
| were delivered as scheduled.

Cultural sports and entertainment business

Relying on its own proprietary property resources, the Group has actively
unblocked the industrial chain and has developed an innovative platform
that integrates culture, sports and entertainment. The Company’s traditional
cultural sports business includes Shenzhen Bihaiwan Golf Practicing Court
(“Bihaiwan Golf”), and its cultural entertainment operation in new business
form comprises high-end children entertainment project Xiao Mu Tong
Playroom, high-end gymnasium project Xin Dong Neng Fitness Club, and
KTV T.T. Club.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In 2021, the overall operation of the cultural sports segment was stable
and orderly. Bihaiwan Golf actively adjusted its operation strategy, at the
same time withstood the difficult market challenges, with the overall revenue
and number of visits of customers rising steadily. With full implementation
of Pandemic prevention measures, Xiao Mu Tong Playroom (Xili Shop) has
further enhanced its influence and reputation as a kid’s entertainment brand
via the integration of online and physical activities. Up to now, Xiao Mu Tong
Playroom (Xili Shop) has accumulated over 240,000 visits. KTV T.T. Club
(Shenzhen Xili Global Shop) officially opened in September 2021, dedicated
to establishing a new high-end KTV brand. Xin Dong Neng Fitness Club
(Shenzhen Sungang Global Shop) officially opened in November 2021.
With the world’s top-class fitness equipment and advanced membership
management system, its brand awareness has rapidly increased. In the
future, the culture, entertainment and fitness projects will center around the
consumption habits and personalized needs of the new generation, as well as
continuously improve the consumer experience and brand image.

Trading of commodities

Based on the understanding and involvement in various kinds of trade, the
Group leveraged its own strengths and built a large-scale trading platform
for non-ferrous metals, which is mainly engaged in the supply of non-ferrous
metals (which are raw materials for industrial purpose). In 2021, the Group
formed its own differentiated operation of its own feature in terms of business
areas, product structure and resource channels; business flexibility and
turnover rate had significantly improved and thus leading to a steady growth
of profitability.

Other operations

The Group made full use of its platform advantages and deepened
the integration of the whole supply chain services, providing upstream
and downstream customers with services ranging from order taking,
warehousing logistics, transportation logistics, payment and settlement to
risk management, which built up the Group’s brand reputation and market
influences. In the future, the Group will continue to innovate its business
model, actively expand the regional market, and further complete the in-depth
integration of the supply chain through cooperation with high-quality strategic
partners, so as to realize the specialization of its business development and
facilitate the scale-up in the growth of the industry.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

Organizational changes

In order to reduce the overall debt pressure and cope with the Group’s
business planning, % JII B $71 & % A& R 2 & (Shenzhen Baoxin Industrial
Company Limited®), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
disposed the entire equity interest of & JII #7118 8 & % B IR 2 7] (Shenzhen
Xinhengchuang Industrial Company Limited®) (“Xinhengchuang”) on 20 July
2021. The disposal was completed on 22 December 2021. On 23 July 2021,
the Group completed its disposal of the 100% equity interest in Yue Jin Asia
Limited (“Yue Jin Asia”). Since then, the Group has no longer operated New
Sports Marine Sports Centre and New Sports Marine Training Centre. On
26 November 2021, &[5 & 5 7 2 A IR 2 7] (Shenyang Baoxin Commercial
Company Limited*), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a Resumption Compensation Agreement with the government
authority in Tiexi District, Shenyang, Liaoning Province, the PRC in respect of
the resumption of /&5 & & 7 % K/E (Shenyang Fuyou Commercial Building®)
which was an investment property of the Group.

In order to strengthen the financial position of the Company, on 7 April 2021,
the Company completed the share placing of 910,020,000 placing shares of
the Company (the “Shares”) at the placing price of HK$0.3 per placing Share
to not fewer than six placees. Immediately upon the completion of the placing
and as at the date of this announcement, the total issued Shares of the
Company amount to 5,460,124,797 Shares.

On 28 December 2021, Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (“GSFG”)
completed the distribution of interim dividend by way of distribution in specie
of Shares to the qualifying shareholders of GSFG, on a pro-rata basis in
proportion to their shareholdings in GSFG under which every 4,000 GSFG
shares was entitled to 402 distribution Shares. As a result, the Company
ceased to be a subsidiary of GSFG.

PROSPECT

The real estate industry is expansive with long chains of flow and a wide
coverage, intertwining with the national economy and people’s livelihood.
Promoting a virtuous circle and healthy development of the industry is
conducive to stabilizing the macroeconomic market. Looking forward to 2022,
against the backdrop of “housing is for living rather than speculation” and the
continuous improvement of the long-term real estate mechanism of “stabilizing
land prices, housing prices, and expectations”, the financial institutions will
not only provide financing support for mergers and acquisitions of housing
projects and mitigation of financial risks, but will also further accelerate the
investment in mortgage loans. Local governments in the PRC may be keen
on adopting “city-specific policies” according to the local real estate market to
effectively resolve the risks of real estate enterprises and promote the stability
of real estate investment.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

With the improvement of the long-term real estate mechanism, the slowdown
of population growth, the development of information technology, and the
weakening effects of the land dividends, demographic dividends and financial
dividends, the real estate industry will migrate to an inventory-centric era
centered around by transactions, operations, and services. The underlying
logic of the market will be restructured, and the transformation of the
development model will have various corporate entities and various assets
reintegrated. Under the development goals of “low gearing, high quality, and
reasonable profit”, the Group will further strengthen its strategic flexibility and
sensitivity, align with the national industrial direction, and seek more financing
methods to speed up risk dissolution, so as to increase the sell-through on
the sales side, speed up the inventory reduction, and continuously improve
the payment collection efficiency. It will also work intensively on products and
services, thereby achieving stable operation and healthy development.

For cultural sports and entertainment business, under the background of the
gradual normalization of pandemic prevention, the return and upgrading of
consumption will be a new growth point for the industry’s future performance.
The domestic consumer service industry will further be introduced
consumption stimulus policies. It is expected that cultural sports, tourism,
commerce and other industries will demonstrate a rapid recovery, with the
market development further improving. The Group will continue to gain insight
to the market trend of the cultural sports segment, excavate the user needs,
and improve the experience and convenience for consumers.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all
the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) and all our employees for
their dedication and contribution to the Group. | also would like to thank
all our partners for their trust, and our shareholders and investors for their
understanding and support of the Group. In the coming year, the Group will
continue to implement our corporate vision of “Building the Beauty of Life”,
assuming more social responsibilities, continue to optimize the industrial
layout, expanding financing channels through project cooperation, and
building a healthy debt structure and capital status, to ensure the safety
and stability of the Company’s operations, strive to create better investment
returns for the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), thus
achieving high-quality development.

By Order of the Board
Glory Sun Land Group Limited

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WD

Review of Results and Operations

The revenue of the Group mainly arose from three (3) major business
segments, namely (i) property development and property investment, (ii)
trading of commaodities, (iii) trading of home appliances and building materials
in the PRC.

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$5,504.3
million which was decreased by approximately 18.7% from that of
approximately HK$6,766.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
(the “Prior Year”). The decline in revenue was mainly attributable to the
significant drop in the trading volume of trading of commodities in the Year by
approximately HK$2,180.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately
35.6% as compared to the Prior Year.

In respect of the property development and property investment sector,
the revenue was approximately HK$1,466.9 million for the Year which was
increased by approximately 175.4% year-on-year. The significant increment
was attributable to the completion of properties handover to customers for
Weinan, Shantou and Yunfu property development projects.

In the Year, the cost of sales of the Group was approximately HK$5,234.1
million, which was decreased by 22.0% from approximately HK$6,712.5
million in the Prior Year. Along with the decrease in cost of sales, the gross
profit was approximately HK$270.3 million for the Year, comparing to
approximately HK$54.0 million for the Prior Year, while the corresponding
gross profit margin increased from 0.8% to 4.9%. The significant increase
in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the contribution from the
property sales as mentioned above.

The trading commodities of the Group for the Year were mainly copper
cathodes and zinc ingot. As a wholesaler of such non-ferrous metal products,
the Group purchased the products in bulk, and then distributed and sold
to the downstream customers. Under the prevailing business operations,
for the sake of obtaining optimal contractual terms, the Group arranged to
conclude and sign Supply Framework Agreements with respective individual
key suppliers with good reputation and credit in the market. Meanwhile,
the profitability was relatively low and being affected by a bundle of external
factors including the Pandemic and the international non-ferrous metal price
fluctuations. Both buyers and sellers of such non-ferrous metal products had
great demand in the PRC market, the relatively low gross profit margin should
be attributable to the active market participation and the transparent prices
information. As the Group has already built up a team of staff members with
specialized experience and expertise in this business segment over the past
few years, the gross profit margin for the Year reached a recorded high of
around 0.17% as compared to 0.10% for the Prior Year though the revenue
of the Year had dropped to HK$3,948.2 million from HK$6,129.0 million for
the Prior Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With the sustainable business development and expansion of the Group for
the Year, the Group’s selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$99.6
million (2020: approximately HK$94.3 million) representing an increase of
approximately 5.6%. In addition, administrative expenses being approximately
HK$141.1 million (2020: approximately HK$117.8 million) was increased by
approximately 19.8% when compared to the Prior Year and the increment
amounted to approximately HK$23.3 million.

Since the assessed net realisable value of the property inventories held
by Hunan Meilian Project Company had been lower than its carrying cost
amount, the inventory value was therefore written down by approximately
HK$164.0 million (2020: Nil) reflecting the recession in the property market of
Hunan Province.

The real estate portfolio of the Group comprised residential and commercial
properties in Shenyang, Hefei, Shenzhen and Hunan, as well as certain
properties under construction in Shantou, which were held for investment
purpose. As at 31 December 2021, the gain arising from the net fair value
change of those investment properties amounted to approximately HK$70.7
million (2020: a loss arising from the net fair value change amounted to
approximately HK$52.3 million) was recognized.

Meanwhile, a fair value gain of approximately HK$1.3 million for the Year
(2020: approximately HK$18.3 million) was resulted from the adjustment on
derivative financial asset for the put option in relation to the acquisition of
Yue Jin Asia in 2016. The derivative financial asset was derecognised upon
disposal of Yue Jin Asia in the Year.

Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets dropped to
approximately HK$23.0 million from approximately HK$83.7 million for the
Prior Year, which was primarily due to the decrease in impairment recognized
on the contract assets related to the construction project during the Year.

Finance costs represented mainly interest expenses and other borrowing
costs in relation to bank and other borrowings. During the Year, finance costs
amounted to approximately HK$125.0 million (2020: approximately HK$97.7
million), representing an increase by approximately 27.9% as compared to the
Prior Year.

Income tax expense, which consisted of the Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) and
the Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) levied in the PRC as well as their deferred
tax effect, constituted an expense of approximately HK$3.5 million for the
Year while an income tax expense amounted to approximately HK$29.6
million was recognized in the Prior Year. The decrease in the income tax
expense was mainly attributable to the release of deferred tax from disposal of
investment properties along with the reversal of temporary differences arising
on fair value adjustments for investment properties and intangible assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WD

The Group derived a gain on disposal of subsidiaries for approximately
HK$296.1 million which was mainly attributable to the disposal of
Xinhengchuang in the Year. Meanwhile, the discontinued operations
in connection with Yuejin Asia had contributed an additional profit of
approximately HK$84.5 million as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Given the foregoing factors, the Group recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$304.7 million for the Year, as compared to the net loss of approximately
HK$790.6 million for the Prior Year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$341.4 million (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$735.5 million), while the pledged and restricted bank deposits amounted
to approximately HK$381.9 million (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$618.1 million). Total borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$8,067.5 million as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
approximately HK$12,363.7 million), of which equivalents of approximately
HK$974.0 million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$1,388.0 million),
approximately HK$7,044.4 million (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$10,975.7 million) and approximately HK$49.1 million (31 December
2020: Nil) were denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar
respectively.

Total borrowings included bank and other loans of approximately HK$7,324.9
million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$11,271.9 million), and
corporate bond of approximately HK$680.0 million (31 December 2020:
approximately HK$874.0 million), and notes payable of approximately
HK$62.6 million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$217.8 million). All of
the loans bore fixed interest rates and exposed the Group to fair value interest
rate risk.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a net current asset of approximately
HK$4,042.1 million, as compared to the balance of approximately
HK$5,710.9 million as at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2021,
the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 1.5 (31 December 2020:
approximately 2.7), which was calculated on the basis of the total borrowings
less bank and cash balances and pledged and restricted bank deposits
divided by the total equity as at the respective reporting date.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses. The Directors review the capital structure of the Group on a timely
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts.

Disclaimer of Opinion

As disclosed in the “Disclaimer of Opinion” section of the Independent
Auditor’'s Report as set out on pages 129 to 132 of the Annual Report, BDO
Limited, the Auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”) does not express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group (the “Disclaimer
of Opinion”), because of the significance of the matters described in the
“Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of the Independent Auditor’'s Report,
the Auditor has not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

As disclosed in note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements, as at
31 December 2021, the Group had total borrowings of approximately
HK$8,067,474,000, of which the current borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$5,404,088,000. However, the Group had bank and cash
balances of approximately HK$341,393,000 only.

The above events or conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and, therefore, that the Group may not be able to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

In view of the above circumstances, the Directors have prepared a cash flow
forecast which took into account of the plans and measures as set out in note
2(c) to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Details of the Disclaimer of Opinion and the relevant plans and measures
proposed by the Directors are disclosed in the Independent Auditor’s Report
set out on pages 129 to 132 of the Annual Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmEAD T

Additional Information in relation to the Disclaimer of
Opinion

@

(ii)

Impact of the Disclaimer of Opinion on the Group’s
financial position

As set out in the note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements,
should the Group fail to achieve the proposed actions plan and
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their net realisable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The Disclaimer of Opinion only relates
to the going concern of the Group as a whole, not to a specific item or
issue of the Group’s financial position at the abovementioned reporting
end date. Furthermore, during the period from 31 December 2021 to
the date of the Annual Report, there has been no subsequent events
which may impose any significant adverse impact on the Group’s
financial position.

the Management’s position and basis on the going
concern assumption, and its view on the Disclaimer of
Opinion

The management of the Company (the “Management”) understands
that the Disclaimer of Opinion is a result of scope limitation relating to
the appropriateness of the going concern assumption as the Auditor
could not obtain sufficient supportable evidence for the various matters
in relation to the proposed actions plan and measures being taken
to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the Group’s financial
position. The following is the Management’s assessment on each of the
proposed actions plan and measures such highlighted in the Disclaimer
of Opinion:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The negotiation with fund providers for the extension in respect
of certain borrowings which are repayable during the year ending
31 December 2022 (the “Renewable Borrowings”)

The Management is of the view that the extension of maturity
for the Renewable Borrowings beyond 31 December 2022 (the
“Extension”) has been negotiated, and therefore the Directors
are confident that the Extension shall be granted based on
such advanced negotiation with the fund providers concerned.
However, there is no documentary evidence regarding this
proposed action plan and the respective definitive agreements
in respect of the Extension have not yet been concluded and
signed. As such, no documentary or other sufficient information
was provided to the Auditor in regard to the measures for
assessing the successful implementation of this action plan.

The further drawdown of unutilised loan facilities (the “Unutilised
Facilities”) from fund providers

As regards the Unutilised Facilities, the Directors are fairly
confident that the Unutilised Facilities will provide adequate
financing funding to the Group, as and when necessary. This
assumption has been well supported by the long and close
relationship between the Company and the respective fund
providers, and also the solid track record of facilities utilisation
in the past. However, there is no documentary evidence in
supporting the financial viability of those fund providers of the
Unutilised Facilities to the extent that is necessary based on
the cash flow forecast prepared by the Directors (the “Cash
Flow Forecast”). As such, no documentary or other sufficient
information was provided to the Auditor in regard to the measures
for assessing the successful implementation of this action plan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmEAD T

(iii)

(c)  The acceleration of pre-sales of major property development
projects during the period of the Cash Flow Forecast

The Group has formulated sales strategies tailored to the local
conditions of respective major property development projects
based on the product structure and has actively responded to
the market, so as to accelerate the pre-sales of major property
development projects. However, there is no documentary
evidence in supporting the basis of the estimation of scale of
proceeds from the pre-sales of the major property development
projects of the Group during the period of the Cash Flow
Forecast. As such, no documentary or other sufficient information
was provided to the Auditor in regard to the measures for
assessing the successful implementation of this action plan.

On the assumption of the successful implementation of the above
proposed actions plan and measures as scheduled, the Directors are
of the opinion that the Group is able to continue as a going concern
and shall have sufficient financial resources to finance the Group’s
operations and meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare the Company’s consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Audit Committee’s view on the Disclaimer of Opinion

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) has critically
reviewed the detailed basis and grounds of the Disclaimer of Opinion
as addressed by the Auditor, the Management’s assessment on the
Disclaimer of Opinion and also the proposed actions plan and measures
to be undertaken by the Management for addressing the Disclaimer
of Opinion at the Audit Committee meeting. The Audit Committee has
also had discussions with the Auditor, after which the Audit Committee
has comprehended that the cause of the Disclaimer of Opinion is, as
mentioned in the note (ii) above, the unsuccessful capture of sufficient
supportable evidence to prove the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. In the light of the above, the Audit Committee has
agreed with the Management’s view concerning the Disclaimer of
Opinion and acknowledged the proposed actions plan and measures
taken and to be taken by the Group to address the liquidity matter.
The Audit Committee is also of the view that the Management shall
continue its efforts in implementing the proposed actions plan and
measures to mitigate the Group’s liquidity pressure. Furthermore, the
chairlady of the Audit Committee meeting has reported the case in
an extensively manner to all the participating board members at the
subsequent meeting of the board of Directors (the “Board”). Both the
Audit Committee and the Board have agreed that the Group should
follow to adhere strictly to the proposed actions plan and measures for
addressing the effect on the Disclaimer of Opinion with the ultimate aim
to remove the Disclaimer of Opinion in the forthcoming audited financial
statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(iv) Details of the Actions plan to address the Disclaimer of
Opinion and its Latest Development
In order to address the uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and with a view to
the Disclaimer of Opinion, the Group has already taken and will continue
to implement the following proposed actions plan and measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its cash flows, including:

(@)

actively negotiating with those fund providers in respect of the
Renewable Borrowings for the Extension in order to improve
the cash flows of the Group. The Company will use its best
endeavours to negotiate with the fund providers to seek for the
Extension. Based on the recent communication between the
fund providers concerned and the Company, the Directors are
fairly confident that the Extension can be successfully granted by
the second and third quarter of 2022;

as disclosed in note 2(c)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has Unutilised Facilities of approximately
HK$5,294,000,000 as at 31 December 2021 whilst subsequent
to 31 December 2021, the Group has further obtained a number
of other loan facilities in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$43,000,000. Further, subsequent to 31 December 2021, the
Group has drawn down approximately HK$32,000,000. In this
respect, the Directors are fairly confident that such Unutilised
Facilities can provide adequate funding to the Group, as and
when necessary; and

the Group will accelerate the pre-sales of its major property
development projects during the year ending 31 December 2022.
The Group has formulated sales strategies tailored to the local
conditions of respective property development projects based on
the product structure and has actively responded to the market,
SO as to accelerate the pre-sales of major property development
projects. In addition, the Group has strengthened communication
and co-ordination with co-operative banks and capital regulatory
departments to expedite the receipt of proceeds from the pre-
sale of both properties under development and properties held
for sale.

(iv)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERENWEDN

Removal of the Disclaimer of Opinion

The Company’s view on the removal of the Disclaimer of Opinion in the next
financial year (i.e. for the year ending 31 December 2022).

The Board will take into consideration the Disclaimer of Opinion when
preparing the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2022. Meanwhile, the Board will be absolutely
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
based on the actual conditions and circumstances by 31 December 2022.

Assuming that (a) all of the proposed actions plan and measures as
mentioned in the above note (iv) can be implemented as stipulated; (b)
there is no other material adverse changes to the business, operation and
financial conditions of the Group and (c) the sufficient supporting evidence
for validating the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern can be
provided to the Auditor to its satisfaction, the Company is confident that the
Disclaimer of Opinion will be removed by the time of issuing the audit opinion
for the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2022. The Company will therefore work closely with the Auditor
with the view to making timely reporting of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2022 in accordance
with the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Auditor’s Preliminary View

As the Management’s assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern for the purpose of preparing the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2022 has to take
into consideration of the then conditions and circumstances and could only
be made by the end of the relevant reporting period, the Auditor is unable
to ascertain at this moment whether the Disclaimer of Opinion can be
removed in the next financial year purely based on the latest actions plan.
Further assessment of the going concern basis in relation to the Group’s
liquidity situation for removing the Disclaimer of Opinion in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2022 shall
be required.

Capital Expenditure

The total spending on the additions of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties amounted to approximately HK$433.4 million for the
Year (2020: approximately HK$446.4 million).

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BEFERE

ARBER T —EVRFE(AHE_T_—
ToA=+—HLEFR)BETERERNES -

EEeEREARABE_T_—_F+_H
=T HLEFENGEMBEREFBERTER
BER R EEEBREBEERARRERIR -
Zo_Ft A=t HApzEAEFEARE

HS AT A

BRa% (@) LHMIFE () FIRE RN B RETH AR
RIEME IR R EFTEM  0) AEBERER - &
BRI EEMEATFIES) K (c) 7] [
ﬁ%{ﬁﬂik{ tRABAASEFECEEINTD
ﬁjj BEMSZBENER - ARBIERE - EEA
REBEZE_ZF+_A=1+—HBLEFENLE
U BRERBERERER K TERER T TR
B o Bt - NRAFEEZEAE S E - LURIR
ERAIREEEEREARERARREES
T —F+ A=+ B UL EENRAMERE -

REERAE S

EEE’;‘%@EEW&ZK%E’Uﬁ?ti‘“éﬁéﬁﬁ-rbéﬁ
ZREFNRARIER  URERAQTEE
::i‘f’ RA=+— Eﬁifﬁﬁ,mAﬁﬁigiﬁ%

REER BT S HARATHETT » HUZERD B Al &
/fﬁﬁ EBANERBEHNTE RN T —E
MRFEEREAERER - MERMBARRAAEE
TR CHFF A=+ -HIFENGEMBR
RPN TERER  AAE— P EREAEE
TENE SR A RHBAS B -

=N

RAFEE - W% - BERERE -
IS KK A4334EBBT(Z
4464 EHEBTT) °

L/{&% AEMEE
—EFE D



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charges of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment, inventories and investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$5.1 million (2020: approximately HK$5.1 million), approximately
HK$7,564.2 million (2020: approximately HK$7,803.0 million) and
approximately HK$1,892.8 million (2020: approximately HK$3,522.8 million)
respectively were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans and other
borrowings granted in relation to the Group’s real estate business.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of investment properties and
properties held for sale amounting to approximately HK$47.0 million and
HK$32.1 million respectively were pledged as security for a bank borrowing in
favour of a former subsidiary which was overdue.

The Group’s pledged and restricted bank deposits amounting to
approximately HK$381.9 million (2020: approximately HK$618.1 million)
were pledged to banks to secure a bank loan granted to an independent
third party, notes payable granted to the Group and guarantee deposits for
construction of pre-sale properties.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

The Group had 413 employees as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: 614) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group reviews remuneration and
benefits of its employees annually according to the relevant market practice
and individual performance of the employees. Save for the social security
insurance in the PRC and the mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong
Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any significant funds to provide
for retirement or similar benefits for its employees.

Foreign Exchange and Currency Risks

Most of the Group’s revenue and expenses were generated from the PRC and
were denominated in Renminbi. During the Year, the Group had not hedged
its foreign exchange risk because the exposure was considered insignificant.
Our management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging the foreign currency exposure when it is necessary.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2020: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B WD

Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s commitment was approximately
HK$7,849.1 million (2020: approximately HK$15,961.7 million) in respect
of contracted but not provided for expenditures on properties under
development, investment properties under construction and the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment.

Significant Investment, Material Acquisitions or
Disposals of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

On 22 December 2021, the Group completed the disposal of its entire
equity interest in Xinhengchuang, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group, the details of which are disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 20 July 2021, 2 December 2021, 15 December 2021
and 23 December 2021 respectively. Save for those disclosed in the Annual
Report, there was no other significant investments held as at 31 December
2021 nor other material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries or affiliated
companies made by the Group during the Year.

Share Options

2014 Share Option Scheme was adopted on 26 March 2014. As at 31
December 2021, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding was Nil (2020: Nil).

Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNEL PROFILES

Directors

Yao Jianhui

Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. Yao Jianhui (“Mr. Yao”), aged 50, joined the Company as the executive
Director and the chairman of the Company since 20 December 2018. He
graduated from South China University of Technology in the PRC with a
postgraduate diploma in business administration.

Mr. Yao has acted as the executive director, chairman and chief executive
officer of GSFG (stock code: 1282, a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) since August 2015. He also acts
as director of several subsidiaries of GSFG.

From March 2002 to March 2003, Mr. Yao acted as the executive vice
president of JRINTTE LR & & E AR 2 7] (Shenzhen Baoneng Investment
Group Co., Ltd.*). From July 2010 to October 2014, Mr. Yao acted as the
general manager and chairman of the board of directors of B s 1% & I 17
R 7~ &) (Baocheng Investment Co., Ltd.*) (stock code: 600892, a company
listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange) (currently known as A& #H X(LIEE
f% 17 B BR 2 7] (Dasheng Times Cultural Investment Co., Ltd.,*). From June
2006 to January 2019, he was the chairman of the board of directors of E&f
TR (P ) AR A ] (Baoneng Holding (China) Co., Ltd.*).

Xia Lingjie

Executive Director & Chief Executive Director

Ms. Xia Lingjie (“Ms. Xia”), aged 34, joined the Company as the non-executive
Director on 1 April 2016 and she was re-designated as the executive Director
on 17 August 2016. On 27 March 2019, she was appointed again as the
executive Director and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”). Ms. Xia also holds
directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Xia received a bachelor’'s degree in broadcasting, television and news
from Wuhan University and a bachelor’s degree in psychology from Central
China Normal University. She graduated from Wuhan University with a
master’s degree in communication in 2011 and earned a master’s degree
in Global Journalism from University of Sheffield, UK in 2012. She was the
assistant to general manager and deputy general manager of &I 48 E F 1%
BBRAF] (Shenzhen Wangdian Media Co., Ltd.*) from January 2014 to June
2016. From 2013 to 2014, she was the director of business operation of &3l

B 2% b {B 15 B BR A A] (Shenzhen Guosheng Culture and Media Co., Ltd.*).
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EENRTEAEEH/N

Ms. Xia is a veteran in business financial management, merger and acquisition
management, capital management, and operational management cultural
media, especially experienced in the execution of corporate strategies
formulation and financial analysis, and the management in human resources
and company operations., investors’ relationship management and capital
management.

Zhan Yushan

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhan Yushan (“Ms. Zhan”), aged 43, was appointed as the non-executive
Director on 26 October 2018. She graduated from AR EEE R AEZ (Central
Television Broadcasting University of China*) in 2009 with a bachelor’s degree
in law.

Ms. Zhan has been further appointed as the chief legal officer of the Company
(the “Chief Legal Officer”) since 20 December 2018. Ms. Zhan has acted as
the deputy general manager in &I & & £ £ B BR 2 & (Shenzhen Feng
Cheng Technology Company Limited*) since July 2016. She has also been
the president of & Il 1 85 B J¢ T 17 B BR 2 A (Shenzhen Lan Si Guang
Technology Company Limited*) since December 2014. She served as the
secretary to the president in general manager office of J%& JI| i1 5 i B 2% 2
% B BB & 7] (Shenzhen Nanyou Development Construction Limited*) from
December 2004 to December 2013.

He Suying

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. He Suying (“Ms. He”), aged 56, was appointed as the independent non-
executive Director on 30 May 2016. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in
economics from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, majoring in
infrastructure finance and credit, and a master’s degree in economics from
the investment and economics department of Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics, majoring in investment and economical management. She
possesses extensive experience in areas including internal audit, corporate
financial analysis, management, investment decision-making and business
consolidation.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNEL PROFILES

Ms. He has over ten years of experience in corporate internal audit. Since May
2006, Ms. He has been working in AT HEEEEE AR AT (Shenzhen
Capall Asset Management Co., Ltd.”) as the executive director. She had been
the director and the chief financial officer of the company. From April 2015 to
March 2021, she served as the independent director of &I T{E 37 Z= 22 5%
7 A BR A 7] (Shenzhen Salubris Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.*). From January
2010 to July 2017, she served as the independent director of X 5% B X
(L& B% 13 B R A & (Dasheng Times Cultural Investment Co. Ltd.*). From
2011 to 2017, she was the independent director of & 5 18 B &% i 15 A BR
A7) (Guangdong Evergreen Feed Industry Co., Ltd.*) and & &% gt 17 Hil %
7B R~ 7] (Leadshine Technology Co., Ltd.*) in Shenzhen. From September
2007 to September 2013, she was the independent director of 3 ZFx & E%
BB AT (MYS Group Co., Ltd.*). From August 2003 to December 2008,
she served as the director of RN EAZZEK D BMR AT (Shenzhen Seg.
Dasheng Co., Ltd.*) (now renamed as &3 2 ¥ 47 f% (5 E R A 7] (Shenzhen
Quanxinhao Co., Ltd.”).

Ms. He had previously served as the supervisor and the officer-in-charge
of the auditing department of Weishen Securities Co., Ltd., a section chief
of the auditing department of Shenzhen Branch, Guangdong Development
Bank and the lecturer of the investment and finance department of Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics.

Tang Lai Wah

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Tang Lai Wah (“Dr. Tang”), aged 64, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on 30 May 2016. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”) and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association. Dr. Tang holds a degree of
Bachelor of Arts with honors in Accountancy, degree of Master of Business
Administration (Executive) and degree of Doctor of Business Administration
from the City University of Hong Kong.

Dr. Tang has over 30 years of accounting, corporate finance and financial
management experience in telecommunication, media and information
technology industries. Dr. Tang has been the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Excel Technology International (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Excel Technology”) since 2002. Prior to joining Excel Technology, she
was the group financial controller in companies listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange. Dr. Tang has extensive experience in the merger and
acquisition activities, the initial public offering on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, overseeing corporate governance and monitoring corporate
compliance of the Listing Rules and regulations.
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Dr. Tang is the vice president of Hong Kong Business Accountants
Association. She is currently appointed as a committee member of the
departmental advisory committee for the Department of Accountancy by
the City University of Hong Kong. Previously, Dr. Tang was appointed as a
specialist and financial expert by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications, and was elected as committee
member of ACCA Hong Kong.

Wong Chun Bong

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong Chun Bong (“Mr. Wong”), aged 63, joined the Company as the
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He holds a higher
diploma in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic, currently known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Wong has been the independent non-executive director of GSFG since
November 2009. Since May 2017, he has also acted as the independent
non-executive director of Guangzhou R&F Properties Co., Ltd (Stock Code:
2777), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong is the founder of a firm of certified public accountants in Hong
Kong. He is also a member of the Council of the Hong Kong Polytechnic and
a fellow member of each of the ACCA, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Wong was an ex-member
of the Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the ex-chairman of
the executive committee of the ACCA Hong Kong.

Key Personnel

Mr. Fong Ching Kong (“Mr. Fong”), aged 56, has been appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer and company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) since 20 January 2017. Mr. Fong holds a Master degree of
Business Administration. He is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of each of ACCA, the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, the Chartered Governance
Institute, and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Fong has over 30 years
of experience in professional accounting, financial management, tax, and
company secretary. Prior to joining the Company, he served as the financial
controller, company secretary and authorised representative of a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details and respective analysis of the main
business segments of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 133 to 134.

No interim dividend was declared during the Year (2020: Nil) and the Directors
do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Closure of Registers of Members

For the purpose of determining the shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 1
June 2022 (the “2022 Annual General Meeting”), the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Friday, 27 May 2022 to Wednesday, 1
June 2022, both days inclusive. During this period, no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2022 Annual
General Meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 26 May 2022.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development, possible risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages
6 to 11 and Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 12 to 22 of the
Report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the Year using key financial performance indicators is
provided on pages 12 to 14 of the Report.
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Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are provided on
pages 65 to 128 of the Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Company is committed to improving environmental sustainability and
will closely monitor the performance. In accordance with Rule 13.91 of
and Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, details of environmental policies and
performance of the Company are set out in the section headed “Environment,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 65 to 128 of the Report. We have
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting
Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

For the businesses and industries in which the Group operates, the most
important laws and regulations in the PRC include (but not limited to)
laws related to the establishment of real estate development enterprises,
acquisition of land use rights, property development, commercial housing
sales or pre-sales, and environmental protection. During the Year, the Group
has complied with all the relevant and applicable PRC laws and regulations
governing the business of property development and management in all
material respects, and we have obtained all material licenses, permits and
certificates for the purpose of operating our business. For the Year, the Group
has no non-compliance incident that has had a material adverse effect on the
Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the Report. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 138 and notes 37(b) and 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, as at 31 December 2021,
the contributed surplus and share premium accounts are distributable to
the Shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which any
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 December
2021, the Company’s distributable reserves amounted to approximately
HK$2,406,213,000.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to
which the Board may recommend dividends to the Shareholders, to allow the
Shareholders to participate in the sharing of the Company’s profits and the
Company to retain adequate reserves for its future growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will
be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall take into account factors in all aspects including,
the Company’s current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements, as well as dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries
and associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of those subsidiaries
and associates to pay a dividend. The payment of dividend is also subject to
any restrictions under the law of Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles
of Association.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the
Dividend Policy at any time, and Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.

Donation

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting
to approximately HK$542,000 (2020: approximately HK$140,000).
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 25.1% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 7.9%. The Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 29.8% of the total cost of
services and among which approximately 6.9% is attributable to the largest
supplier for the Year.

To the best of the Director’'s knowledge, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

Relations with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and suppliers are keys
to corporate sustainability and are keen on developing long-term relationship
with stakeholders.

The Company understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with customers. The Group has established procedures in place for handling
customers’ complaints and customers’ satisfaction surveys in order to ensure
that customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.
The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stable supplies and timely delivery
of materials. The Group reinforces business partnership with suppliers and
contractors by recurring communication in proactive and effective manner so
as to ensure quality and delivery.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of the
Report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yao Jianhui

Ms. Xia Lingjie
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong (resigned on 12 October 2021)

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Zhan Yushan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. He Suying

Dr. Tang Lai Wah

Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Yao
Jianhui, Ms. Xia Lingjie and Mr. Wong Chun Bong will retire from office by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2022 Annual
General Meeting.

Independent Non-Executive Directors’ Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and as at the date of the Annual Report still considers that all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

All of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director have respectively
entered into service contracts with the Company. Details of the service
contracts include: (1) a term of directorship for three years with effect from the
date of appointment, reappointment or re-election; and (2) the contract shall
be terminated according to the terms of each respective contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Details of the letter of appointments mainly
include: (1) a term of directorship for three years with effect from the date of
appointment, reappointment or re-election; and (2) the letter of appointment
shall be terminated according to the terms of each letter of appointment.

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors proposed for re-election at
the 2022 Annual General Meeting had a service contract with the Company
which was not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director, other
officer and auditor shall be entitled to be indemnified out of assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as
a Director, auditor or other officer of the Company about the execution of
the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Company.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set up by Salary Review Committee
on the basis of the Directors’ merit, qualifications and competence.

The emolument of the Directors are decided by Salary Review Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. The Director’s fees are subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at general meetings.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements.

Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid
Individuals

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the Year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively. None of the Directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the Year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Ordinary Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Interests and short positions in Shares and underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company
Interests and short positions in Shares and underlying Shares

ESERE

EEREFERTHAERNEER - 156
ROREZPHEZR LR

5+ -A=t—B ARREERE
ABRARASEAIER AR (E&RE
B 1GG) ([ F 75 R BEERD ) EXVER) HIAX
BN RESFTHEZR : (@ REESF LB
EIEPIEXVEDE 7 k8D EME AL 7 B
MiES MR R (BREREESRARREIBREIRX
BRERARXEFRENEDZIAR) : (D)L
BRI E 5 MG RPISE 352 (R F E M B LM
WA SOR R © 3 () RIE LR R 8+ P
ETBETAESETESRRZNRET R ([1RE
ST AR B R R FOR BN

e
BT
%I 55
vl

=

REQRTARGREERORESZPHES
k%R
R0 RAGR R 7 8 1 2 R KB

Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage of
interests in interest in Total interests Shares in issue
Name of Director Shares Shares in Shares (Note 1)
HEBRITRMDZ
RBRGBHE AR R BHED
EEgE EA R AT ERE BRER (MI7E1)
Mr. Yao Jianhui 5,783,034 (L) 1,493,718,105 (L) 1,499,501,139 (L) 27.46%
SESe il (Note 2) (FifzE2)
Notes: MI3E -
(1) As at 31 December 2021, the total issued share capital of the Company (1) WKIZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H ARa2HD#

amounted to 5,460,124,797 Shares.
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) As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Yao through Tinmark Development Limited
(“Tinmark”), a company wholly-owned by him, indirectly held Bao Xin
Development Limited (“Bao Xin Development”), which beneficially owned
1,486,891,831 Shares. Further, GSFG beneficially owned 1,489,724 Shares and
Bao Xin Development directly held 14,794,943,600 GSFG Shares, representing a
total of approximately 47.14% of the total number of issued GSFG Shares. Thus,
Bao Xin Development was deemed to be interested in the 1,489,724 Shares held
by GSFG. Mr. Yao also through Shenzhen Lai Hua Industrial Limited Company*
(RYIREEZEABR AR, a company owned as to 99.50% by him, held 100%
equity interest in Lai Hua Holding Group Limited Company* Z&ZEIZARE B AR
A7) (“Lai Hua Holding Group”), which beneficially owned 5,336,550 Shares.
Therefore, Mr. Yao was deemed to be interested in the 1,486,891,831 Shares,
1,489,724 Shares and 5,336,550 Shares held by Bao Xin Development, GSFG
and Lai Hua Holding Group respectively.

Abbreviations: “L” stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company or their respective associates
had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in any Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (b)
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and FERRRRGREBRDPHIER
Underlying Shares of the Substantial Shareholders 5879

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the folowing RZZE-Z—F+—A=+—H REZEMA - U
persons or entities, not being a Director or the chief executives of the TALTHEB(WHFARBEFTHFEITHAS)
Company, had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares ~ F I {7 SAERE Ik (7 P HE B IRIRE 75 RER G 5012
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of XV &85 2 [ 39 &P &9 1& X /A M 2R & A #2 B8 I ad 8%
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and were recorded in the register R ZARA RIRIRE 7 K B & {61 28 336 {5 FTF B Y

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO: EafhmEmsoks
Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares TR 17 RAGRGRR (7 0 A9 4 B
% of the
issued share
capital of the
Number of Company as
Shares/ at the Latest
Capacity in which underlying Practicable
Name of Shareholders interests are held Shares Date
(Note 1)
REERER
AT R
EARE BT
REERE BRERENED Bt HERGEA BREBFD
GERY
Tinmark Corporate Interest (Note 2) 1,488,381,555 27.26
NElER (fHEE2)
Bao Xin International Group Limited Corporate Interest (Note 2) 1,488,381,555 27.26
ENERERARAR NEER (FEE2)
Bao Xin Development Beneficial Owner 1,486,891,831 27.23
BIER ERBEEA
Corporate Interest (Note 2) 1,489,724 0.03
NEHER (FEE2)
Lin Xiaokun Corporate Interest (Note 3) 277,600,000 (L) 5.08
i NElER (PHEE3)
Hongkun Limited Beneficial Owner (Note 3) 277,600,000 (L) 5.08
BB AT BB A PHE3)
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Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2021, the total issued share capital of the Company
amounted to 5,460,124,797 Shares.

) As at 31 December 2021, Tinmark was the direct holding company of Bao Xin
International Group Limited, which was in turn the direct holding company of
Bao Xin Development. Bao Xin Development beneficially held approximately
47.14% of the total number of the issued shares in GSFG. As such, Bao Xin
Development was deemed to be interested in 1,489,724 Shares held by GSFG,
and Tinmark was deemed to be interested in 1,488,381,555 Shares held by Bao
Xin Development.

(©)] As at 31 December 2021, Hongkun Limited was a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Lin Xiaokun. Accordingly Mr. Lin Xiaokun was deemed to be interested in
277,600,000 Shares owned by Hongkun Limited by virtue of SFO.

Abbreviations: “L” stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company has not
been notified by any person (other than Directors or the chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

2014 Share Option Scheme

On 26 March 2014, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“2014 Share Option Scheme”) and the major terms of the 2014 Share Option
Scheme were summarised as follows:

(@)  Purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme is (i) to attract
and retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; (ii) to provide additional incentives to
employees, consultants, agents, representatives, advisers, suppliers
of goods or services, customers, contractors, business allies and joint
venture partners; and (i) to promote the long term financial success
of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to the
Shareholders.
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Participants of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the 2014 Share Option Scheme, the Company may at
its absolute discretion grant options to any employee, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner of the
Company or its subsidiaries (including any director, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the Company or
its subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time employment with the
Company or its subsidiaries at the time when an option is granted to
such employee, or any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
have contributed or may contribute to the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme

The total number of Shares may be granted under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme is 24,691,756 Shares after adjustments for share
subdivision in 2015 and share consolidation in 2017, which represents
0.45% of the total number of Shares in issue at the date of the Report.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2014 Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time
to time.

Maximum entitlernent of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue, unless approved by the
Shareholders in the manner as stipulated in the 2014 Share Option
Scheme.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2014
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which may commence
on the date on which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall
end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. No
minimum period for which the option must be held before it can be
exercised is specified in the 2014 Share Option Scheme.
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The subscription price per Share

The subscription price per Share in respect of an option granted
under the 2014 Share Option Scheme is such price as determined by
the Board at the time of the grant of the options, but in any case the
subscription price shall not be lower than the higher of:

° the closing price of the Share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date on which the
options are offered, which must be a business day;

° the price being the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on which
the options are offered; and

o the nominal value of a Share on the date on which the options
are offered.

Payment on acceptance of option

A non-refundable sum of HK$10 or other amount as determined by the
Board by way of consideration for the grant of an option is required to
be paid by each of the grantee upon acceptance of the granted option.

Duration of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

The 2014 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years from its adoption date (i.e. 26 March 2014). The 2014 Share
Option Scheme will terminate or expire (as the case may be) on the
earlier of (i) the approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting, and
(i) at the close of business on the day immediately preceding the tenth
anniversary of the adoption date (the “Scheme Period”).

After the Scheme Period, the Company cannot grant new options but for so

long as there are options granted but not yet exercised, outstanding vested or
unvested options, the 2014 Share Option Scheme will remain in full force and
effect of such outstanding vested or unvested options or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the 2014 Share Option Scheme. As at the date
of the Report, a total of 31,100,000 share options (after adjustments for share
subdivision in 2015 and share consolidation in 2017) had been granted by the
Company under the 2014 Share Option Scheme. The number of outstanding
share options as at 31 December 2021 is nil.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group has not entered into any non-exempt oneoff
connected transactions which should be subject to the reporting, annual
review, announcement and/or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2020, BEFZER AR AR (Baoxin Holdings Company
Limited®) (“Baoxin Holdings”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the Property Management Services Framework Agreement
(the “Framework Agreement”) with FIIIE#ARIEE B GRAF] (Shenzhen
Jixiang Property Services Group Limited*) (“Shenzhen Jixiang”), indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Yao, the Chairman and the executive Director, being a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
pursuant to which Shenzhen Jixiang agreed to provide property management
services to Baoxin Holdings and its subsidiaries (“Baoxin Holdings Group”) in
accordance with the principal terms of the Property Management Services
Framework Agreement for a period of three years from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023. The transactions under the Framework Agreement (the
“Transactions”) constitute continuing connected transactions.

The aggregate amount of the Property Management Services Fees payable by
Baoxin Holdings Group for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023 will not exceed RMB115,000,000 and the annual caps for each of the
years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2023 will be RMB20,000,000, RMB45,000,000 and RMB50,000,000,
respectively.

In respect of the Framework Agreement which constitutes the continuing
connected transactions, all the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the Transactions and confirmed that the Transactions have been
entered into: (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b)
on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Auditor, was engaged to report on the continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
(revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Based on the work performed, the Auditor confirmed to the Board that in
respect of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions (the “CCTs”):

1. nothing has come to the Auditor’s attention that caused the Auditor to
believe that, the CCTs have not been approved by the Board;

2. nothing has come to the Auditor’s attention that caused the Auditor
to believe that, the CCTs have not been entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

58 nothing has come to the Auditor’s attention that caused the Auditor to
believe that the CCTs have exceeded the relevant cap

The Auditor has issued an unqualified letter to the Board containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs under Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. The Company has provided a copy of the Auditor’s letter to the
Stock Exchange as required under Rule 14A.57 of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the relevant requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken during the
Year under review are disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed in the Annual Report , these related party
transactions either (i) do not constitute connected or continuing connected
transactions; or (i) fall under the definition of a connected or continuing
connected transaction, but are exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Share Capital

The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 December 2021 was
5,460,124,797 ordinary Shares of par value of HK$0.05 per Share.

On 18 March 2021, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
the placing agent in relation to the placing of ordinary shares. The placing
was complete on 7 April 2021 in accordance with the placing agreement in
which an aggregate of 910,020,000 placing shares were successfully placed
to not less than six placees at the placing price of HK$0.3 per placing share
which represented a premium of approximately 5.26% to the closing price
of HK$0.285 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 18 March
2021, being the date of the placing agreement. The aggregate nominal
value of the placing shares amounted to HK$ 45,501,000. The net proceeds
from the placing, after deduction of related costs and expenses, amounted
to approximately HK$272,535,000, would be applied for financing the
general working capital of the Group. The proceeds were used accordingly
to the intention previously disclosed in the announcement and the joint
announcement of the Company dated 18 March 2021 and 7 April 2021
respectively.

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Ordinary Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes”, at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors or the chief executive of the
Company or any of their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ Interests
in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and “Related Party Transactions”, no contract of significance
to the business of the Group, to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time
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during the year ended 31 December 2021, nor had there been any contract
of significance entered into between the Group, or any of its subsidiaries
and any of the Director or the Director’s connected party during the year
ended 31 December 2021. There was no any other transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Competing Interests

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the interests of Directors in
business which might compete with the Group during the Year were as
follows:

1. Mr. Yao Jianhui, being the Chairman and executive Director, is also
the executive director and controlling shareholder of GSFG, which
through its subsidiaries, is also engaged in property investment and
development in the PRC; and

2. Ms. Xia Lingjie, being the executive Director and CEO, is also the
director of the controlling shareholders of GSFG, which through its
subsidiaries, are also engaged in property investment and development
in the PRC.

GSFG is involved in the investment and development of properties of different
types and/or in different locations, and the Board has been operating
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of GSFG, no
competition is considered to exist.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Relief from Taxation

The Directors are not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BXKBERCALN: MBE-_ZT=-_—F+=A
=t+—HLEFER  AEEIEEMKBARL
EEATMESKHEBEATITILAMNEESLY -
AN E) sk E AT B B A B I AR R PR AR AR R ok
EIM B AR L EARE B ¥ A BT At
BEARS - WHHED -

BE - HEIWEXRQRN LHES

RAFER - ARBHEAFNERRBER
B - HESBEARRER LHES

B R
BIEEHRAELA0M  BEEAFERTES
BRFEEOEHBRHT 2 LHESOT -

1. IERPTEFUEERERENSRZH
TEERERER - BB RN E
RAIRFEREMERERFR &

2. WTESRTHREREZRRZLINAEHD
BIERBRZES - MENSRIEBEN
BABRPENENRIRERME -

BENeROEESRIRERR, SiE 2 ME
BRERRE AN EFSBLNENEE - T)
BEBNEB U HRLERGEE AR AMER
REBFFE -

BERBER

AR AR AR S BB LI MR
NGOy AU R G T
BRIGX -

i WL 2

#ED TR BRG T A BN -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars regarding principal subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management Contracts

No contracts relating to the management and/or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the Year.

Public Float

Based on the information that was publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of the Report, there has
been sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Events After the Reporting Period

Particulars of events after the reporting period are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Change of Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

On 10 February 2022, the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong was changed to 18/F., Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Other than disclosed above and elsewhere in the Report, up to the date of
the Report, there is no other significant event identified by the management
subsequent to the reporting period.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control system of the Group, and to review the
Company’s annual report and to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board.

The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Wong Chun Bong (Chairman), Ms.
He Suying and Dr. Tang Lai Wah, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has reviewed and approved the Group’s
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Disclosures under Rules 13.20 to 13.22 of the Listing
Rules

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no circumstances which would give
rise to a disclosure obligation under Rules 13.20 to 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practices. The
Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 45 to 64 of the Annual Report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been audited by BDO Limited, who will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2022

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The principal objective of the Company is to enhance long-term total
return for all its stakeholders. The Company is committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and recognises that sound and
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to the smooth,
effective and transparent operation of a company and its ability to attract
investment, protect the rights of shareholders and stakeholders, and enhance
shareholder value. As such, the Company’s corporate governance policy
has been designed to achieve these objectives and is maintained through a
framework of processes, policies and guidelines. The Directors consider that
incorporating the elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group could balance the
interests of the shareholders, customers, suppliers and employees of the
Company.

In December 2021, the Stock Exchange published the conclusions to
Review of Corporate Governance Code (the amended CG Code) and the
corresponding changes to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Most of the amendments are applicable
for financial year commencing on or after 1 January 2022. The Board will
adopt the amended CG Code, the requirements under which shall apply to
the Company’s corporate governance report in the forthcoming financial year
ending 31 December 2022.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board and the management of the Company are of the opinion that the
Company has properly complied with the applicable code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (version up to 31 December 2021) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2021.

The Audit Committee, nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and salary review committee (the “Salary Review Committee”) of the Company,
all with specific written terms of reference and chaired by an Independent
Non-executive Director, support the Board in providing independent oversight
in their respective areas of responsibilities. The development committee
of the Company oversees management of, and advises the Board on the
development and implementation of the sustainability initiatives of the Group,
including reviewing the related environment, social and governance (‘ESG”)
policies and practices, and assessing and making recommendations on
matters concerning the Group’s sustainability development and ESG risks.
Further information on the sustainability initiatives and its key relationships
with stakeholders as well as the ESG performance of the Group can also be
found in the related ESG Report as set out on pages 65 to 128 of the Annual
Report.
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CHEABE

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining standards of openness,
probity and accountability. In line with this commitment and in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code, the Audit Committee has overseen the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group. In addition, the Company has also established the Whistleblowing
Policy, the Anti-Corruption Policy and the Inside Information and Disclosure
Policy for compliance by all employees of the Group, the details of the
Whistleblowing Policy and the Anti-Corruption Policy are disclosed in the ESG
Report as set out on pages 65 to 128 of the Annual Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities transactions and
dealing (the “Code of Conduct”) by the Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, they confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Board of Directors

At the date of the Report, the Board consists of two executive Directors
namely Mr. Yao Jianhui (Chairman) and Ms. Xia Lingjie (CEO); one non-
executive Director namely Ms. Zhan Yushan; and three independent non-
executive Directors namely Ms. He Suying, Dr. Tang Lai Wah and Mr. Wong
Chun Bong. To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors
has any family, financial, business or other material/relevant relationship with
any of other Directors.

The Company considers that the Board has the necessary skills and
experience appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the best
interest of the Company and that the current board size is adequate for its
present operations. Detailed biographies outlining each Director’s range of
specialist experience and suitability for the successful long-term management
of the Group can be found in the section headed “Directors and Key
Personnel Profiles” of the Report.

During the Year, Mr. Yao Jianhui, who is the Chairman, has met with the
independent non-executive Directors without the other Directors present.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman, namely Mr. Yao Jianhui, and the CEO, namely
Ms. Xia Lingjie, are segregated in order to reinforce their independence and
accountability. There are clear demarcations of responsibility and authority
between the Chairman and the CEO which ensure an appropriate balance
of power, increased accountability and greater capacity of the Board for
independent decision-making.

Corporate Governance Report

Role and function of the Board and the management

The principal functions of the Board are to make decisions on the objectives,
strategic plans, budgets and management structure of the Company;
to oversee the management of the business and affairs of the Group; to
supervise the management of the business and affairs with the objective of
enhancing the Company and Shareholders’ value with the proper delegation
of power to the management for the day-to-day operation of the Company,
implementation of the budgets and strategic plans and development of the
organization of the Company for implementing the Board’s decisions. The
composition and functions of each Board committee and their major roles
and functions are described below. The final decision still rests with the
Board unless otherwise provided for in the Terms of Reference of the relevant
committees.

Independent non-executive Directors are responsible to scrutinise the
Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives;
and ensuring that the exercise of the board authority is within the powers
conferred to the Board under the Company’s Articles of Association,
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Independent non-executive Directors ensure that the Board is accountable
for the interest of all shareholders and handles matters in an objective
manner. The three Independent non-executive Directors have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for efficient and effective delivery of its functions.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Directors consider that all the independent non-
executive Directors remain independent. The Board will maintain proper
channels of communication and ensure that the independent views and input
are available to the Board in time, the effectiveness of which will be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of Directors

Pursuant to Articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association provides that any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election at such meeting.

Every Director, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and will be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three
years at the annual general meeting of the Company. Their appointments shall
be reviewed by the Nomination Committee when they are being due for re-
election.

Board Meetings

The Board holds at least four regular meetings a year. The Board convenes
meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as required by business
needs. All Directors are invited to attend the Board meetings in person or by
video/telephone conference.

Notice of at least 14 days will be given to all Directors for regular Board
meetings and reasonable notices for all other Board meetings will be given to
all Directors so as to ensure that each of them has an opportunity to attend
the meetings. Board papers will be given to the Board at least 3 days before
the date of the Board meeting by the Company Secretary.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter,

the matter will be preferably dealt by a physical Board meeting rather than a
written resolution.
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During the Year, the Board held a total of five Board meetings. Details of
Directors’ attendance record in the year of 2021 is as follows:

REABE
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No. of meetings
attended/No. of

Directors meetings held
HESERRE

BE BITEBRE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yao Jianhui sk A 5/5

Ms. Xia Lingjie BERL L 5/5

Mr. Zhang Xiaodong (resigned on 12 October 2021) REERFEH (R —F ——4F 1 H+1 —HEHE) 3/3

Non-Executive Director FHITES

Ms. Zhan Yushan EEMZ L 5/5

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHTES

Ms. He Suying fAIREL L 5/5

Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEBEEL 5/5

Mr. Wong Chun Bong TIRALE 5/5

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary’s role is to support the Board by ensuring good

information flow within the Board and that the Board policy and procedures
are followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on
governance affairs and facilitating the induction and professional development
of Directors. The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
reports to the Chairman. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary is delegated with the
responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting and ensures
that, where applicable, matters proposed by other Directors are included
in the agenda and that all applicable rules and regulations are followed. All
Directors may ask for matters to be included in the agenda for regular Board
meetings by making a request to the Company Secretary. During the Year, the
Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update his skills and knowledge as required
by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed of significant changes of the Group’s business
from time to time. They have unrestricted access to the advices from the
Company Secretary who are responsible to furnish the board papers and
related materials.
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Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director. The
Directors including independent non-executive Directors may seek for legal
advices at the Company’s expenses to discharge their duties.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from their risk
exposure arising from the business of the Group.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

A comprehensive, formal and tailored induction training will be given to every
newly appointed Directors. Directors will be provided with materials relevant
to the Company’s business and director’s duties and responsibilities. In
addition, in order to allow the Directors to understand the latest development
of regulatory and compliance issues, they are also provided with market news
and regulatory updates. A summary of their training records of continuing
professional development (“CPD”) is as follows:

EX2ERNEFRRERNERLEIHA
AWERFE  YAHEEEEH 85 (8FBY
FHITER) T RBRITHRENBESIOERER -
ERBARBIESE -

EERERABWERER

AARE AEERFEEBRABWEEETR
BAERR  ARSHAEEEBRELORAR
SRAHREE -

ESNBIIRERERR

BREZENHESOSERE—E2E - ExX
EEEFENABEI - EFHERTEEHAN
RAEBAREERBREENER - 1N B
TEESEREERAREENSNER &%
NEREHTSHEEREINEEER - BRAK
EREEXER((HEZERRE]) OIFIIEM
2T

Types of CPD Subject of CPD
Directors (Note 1) (Note 2)
BEREEREER BESERRITE
2= (Pf7E1) (fFzE2)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yao Jianhui whiENE A 1,2 A B
Ms. Xia Lingjie BEfiat 1,2 A B
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong REER &
(resigned on 12 October 2021) (R=ZFE=-—F+A+=-HFHT) 1,2 A B
Non-executive Director FETES
Ms. Zhan Yushan EEZ 1,2 A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUkHTES
Ms. He Suying DET 3 e 1,2 A B
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEEEL 1,2 A B
Mr. Wong Chun Bong FIRAE 1,2 A, B
Note 1: BsEq
1. Attending in-house training or external seminars 1. o 8 PR 4 51| sk 1N B
2. Reading newspapers, journals and updated legal and regulatory news 2. MEHME - BRRSERREEHER
Note 2: fEzE2 -
A.  The Company’s business A. PAN/NCIE 373
B. Laws, rules and regulations, accounting standards B. SRR - BBIRRA - &5T4ER|
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Board Committees

The Board has established three statutory committees with specific written
Terms of Reference to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Salary Review Committee are published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

At the date of the Report, the Audit Committee consists of all independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wong Chun Bong (the chairman), Ms. He
Suying and Dr. Tang Lai Wah.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, inter alia, to review and
monitor financial reporting and the judgments contained therein; and to review
financial and internal controls half-yearly and annually, accounting policies and
to provide recommendations and advices to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor as well as their terms of
appointment.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the management
the accounting principles and practice adopted by the Group and auditing,
internal controls and financial reporting matters. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Attendance of the Audit Committee members during the Year is set out
below:
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No. of meetings
attended/No. of

Members meetings held

HESS2RE,
241 BITEBARE
Mr. Wong Chun Bong (Chairman) TIRBEE (F/E) 4/4
Ms. He Suying fAIRELZ L 4/4
Dr. Tang Lai Wah BEEEL 4/4
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Nomination Committee

At the date of the Report, the Nomination Committee consists of three
members with two independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wong
Chun Bong (chairman) and Ms. He Suying and an executive Director namely
Mr. Yao Jianhui.

The majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The major functions of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure and composition of the Board, to review and
provide recommendations to the Shareholders on individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and the terms of Director’s service contract, and
to assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
to review the Board Diversity Policy. Attendance of the Nomination Committee
members during the Year is set out below:

REZEE

RAREEH  REZEEH=-2XEMAK &
TRARBUIFATESR (BIERBEE(EZE)
REIRRELZ L) R—2WTES (AgEExL) -
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No. of meeting
attended/No. of

Members meeting held

HESBRE,
Re BITEBRE
Mr. Wong Chun Bong (Chairman) FIRF L (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Yao Jianhui S ey 2/2
Ms. He Suying fARELZ L+ 2/2

Nomination Policy

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies suitable
candidates if necessary and makes recommendations to the Board. The
director nomination policy sets out the approach and procedures the Board
adopts for the nomination and selection of directors of the Company including
the appointment of additional directors, replacement of directors, and re-
election of directors. Below are details of the selection criteria and nomination
process and procedures as set out in the director nomination policy.

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the potential contribution such candidate can
bring to the Board in terms of his or her qualifications, skills, experience,
independence, age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity, etc. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the following selection criteria and such
other factors that it may consider appropriate for a position on the Board,
including but not limited to: (a) attributes complementary to the Board, (b)
business experience, board expertise and skills, (c) availability, (d) motivation,
(e) integrity, (f) independence and (g) diversity (in all aspects).
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In any event, the Board shall ensure that the nomination, re-election and/
or appointment of the Directors shall be conducted in compliance with the
Listing Rules, the memorandum and articles of association of the Company
and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“‘Board Diversity Policy”)
which set out its approach to achieve diversity on the Board with a view to
attaining a sustainable and balanced development of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a bundle of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and independence. The Company will also take into account factors based
on its own business model and specific needs from time to time.

The selection of the candidate will ultimate be made based on merit and
contribution and will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills.

During the Year and as at the date of the Report, the Board is comprised
of six (6) Directors, four (4) of which are female. The following tables further
illustrate the diversity of the Board members as of the date of the Report:

Number of
Directors

Gender Position
4 5l L

Executive Directors

WITES

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Female

Age Group
F e 48 B

50-59
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The Nomination Committee has monitored the implementation of Board
Diversity Policy and has also undertaken periodic review of it at least on an
annual basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee has been provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and may seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

Salary Review Committee

At the date of the Report, the Salary Review Committee consists of three
members with two independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. He
Suying (chairlady) and Dr. Tang Lai Wah and an executive Director namely Mr.
Yao Jianhui. The majority of the members of the Salary Review Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary objectives of Salary Review Committee are, inter alia, to
formulate the remuneration policy based on the responsibilities, qualifications
and working performance of senior management of the Company (“Senior
Management”) and Directors; review and recommend the Board’s annual
remuneration policy. The Salary Review Committee has adopted the model
under Code Provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and Senior
Management. The major objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that
the Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate a high-calibre team which
is essential to the success of the Company.

Attendance of the Salary Review Committee members during the Year is set
out below:
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No. of meetings
attended/No. of

Members meetings held

HEEERE
RE BITERAH
Ms. He Suying (Chairiady) MEEL+ (EE) 2/2
Mr. Yao Jianhui PhiEE & 2/2
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEEdL 2/2

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and Senior Management for the Year
are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Function

During the Year, the Board was responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as follows:

. developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendation to the Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuing professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

. reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to
the Group’s employees and Directors; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
on the corporate governance policies.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the Year, which have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and audited by the external auditors, BDO Limited (the “Auditor”).

Going Concern

As the Auditor has not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements for the Year, the Auditor issued the Disclaimer of Opinion, the
details of which are described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section
of the Independent Auditor’s Report as set out on pages 129 to 132 of the
Annual Report.

The detailed discussion in relation to the Disclaimer of Opinion are disclosed
under the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section as set out on
pages 15 to 20 of the Annual Report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid/payable to
BDO Limited, the auditors of the Company, is set out as follows:

Type of services provided by the external auditors

HE-_Z-_—F+-_RA=+—HILFE 2/
ENARRZBEEE L EERETMEBHRE
RARMBEHEHIIAT

SN BET TR iz RIS

Fee
B5A
(HK$’000)
(F%&7T)
Audit services: FIZARTE
Annual audit services of the Company KR RFEEZIRTE 3,180
Non-audit services: FEFEZIRTE -
Review of interim financial statements ERIR B MR ER 450
Others (mainly reporting accountant’s work in HEM(FEZ2REBATFEEIFIEHDN
connection with the notifiable transaction) BRImEFTAITIE) 138
3,768

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group, observing the requirements of the code provisions as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, has established appropriate risk
management and internal control systems that are commensurate with its
current state of business operation and development. The management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of the systems,
and the Board, by establishing a risk management committee (the “Risk
Management Committee”) on 31 December 2015, oversees the systems on
an ongoing basis. At the date of the Report, the Risk Management Committee
consists of two executive Directors namely Mr. Yao Jianhui (chairman) and
Ms. Xia Lingjie and a non-executive Director namely Ms. Zhan Yushan. The
Risk Management Committee ensures that the risk management and internal
control measures adopted are compatible with the Group’s objectives,
strategies and risk appetite.
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Attendance of the Risk Management Committee members during the Year is

REABE

EBREREZEENENAFEARLFEERNE

set out below: AT
No. of meetings
attended/No. of
Members meetings held
HESERRE
ME BITEBRE
Mr. Yao Jianhui ?M%%ﬁf‘ﬁi
(appointed as chairman on 12 October 2021) (RZFZ—F 1A+ =AEZFRLE) 11
Ms. Xia Lingjie BEERERL 11
Ms. Zhan Yushan ﬁiﬂﬂ}ﬁi 1/1
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong ﬁ%f‘ﬁi
(resigned on 12 October 2021) ( R-FEZ—F1 A+ =HFHF) 0/0
The Board has directed that the effectiveness of the material controls of the EE®ERELTBF-RETHEERANEE T

systems be reviewed regularly, at least annually, and such a review must
include financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board, having
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budgets of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions based on reports of an annual review of
the systems, has directed that adequate resources be allocated to meet the
requirements in such aspects.

The main features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described as below.

Risk Management System

In common with all business concerns, the Group strives to achieve its
objectives amidst uncertainty and has adopted as reference the risk
management principles and guidelines under the International Standard
ISO31000 to manage the effect of such uncertainty on its objectives.

The risk management process, developed according to the standard as an
integral part of the management, tailored to and embedded in the business
practices, comprises the following activities and phases:

° Communication and consultation
Communication and consultation with stakeholders or risk owners
being those in charge of legal entities, functional units or business
processes are established, developed and exercised at all stages of the
risk management process, to address issues arising from risks, causes,
consequences and measures required to treat the risks.
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$)§2/\%ET fl - EESRBUHBRNTEESR
P BETARESE - NEPERT R SRS R
Eﬁéﬁ TEABERRER  BIIFRRA
B WERBRHNERSENEAZ
LHEMEK o

R EIR & A EPE IR R T RSN T -

A EIRER
BT EBERE—
RIBRERHEBE

P AEBEE A RE TR
izﬂqlﬁ%%ffﬁﬁlsoaoooﬁ‘a

REBRERRRREIMERSZE « AERIETH
BIRZ=HERZENTE -
RERERENRARERERIZEREEEN —@E
ARE D TESARAEBERES  EFE2
IATEE) MR

o EBHH
REREIRRZR S ERER - B AR
EEABIBEAEER Bt
ﬁ%mﬁimﬂ BEMEA)EY BREKEER
/\uu uﬁ_! l//\ﬁﬁ‘r/j%ﬂ ﬁﬁFéEZﬁ:ﬁ% - R
IRR R ERIR R PR B o

EFEHEEERLT 2021 FHK

57

P



4

58

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i

*EAWE

Establishing the context

Desirable objectives are articulated, external as well as internal
parameters are defined, risk criteria is set in order to facilitate the
conduction risk management process.

Risk Assessment
It is the overall process of risk identification, risk analysis and risk
evaluation.

(@  Risk identification: through the network of communication and
consultation established with stakeholders or risk owners,
sources of risk, areas of impacts, events or changes in
circumstances, causes and consequences are identified. Risks
so identified are reported and recognised in the risk register
to facilitate risk analysis and evaluation of their impact on the
achievement of objectives.

(b)  Risk analysis: an understanding of the risks identified is obtained
in order to consider the causes and sources of risk, their
consequences whether favourable or unfavourable, likelihood,
confidence in determining the level of risk and sensitivity to
preconditions.

(¢)  Risk evaluation: decision is made based on the outcome of risk
analysis, about whether a particular risk needs treatment and
corresponding priority for treatment implementation.

Risk treatment

Where decision is made that a particular risk needs treatment,
options are developed for modifying the risk by providing mitigation or
appropriate controls in order to reduce the residual risk to a tolerable
level.

(@)  Controls address the key causes and impacts of the risk.
(b)  Controls are designed and implemented consistent with the

achievement of the corporate objectives and performance
targets.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BB
RREFEAE - 5 ﬁw%&m%ﬂﬁyai
ARER  LRRERSERBRE

AT
W TEERBIBR < HITERE

Bie -

AHEERR A

(@ BAERE  BBEFHEXRBREE
/\LiiﬁL&?”a@fﬁzﬁ @%EUHKWK
CHERE - FHABEREL R
I&é% PR E8RN B0 [\ B T 3R L L
BRKRW TAER - LRERR ST
YHEEHBRBRORFE

b) SRR TEMERARERE - AE
SRR RERKR  HEREHN
K - ATREME - EERBRKEZIE
L RSB FER G R BURAE

© FHEER : REBERRO TS RIED
RE - BERERARENFEERER
AR ER -

EREE g

iR EREREREMEFERR - BIE]ER
I8 - DAUBIBIR AR R SUE B 1551 2R A3 R R
LEAEZKT - fEmE bR

(8) ABRIEREIGHDRERHBASRRE Kk

1
=

b RALEBRGTEEEERRERER
BB IR K SR IRHR I



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

° Monitoring and review
(@  Management reviews to ensure controls are effective and efficient
in both design and operation at least annually.

(b)  Risk management performance is regularly monitored.

(c) Risks and risk management performance are appropriately
communicated to stakeholders or risk owners including those in
charge of governance and those responsible for the management
of legal entities, functional units or business processes.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee and Risk Management
Committee, evaluates the effectiveness of the systems for identifying and
managing risks that are material to the achievement of corporate objectives.

Internal Control System

The Company has an internal control system designed and implemented
according to the framework and principles as advocated by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in 2013.
The system thus developed facilitates the Group to achieve effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance of laws
and regulations. The main components of the framework and the underlying
principles that the Group observes are as follows:

° Control Environment
Sound control environment is established by obtaining commitment
at all levels to integrity and ethical values, appointing independent
board of directors for oversight, enacting structures, organizations and
processes with clear reporting lines, authorities and responsibilities,
developing competences, and holding people accountable to internal
control.

° Risk Assessment
The risk assessment component under the COSO framework
complements that under the International Standard 1ISO31000. It
emphasises that clear objectives be firstly specified and risks to the
achievement of objectives are then identified with specific reference to
the need for considering potential for fraud and impact of significant
internal and external changes.

o Control Activities
Control activities are selected and developed as part of the treatment
of risks identified. Controls are developed through policies and
procedures, along with information technology controls selected and
developed where appropriate.
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CHEABE

° Information and Communication

This component is concerned with establishing internal and external
communication to provide the Group with quality information needed
to carry out day-to-day controls in support of the achievement of
its objectives. The communication component under the COSO
framework and that under the International Standard ISO31000 are two
sides of the same coin, with the former emphasising on information
required to support the achievement of objectives and the latter, on
information required to address issues arising from risks or the impact
of uncertainty on the achievement of objectives.

° Monitoring
It refers to ongoing and separate evaluations conducted to ascertain
whether material controls are appropriately developed and functioning
effectively. Internal control deficiencies identified are evaluated and
communicated to appropriate stakeholders.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee, has ongoing oversight of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. The Risk Management Committee holds regular
meetings to review risks recognised in the risks register based on information
from various stakeholders or risk owners. The Directors are kept regularly
apprised of significant risks that may impact the Group’s performance.

During the Year, the Board has engaged an external professional consulting
firm, JFU CPA, to review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems with a view to:

° Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems insofar as the principal

operations as identified are concerned;

° Developing and implementing a new integrated management tool for
coordinating the overall risk management activities of the Group; and

° Reporting to the Audit Committee the findings of the review and making
recommendations to the Board.
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On the findings and recommendations, the Board concludes that the state
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems is sufficiently
effective and commensurates with the current development of the Group.
The Group has been moving at a rapid pace and key business structures,
organizations and processes are being formed in support. Accordingly, the
Board directs that more resources be assigned to develop controls, risk
treatments and training in alignment with the continuing development of
the Group, ensuring that the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems are maintained.

Inside Information

Policies, procedures and controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information has been set out internally to enhance information management
of the Group and to ensure the authenticity, accuracy, completeness and
timeliness of information disclosed to the public while safeguarding the
legitimate rights and interests of the Company, Shareholders, creditors and
other stakeholders as a whole.

Corporate Governance and Internal Audit

The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are very
important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence and for the
sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has established an internal audit
function since 2018 to uplift the quality of corporate governance.

The internal audit function is independent of the Group’s daily operations and
facilitates the Board on evaluating the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems by conducting interviews and performing tests
on management and operational controls.

Internal audit work plans are developed and executed with approval of the
Board, and with the essential support of experienced external consultants.
The internal audit function is accountable to the Board through the Audit
Committee.

Special Measures for Pandemic Outbreak

Since the outbreak of the Pandemic, a number of provinces and municipalities
in the PRC have taken emergency public health measures and various actions
to prevent the spread of the Pandemic during the Year. Under such special
circumstances, the Group has been using its best endeavours to forestall a
prolonged effect of the Pandemic on its operations.
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At the operational level, the Group:

° has set out and adopted series of strict hygiene and epidemic control
measures for sake of safeguarding the personal health safety of all staff
and workers, contractors, customers and the general public in various
office areas, project sites and operating premises of the Group;

° has designated a committee comprising of management team
members who will be responsible for the supervision of the process
of implementation of those key control measures, coordination and
arrangement of provision of services in the workplace with the aim to
maintain normal operation; and

° has been communicating with key suppliers and contractors for logistic
arrangements to ensure delivery of building construction materials in
various stages and gradual return of the site workers in preparation for
the resumption where applicable.

The Board will continue to assess the impact of the Pandemic on the
operation and financial performance of the Group, while closely monitoring
the development of the Pandemic and the risks and uncertainties being faced
by the Group as a result of the Pandemic and will take appropriate measures
and actions as necessary.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself/herself or themselves may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company. The requisition in writing should be sent to the Company’s office at
18/F., Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled at
Shareholders’ meetings for adoption. The Board will review Shareholders’
enquiries on a periodic basis. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary
at the above address.
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In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their enquiries
to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, via its online holding enquiry at www.tricoris.com, or by email to is-
enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in
person at its public counter at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

Communication With Shareholders

During the Year, the Board has adopted the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy, which is posted on the Company’s website.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship and
communication between the Company and its shareholders.

Designated Senior Management is responsible for communicating and
enhancing relationships with the investors of the Company. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in a timely manner.

Further, the Company provides extensive information in its annual and interim
reports and announcements. All Shareholders’ communications are also
available on the Company’s website, where the relevant latest information,
the up-to-date state of the Company’s business operation and development,
the Company’s financial information and corporate governance practices and
other data are available to the public.

The general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for Shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will make an effort to attend
the annual general meeting. External auditor is also available at the annual
general meeting to address Shareholders’ queries. In case of any general
meeting to approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is
subject to independent Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent
board committee will also make an effort to attend to address Shareholders’
queries. The Board will review the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
periodically and at least on an annual basis to ensure its effectiveness.
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Details of the Directors’ attendances at the 2021 general meeting are as EFR_ZT - —FRLEREASHFENAT :

follows:
No. of general
Meetings
attended/No. of
Directors general meetings held
HEBRRKERE
5= BIIRRAER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yao Jianhui whiEIB Ak A 11
Ms. Xia Lingjie BEEfEr+ 1/1
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong SREER 4
(resigned on 12 October 2021) (R=ZF=Z—F1HA+=HFHE) 11
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Zhan Yushan HEEMZ L 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFHTES
Ms. He Suying fARELZ LT 11
Dr. Tang Lai Wah BB 11
Mr. Wong Chun Bong FIRFBLLE 1/1
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS R
The Company does not have any changes in the constitutional document — N2 &R ANEE AN & E 12 SRS -
during the Year.
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Introduction

F=

As a good corporate citizen, Glory Sun Land Group Limited together with its BT EEEAR DA REAWNE LR (58 [ K&
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”, the “Company”, “we” or “us”) actively B [RLQF ] [HMDIER—RRFEER
respond to the national green development concept. The Group vigorously &+ H BB O EERZEHRIES - KA H#ST
carries out measures such as green construction, green operation, and ~ #BE®% - #EEY KERBFEE  £E®
green service. The concept of sustainable development is integrated into the B3 + /&t - &2 - BRIROMA A FEERE
product research and development, design, construction, and management & + WEIR I HIF T RPN - RAREREIR
processes. In addition, the Group strictly controls the emissions of various — {ERREE + 2EHEPHEAFHERRALEIES -
pollutants, improves energy and resources efficiency, and comprehensively

develops the operation philosophy of corporate sustainable development.

We devote ourselves to fulfiling customers’ expectations for a healthy and  FIPUEF O 71 B % P EREFHEEH L -
beautiful life. Through the improvement of product quality for satisfying EEEFHKIESERME @ LA [BIHERARH |
the customers’ needs and under the lead of the “back to the origin of the AFXE  BEREMMEETIANNTEEL - F
product itself’, the Group has realized the whole realignment of product ~FARTEMRY - THRAESR N SBMEE
and lifestyle. With a forward-looking vision, we continue to enhance product R » FFEMEEIRER T - RRE BRI - £—X
competitiveness, make efficient use of resources, continue to promote  IBFHEIESFAREIREEE - WIFEHRRE
energy conservation and emission reduction, and adhere to the practices ~FRIEHIRNBMARE o R - B EB)IEETIS -
of recycling. The efficiencies of low-carbon operation and green services AEZMAPHE R - AEZKL - TEMN F6
are further improved, while the content and depth of customer service are ~ $EMVARTEIEE - HREE MEERRAFERE -
expanded continuously. Meanwhile, we actively adapt to the market, deeply

explore user needs, and develop diversified, thematic and featured service

items to improve the experience and convenience of consumption.

We always adhere to the responsible concept of putting people first and ~ EPUAKRBRAARK ZHFETINETES -
treating employees well. The Group has firmly implemented the talent strategy =~ X EHE AL R - WHRHEREE T L LTI
and fully considered the diversity of employees and their equal opportunities. & F% - FEIIR AT LB R RE - TEr
While enhancing the building of the Company’s team of talents, the Group ~ & @GS REE TRAIEREE - A0 BE R
constantly improves the welfare system and caring measures for employees & —fI B THK - EEREEE TR - &
to wholeheartedly care for and accompany each employee’s growth. While ~ FIBEBHRRZE T 2% » ERA@UARITA R =E
empowering the Group and employees, we actively promote the combination ~ #4 @ BBSEIE T2HAZRAmEH) - AEE
of employee charity, corporate charity and behavioral charity. By encouraging &2 7 —BETH @EEMH I
employees to participate in charitable activities, we have built a new path for

the Company to fulfil its social responsibility.

In future, the Company will adhere to the strategic target of “Building the R » RRBIHESRIFLA [/ AIE 2 = ] (UEHE B
Beauty of Life”, firmly comply with the concept of low-carbon, environmental- 1%+ BERRIRR - S ORENOERES - 48
friendly, green and healthy development, continue to focus on living, life, BT AJE « EFHEBIRH A HERERE - BEET
and sustainable development of environment, act actively to fulfill its social M EEE - FEKEEEEREE B LRS-
responsibility, and disclose and respond to the environmental, social and & KER ([BRIR - L& RER]) HHEAERE °
governance (“ESG”) issues concerned by investors on an continuing basis.
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Message from the Chairman

EERE

Dear all stakeholders:

| am pleased to present the 2021 ESG Report (the “Report”) of the Group.
Regarding the development direction of sustainable development, the
Company has always integrated sustainable development into the Group’s
strategic level and has also incorporated the concept into the business
development plan. We have also carried out a series of effective measures
such as green building, green construction, green operation, and green
office. In addition, the Company will make efficient use of resources, continue
to promote energy conservation and emission reduction, and adhere to
the practices of recycling and low-carbon operation. All in all, we expect
the growth of the community can be attained by focusing the diversified
experience of the customers to assure family and neighbors living altogether
in a good community ecology.

Looking ahead to the future, the Company will unremittingly strive to build
“a community of interests and causes” by continuously optimizing the staff
development programs to implement diversified development paths and
provide a platform for employees to develop and enhance their values.
As a “warm” enterprise, while focusing on its own economic results and
maintaining stable production and operation, the Company will actively carry
out its social responsibility through strongly supporting the construction of
neighboring communities and discharging the significant role of an enterprise
in the powerful support over the poverty alleviation. In addition, the Group will
continue its determined commitment to expand vision for ESG. The Group will
also ensure that all sustainable development measures are implemented in a
timely manner in order to create true values for our customers, stakeholders
and communities.

Finally, I would like to thank all Directors, employees and stakeholders for their
tireless efforts in implementing the Group’s sustainable development initiatives
during the relevant reporting period.

Yao Jianhui
Chairman of the Board

ERHRDE -

AANBRAREAREZ —FT-—FERE - HE
EEamE ((AfE]) - RAHERRNMERT
AL AAB-ERAFEERBESAEEN
BREE  MAKEHRAE T  BRETRE
HE - RERT  REEYE  RERATZEA
MEHE - BRRFBER - FEREESRE -
BREEE - BITEMREE - RAIFLEREP
ZRENBEREE  BELERNERE €&
EPHRAERMBBEERFOLRERDHRF
BE

RERK - RATERFZIAE - BHENERF
SHAFLE FEARRE]  BATEELCLETHE
BE HTETEREE  RUHEIZEERE
ENTHEFE - EA—RIBRE] W% AR
AEIECXBEFREBENG  REEELERTE
R - BRETHEEE  ANXBEEAES
HERR  RAREMEFECEEEERETH
BANE - I AEBEER LR NWIMRR
B HERERTENRE BR-AUSEE
RBESURRET  REMANEFS HHER
HERHRAELNEE -

Bk AARUBHECES  BTRHHER
ARRE BN AE AL THERERE
SEN TP PIR

iz e
EFSTE




Statement of the Board
BEEEEH

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) shoulder the
responsibility of taking care the ESG matters and integrating them into the
strategy of the Group. The Board also provides guidance on the management
and monitoring of the ESG matters which are considered to be relevant to
the Group. In order to ensure effective implementation of the Group’s ESG
initiatives, the supervision and operation of the Board on the ESG matters
are primarily undertaken by the development committee of the Company (the
“Development Committee”). The management approaches and strategies
involving the ESG matters, including the process for assessment, prioritization
and management of material issues and risks related to the ESG matters are
implemented in collaboration by the Company’s Sustainable Development
Working Group, and reported to the Board (in quarterly reports) periodically.
The Board also review the list of material ESG issues and ESG risks
provided by the Sustainable Development Working Group, and ensure that
appropriate risk mitigation measures have been implemented. All sustainability
disclosures, policies, approaches and objectives are subject to the review and
approval of the Board. Regular assessments of relevant ESG objectives and
performance will also be conducted by the Board.

ApRlzEEZR((EFR ) BARIERE  HE
RERBEULEEBAREERKHET I
HEEE R ERIRER A EAEERRENRE
HERERER  RERAREEASEAR
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About the Report
ERAHE

The Report covers the operation scope of the Group’s two core business
segments of property investment and development and cultural sports
for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting
Period” or the “Year”). The Report is prepared in strict compliance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”)
of the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) (the “Stock
Exchange”). In addition to the reporting rule of the ESG Guide, the Group has
also followed the relevant laws and regulations in the disclosure of general
information of its ESG procedures. The key performance indicators (the “KPI”)
required to be disclosed under the ESG Guide are outlined in detail in the
sections headed “Environmental Sustainability” and “Social Sustainability”.
Furthermore, the Group also prepared with reference to the “United Nation
SDG Compass (Bit& B A FE 3R B IR EITEIER) (the “SDGs”). SDGs
are internationally recognized sustainable development measures. We place
great emphasis on the alignment of the business operations of the Group
with the sustainable development goals, and its close correlation with the
daily operation of the Group. The Chinese and English versions of the Report
are available on the Company’s website at www.hk0299.com. The Chinese
version shall prevail if there is any conflict or discrepancy between the Chinese
and English version. If you have any comments or suggestions on the Group’s
ESG performance, you are welcome to send email to info@hk0299.com. We
will definitely value your comments and respond accordingly.

The business scope covered in the Report includes the relevant operating
information on the Hong Kong head office and twelve (12) subsidiaries of the
Company located in different provinces and cities in the PRC with physical
business operations during the Reporting Period, and these twelve PRC
subsidiaries are namely:

ABEREREEAN _TB-_—F—F—HE=-Z
T+ A=+—HHBREH] K[ AF
B RYIFERE R R A EEMEZLER
IRBHLEHE WEKEBREBHARDMA
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(MRE e kERESIDBATMER - BRIR
B g RERIESINRERAIN - AEBIRE
THREEAREARFARERE e REARAER
H—REEFEER - IRIE - (L RERIESIFTRE
A HI R R E SRS ([ERESEED R
BRIFAHERRE | R (e #HEER | S5HR
SRR o A AEE T2 R(H A B A EEEE
T ITENIER) ([SDGs)) #1T74RHl - SDGs &
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1. Baoxin Holdings Company Limited* (“Shenzhen Office”);
EHERERAR (DRYIPFEE])

2. Changchun City Baoxin Property Development Company Limited” (“Changchun Company”);
REMENFHWERZEERAF ([RERFD

3. Shantou Chaoshang Chengzhen Comprehensive Management Company Limited*, Chaoshang Group (Shantou) Investment
Company Limited*, Shantou Taisheng Technology Company Limited* (collectively “Shantou Company”);
BRI E M RAR AVBIB AR AT - MEEE OLBR) REARAR  IEMRERTARAR (51 DLERR])

4, Weinan Baoneng Property Company Limited* (“Weinan Company”);
BEMEREXERAR(DEERRD

5. Hunan Meilian Property Company Limited* (“Changsha Company”);
MEEBMBEARAR(TRAIRAD

6. Yunfu Baoxin Property Company Limited* (“Yunfu Company”);
EFEMBEFEARAR(EFAF)

7. Shenzhen Baoxin Recreation and Sports Development Company Limited* (“Baoxin Golf”);
RYNEHEEREGRAR ([EfamR])

8. Shenzhen Baoxin Wisdom Development Limited* (“Xiao Mutong”);
RINBHEEBHRERAR ([MRE])

9. Shenzhen Baoxin Fitness Development Limited” (“Xin Dongneng”);
AN B ERAERAR ([FEhEe])

10.  Shenzhen Baoyue Entertainment Development Limited* (“T.T. CLUB”);
RYNBEE IR RABR AR ([TT. CLUBJ) :

11, Shenzhen Jitong Industrial Company Limited (“Jitong”); and
R EBEXERAR([HBE]) &

12.  Shenzhen Baoxin Logistics Company Limited (“Supply Chain Project”).
RINEFYIRBR AR ([HLESHIER |) -

Changes for the Scope of the Report
R EEHEE{LH A

On 23 July 2021, the Group completed the disposal of 100% of the issued shares of Yue Jin Asia Limited, and the Group ceased
to operate New Sports Marine Sports Centre and New Sports Marine Training Centre. Moreover, on 26 November 2021, 252 %1
E¥ AR A A (Shenyang Baoxin Commercial Company Limited®) (“Shenyang Baoxin”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into the “Resumption Compensation Agreement” with the government authority in Tiexi District, Shenyang,
Liaoning Province, the PRC to surrender the ownership of &5 E K% A& (Shenyang Fuyou Commercial Building®), an
investment property of the Group. In addition, on 22 December 2021, the Group completed the disposal of the entire equity interest
in JR®YIIF B AIE 2B R A 7 (Shenzhen Xinhengchuang Industrial Company Limited*). As such, S#IIABEEfE S B BR A & (Shenzhen
Dapeng Yacht Club Company Limited*), 73| A S BIFR £ 5 5 BR A &) (Shenzhen Dapeng International Education Company Limited®),
EREEEEAR AR (Guangxi Baohui Property Company Limited®), EFEEIZIE AR AR (Guangxi Shengze Investment
Company Limited*) and Shenyang Baoxin no longer fall within the disclosure scope of the Report.

In addition, all the data and information used in the Report come from the statistical reports of the Group. The Board assumes
liabilities for authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the Report. The Report has been approved for publication by the Board.

RZBEZ—F+A+=0 FEETHKEEERTMERLDF 100% 2 ETRG - BUAEETELLHMES G EBHH.OM
HRESAEITRL  SR_F_—F+ A+ B ARAZHEEIF2EMBRRIESENPOEARAR(NEEERN]) B
BEEEEGMEARARBNTR L [BUHERRE ] DEASEZRENFEHERSERHERNENEE - AERXR T ——
FH-AZ+=B AEEZKEERYIFBAIEEAR QRN DEHMAME - Fit - RINKBEEEERAF - RYIKBEEEHE
BRARF] BAEESXERRAF - BEARFKEARARLEGENH T EMARRE Z HELE -

BEAN » AEFFAEANBBEMERIREAKEARRE  ESTHAREATNEEN - ERUENTRERER - ARECE
SEFSORRYL T AL -

* For identification purpose only

BRI
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Environmental, Social and Governance Philosophy and Management
RIE HERERESHER

ﬂ Communication with Stakeholders
HFHEER

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) provides an effective platform for the Board and Shareholders to
exchange views. In addition to the AGM, for maintaining a close relationship with the stakeholders such as customers
and suppliers, the Company communicates with the stakeholders from time to time through different channels including
physical visits, conference calls, e-mails, the Company’s website, customer service hotlines, follow-up actions by customer
service representatives, online and offline special topic questionnaire etc. in order to fully listen to their views and needs.
The Company’s overall performance result is also being reported to the investors regularly through the annual report. The
corresponding details of the AGM and investor participation in corporate governance can be found in the 2021 annual report
of the Company (the “2021 Annual Report”). Details on the corporate governance structure and practice of the Company,
besides the relevant sections of this Report, please also refer to the relevant sections on corporate governance in the 2021
Annual Report.

ARBNBRBAFAEG ((RRAFAS D REAMNTFEAEETERRIMER - BTRRBERGZIN - RRIFEE
P HERSHNENEZME  ARF T EZHNERFIIIEEE  WEBLMRFT  EFe% BT84 AFES
B BPRBAR  FEPRBEERE  KLGTHEEMERNES  UE2ARBEEINERRTR - ARRMBEEER
BMEREFNFRASKEEEHEDER - KRBEFASERN REESEQRARBEAFAANTI2RAREZ-Z
—HFERE(ZT=—FR)) - AAXRRCEXEARBREBNFE BABRS2BHREI - THEL2HA_F—_—F
B EREAHEREENAT -

1.1 Organizational Structure
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1.2 Internal Control and Risk Management

PIEBFE R R B PR

The Company strictly complies with the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) of the Stock Exchange. We have identified and evaluated the main risks from the external environment and
within the Company, have monitored the adequacy, rationality and effectiveness of our risk management system to
enhance our risk management control and prevention capability.

The Company has established a fairly integrated and effective internal control system from the company level to each
business process level, which provides a reasonable warranty for the legal compliance of the business operations,
assets security, as well as the integrity and completeness of financial reporting and the related information of the
Company.

ARABBRBREBRAERERTIRERE ARG ([REEATA)) B - YREIIMBRBEMARBR AN ERRE
BUETTREBIMGE - HEEERREEBRORENE  SEMEMARIE - A RRIEFIMETHEES o

BAT AARMAFEHNERTELETAR  RAREERSEBRIZBEIEL T R0 R EHEH R 28 R E
EE#RE  REARRKEERNAEAH  BERE  UBRERBAEANEE  TBERTAERE -

Improving the Management of Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance data and
information

IERER - HERERHBEENNEE

Through the Development Committee and its Sustainable Development Working Group, the Board coordinates ESG
management, formulates long-term effective ESG approaches, sets feasible ESG goals, and integrates the sustainable
development policies into the daily operations of the Company.

EXREERZEGNAEEENTHEERIE M SEBRE HSRERERIE  HERMAMNRE HENE
JRITE  REFATHERE HERERAR YR HERRBEEBARRARNATES 2D

Coordination and Management of Departments
BRPT thh (5] & 3

The data and information required for ESG reporting covers areas such as procurement, construction, human resources
and sales. Cross-departmental flow of certain information within the Company may be difficult where the information may be
obtained from different departments with different methodologies. The Company further improves the efficiency of ESG data
management by establishing a collaborative framework for ESG data management of each department and appointing a
specialized contact person for ESG data to be responsible for departmental data collection and updating.

RBE  HEREAREMERFENBEMNERRERE  2E - ANER  HESFRE  AULBENBUBBLEARNES
FlzfrER - ARSI 2RNERERODEAETE B - ARFEBERZIPIRE  HEREBERNEEBIERE -
RERE  HENERENEMIMEARENMIERKSE  EFSTHE £ PRERR HERELAENEEREX -

Enhancing External Cooperation

@S REE

Based on the measurement indices and models of professional ESG institutions, and combining its own actual circumstances,
the report content is being improved to ensure the professionalism and integrity of the disclosed information. By strengthening
communication with professional corporate governance institutions, the Group can keep abreast of the management of
industry ESG indicators and improve its own ESG management standards.

ERRE MG REAEERENABEENER LA FERBATEREAND  RERBAMOFTE EE7TEL -
BBMREARRIZEXMBHRR  REBRRITERE H@RELMEREEEN  BABSRE HeREANER
IKHE o
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a Introduction of Professional Training

S| AEREI

» o«

The Group endeavours to focusing on “Sustainable Development and Capital Markets”, “Sustainable Development Ratings”,
“Environmental Indicator Analysis of Major Rating Indices”, “Corporate Environmental Responsibility Management Practices”,
“Climate Risks in the Real Estate Value Chain”, and specific applications in sustainable development and operation, especially
core issues such as localization practices under the framework of Sustainable Development Goals. The Group also invites
ESG environmental experts to provide theme-based training to the Group’s management and the Sustainable Development

Working Group involved in the preparation of the Report.
REBBNBRE[AIFHEFREEATS | [AIHERRAR]  [TEFREHNRFEESN ] [2ERFEXEEE

B [EEEEE LNRERR] ARTHEERELTHARER  LEREUKERREGERTHAL(CERSR
DR BRERE  HERERZREENERUAREER ERRERES MO A FHEER T MUETTO Z8E -

e N

\-

Dedicated training on ESG subjects for listed companies was successfully held
FHARRE - g RERFEEIIER A

On 15 October 2015, the Company’s dedicated training on ESG subjects was held in Hong Kong and led by senior expert
consultants in the industry. The Board of Director Office of Shenzhen headquarter and the designated personnel of each
centre, as well as the heads and related personnel of the Sustainable Development Working Group from branches located in
various cities joined the training online.

RZZ-—F+A+HEA  ARFRZERR - HERERFRBIESTERR  ATEERNERER IR - RIIEHES
EMAE  BPOLERAR  UESBRERTRARZAIRKEEZRIHEMEBEAREBBAERR L2 -

a Investors Engagement

REESH

¥ 6.1 Materiality Assessment
ZETE
Issues of stakeholders’ concern are constantly updated as the market and environment change. By reference to market
trends and daily communication with stakeholders, and after internal discussions with the Board, a total of twenty-
seven (27) sustainable development issues were identified during the Reporting Period. Materiality assessments were
also conducted to identify the most important and relevant ESG issues involved in the operation of the Group. By in-
depth understanding of the expectations of various stakeholders of the Group, more appropriate business strategies
were formulated. The Group followed the below three (3) steps to assess the importance of issues to the stakeholders
and the business of the Group through a questionnaire survey:

BOEBINZERZMSMRENNEM THER - RIBELXEMHBY HAEFHEER  UREBEZETHNRN
Tz EREHEARHEAINE TN ENFERREE  WETEBMTE - UHHIAEEELRKITS &
AREEMHBANRE AghEREE  FABRBRSHEOEEAEENHE  DGFIUERBE I LLERE - A5EB8
MBEAE AN - BEUAT= Q) ESRIHHEHAEERFHEREAEEEBNES M -
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Step 1: Process of Collecting views from Stakeholders

B—F  WEFHERRZR

1. Distributed questionnaires to each stakeholder to understand the ESG issues they were frequently exposed to,

and stakeholders were asked to rate the materiality of the issues concerned.
MERFHERERS  BRALCPEBNRR 1 gRELMEE  BUMUEEZENEEEELTS -

° The “Glory Sun Land Sustainable Development Questionnaire 2021” was dispatched online and offline
to government organisations, property owners/customers, suppliers/partners, investors/shareholders,
charitable organizations/institutions, sub-district offices of the community and other stakeholders to collect
relevant opinions.

VAR ER T AR RBITHE - 2 8P - fER S1ERH  REE RR - AmAls g - 1L
BEEMNREMFENERE [ - -FEENEMARERRIERS ] ARKEHEBRNER -

° Collected opinions from employees in the Group online through the internal communication system of the
Company.
RABACEADBBARS R IEEREEANNBE TEENER

2. Analyzed the results of the questionnaire survey and relevant opinions, combined the stakeholder feedback
obtained from the above channels in daily operations, and finally compiled a matrix according to the materiality of
the issues to stakeholders and business.

HREHEERTIEEERETHN Ao AREET R LMEENENFEHELE  SERBERLHROE
MEBHEE M REIERE o

3. Materiality assessment results were reviewed and confirmed by the management and the Board in response to
stakeholders’ concerns.

ERUFAERBEEEREFEERNER - UREFHNENRT -

Step 2: Prioritizing topics for the Board’s review

BIE BEFFER

Analyzing the results of the questionnaires, evaluating the materiality priority of the topics and generating the materiality
matrix as in accordance with the materiality of the topics to the stakeholders or the impact on the business of the
Company.

HEBHEERETHON  BEEBRENEEETNEEN  SEARAEBNZE - FHbGEHRENESMHT
B R FBREE -

1. External experts conducted preliminary review and suggestions on the materiality priority and the materiality
matrix.

SNEBERHER M RIBEEEI T SRR

2. Submited the “Summary Report for Stakeholder’s Participation” which had included the materiality matrix and the
relating compiled data to the Board for review and changes recommendation.

AEEERIVETEZUERMFERENNBNESEBROURESTSEN  REARER
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6.2

Step 3: Preparing topics report
F=H  REBERS

The Board reviewed the latest progress of implementation based on the ESG-related objectives and targets in the
regular quarterly reports given to the Board, and conducted ESG risk assessment and management to review the
implementation progress for the selected ESG objectives. This will be summarized in the Board’s statement for the
annual ESG activities performance, which is to be disclosed in the relevant annual ESG report. Based on the results of
the materiality issue assessment, the process and result of stakeholder participation are used as a yardstick to identify
material ESG factors, so as to disclose them in the report in a specific manner.

EXeBEET L2REESNTEHTERTERE L NEAEBN B ENER - FRAAITHRIER - R
FRERE e REnERHEMNERER  BHENRE 1@ RERRRETERRN - REERFERE - #Ha Rk
ERTHEBEANESTSEN  YRERFEIRE HE8REARETHE - KEE2UHBATER - UHHHE
SENBIERERMEHERBRIERRE - H @ REAREMNER]  HMAERS PETEHHE R RE -

Identification of Material Topics
BEEZ | HE

For purpose of understanding the impact of the Group’s business on different sustainability topics, according to the
guidelines of the Stock Exchange, Global Reporting Initiative Sustainability Reporting Standards, the peer analysis and
the media reports, we have ultimately identified a total of twenty seven (27) potential substantive topics to form a topic
database with regard to environmental, social and economic aspect.

The Group has taken proactive measures to support its sustainable development vision, and has acted and responded
to stakeholders regarding our material topics in ways that enabling achievement of related sustainable development
goals. The Group has also strived to ensure that its efforts on sustainable development are aligned with the broader
sustainable development background.

RERARERZBHIRAHERREAENOTE  REBIANES  2RREEFABTHEZRBERE RAE
AN RERRY - FASKERNEAR - T EEEELHBEBREERE - RERSE L ENQBENER -

AEERBEGNEERIREERNVES U RMANERERBEESNSHENDE  ARAFEERBFA
HE - ERANTFEZRTEMFENS N RERZNAFEERE SRS 3 -
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Material topics EE M8

Economic performance
EERER

Anti-corruption, bribery, blackmail,

fraud and money-laundering

RE)S - B IR - REFERBSERE

I

Urban renewal and co-construction

T R AR

Water consumption and efficiency
FKE E s

Supply chain management
e E R
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S

Climate change and greenhouse gas emissions
Rr S BR =R B

Prevention of child or forced labour
Byl T eksg i85 T

Employee recruitment and team building
8 T AR mE R

Employee remuneration and benefits

8 TH BT

Diversity and equal opportunity

ST TSRS

Listen to the needs of employees
RESIFE

Employees’ health and safety
BIRRELS

Vocational training and development
B BB R

Intellectual property rights

R ERE

Disclosure of stakeholders' views and
the company's response
BREFHENE RERNR AL EE

Level 2

BEoRE

Level 3

E

©O006 066 GD

Air pollutant emissions

ZERTRMBER

Sewage treatment and discharge

57K BE IR ER PR AR

Waste treatment and recycling
YY) B 1B B (3] 4Y

Data protection and privacy
B RHR S R L P2

Volunteer service and community building
TRERBELERER

Community communication

a2y 3]

Forest management and conservation
BIARERERE

Biodiversity

EMBZ M

Level 1
F—IBE

Materiality to the Group’s business ¥ REE¥EKWEEZ



Environmental Sustainability
REASERR

This section mainly discloses the Group’s policies, real examples and quantitative data in relation to emissions, use of resources and
environmental and natural resources during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, with the support of all stakeholders, the Group actively achieved all key performance indicators while
continuing to improve and work on various segments of sustainable development.

The following table shows the various environmental performance of the Group during the Reporting Period:
REHFERBEAEENREANE@EHERY - BRFERUKIRBERAEROBER « BOIRE(CEHE -
RBER - EARNENIRT  ARREASEERNSERRTEH TEMESNHNRAN - BEEREIEBRETUSIZAEK

TERETAEENRREHANNSIRRTRR

a Emissions
BERR

Air emissions

RE SRR

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions
R LB E
Sulphur oxides (SOx) emissions

e B s E

Particulate matter (PM) emissions
R 2

Grammes 66,277.71 264,892.57 345,322.16
7
Grammes 728.47 1,036.27 1,253.88
i
Grammes 3,444.88 18,787.00 25,750.94
%

Greenhouse gas emissions

BERBHNE

Total scope 1 emissions

HE VREREBENASE

Total scope 1 emissions/area”
WE 1 REREYRESE/ EE"

Total scope 2 emission

HE 2 ) RERBYES

Total scope 2 emission/area’
&E 2 REREHNEE/ MR’

CO,e (metric ton) 207.76
ZE iR E = (AHE)

CO,e (metric ton)/sg.m. 0.004 n/a n/a
—& kiR E (ABE) FH

NP
ZIN

CO,e (metric ton)
ZE iR E = (A8E)
CO,e (metric ton)/sg.m. 0.04 n/a n/a
—SfbixE 2 (RME)/ T

NP
ZIN

2,070.37 3,760.12 2,869.32

Total scope 3 emissions CO,e (metric ton) 55.99 126.48 100.61
HE 3 RERBEHES SRS 8 (RNE)
Total scope 3 emissions/area’ CO,e (metric ton)/sg.m. 0.001 n/a n/a
#E 3 REREHMEE/ mE" & clixEE (RWE)/ FH

K
Total greenhouse gas emissions CO,e (metric ton) 2,347.18 4,094.37 3,248.83
RERBEYIEE ZEAChRE 8 (RNE)
Total greenhouse gas emissions/area’ CO,e (metric ton)/sg.m. 0.05 n/a n/a

RERBBASIRE/mE"

— LR B (R
Fhk
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a Use of Resources

BIRER
Use of energy
CIEVRENE
Diesel consumption Litres 1,670.00 1,741.74 6,141.06
ShEMEE 7+
Liquefied petroleum gas Litres 61,308.80 11,407.43 20,226.43
consumption van
BICAHREREE
Gasoline consumption (mobile Litres 45,764.13 68,221.69 77,924.20
source) vai
OB R (B ER)
Electricity consumption kWh 3,323,537.62 6,132,835.70 4,605,140.24
B EFEE T B
Total energy used/area’ kWh/sqg.m. 65.14 n/a n/a
FREs/mE" FEE/F 5K

Use of Resources

BIRER

Water consumption Cubic meter 52,243.80 142,179.55 105,060.00

FKE SR

Water consumption/area* Cubic meter/sqg.m. 1.02 n/a n/a

K2/ EE" SR/ TR

Paper consumption Metric ton 5.11 8.52 7.37

FEHRE N

Toner consumption Kilogram 233.60 199.69 150.82

AN HFEE /NIy

Total energy used/area” kWh/sq.m. 65.14 n/a n/a
EE/MHE" FEE/FHAK

Recycling of Resources

&RE U

Paper recycling” Kilogram 220.00 n/a n/a
MomElg” NIy

Plastic bottle recycling” Kilogram 18.00 n/a n/a
BRREIRE AF

#*  New data for the Year

REFFIEZ BR

As mentioned in the paragraph headed “Changes for the Scope of the Report” above, Shenzhen Dapeng Yacht Club Company
Limited, Shenzhen Dapeng International Education Company Limited, Guangxi Baohui Property Company Limited, Guangxi Shengze
Investment Company Limited and Shenyang Baoxin no longer fall within the disclosure scope of the Report. Therefore, various
emissions and resources consumption in 2021 were significantly reduced compared to the previous years.

The total amount and density of hazardous waste substances generated in production, as well as the targets with respect to
abovementioned waste treatment methods and waste reduction indicators, the total amount of packaging materials used in finished
products, and the proportion of each production unit have no material significance in relation to the Group. Therefore, no particular
disclosure has been made.

bt TR RS ] PR RYKRBEESERAR - AKXBEREHEERAR EREEBEXARARF - EARER
EERADREGEFTBEMARNREZREGE - At - —T-—FEZZEERY - EREAREFRERD -

EEMELENESERY  BEVEEREE - UK LMEERVEREBTENRERR  KefMAeEMNEERgEESMS
ESHEREASEMESARE  HTRHEREERE
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Green Operation &

Sustainable Development
REBELHIFERRE

6 BREK R - AR
[LEZ 0 EERE

N 3fe 13 " 15 Heen
v|& Q|

The year 2021 has been the first year for China to begin the “carbon neutral” journey. “Carbon peak” and “carbon neutral” were first
included in the government work report of the NPC and CPPCC National Committee annual sessions and the top-level design of “dual
carbon” goals was announced. Under the wave of the national “dual carbon” goal, the Group actively responded to the national
call and strived to promote green and low-carbon technological innovation. Moreover, the Group strictly abided by the principles of
environmental protection, and committed to promoting the level of energy conservation and consumption reduction in the process
of building design, construction, daily management and operation, and strived to accomplish green premium building. While fulfilling
the responsibility of social development, the Group leveraged on its cultural sports projects to vigorously promote environmental
protection, and actively support environmental sustainable development. We are attentive to social welfare and environmental
protection, in addition to complying with the basic requirements of all relevant laws and environmental standards, including but
not limited to Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China. The relevant environmental protection policies and strategies are also formulated with a series of
environmental protection actions and implemented.

T FRERFAR [P EROTTF o [HEg] - [RPN ] HERXSAZBEREOBA TIERE - 2] BRTAERE
HE - EEK [5R] BRARET AEBEERRERES - SHRSDSEKRORMANET - BERETRERA - Bk
BERG  BIMARERELBRETOHERAKE  BUTEEEREEREE  BTHeRRAET  UAKEETX
BIEEAXHEBENHERERE  BEXERANIHEER  WIMSLERE  BTETHAMBEEENRARENEAE
Ko BEETRR [FEARANBEREREE] K [HEARKMBEIOSEPEE] - EHE 7T HEBORREE - KK Bi 7
RIRIRITE °

a Green Construction
REEE

The Group has been making continuous efforts in the research and development of green building and actively fulfilling its
environmental responsibility as a corporate citizen. We continue to promote initiatives such as green construction, green
building, green operation and environment-friendly workplace, and promote harmonious coexistence between people and
cities, and between cities and nature.

ARE-EAEFKERENNANARTHER S  BERTERACEARMNBIREML - RIFFERTRERT - REEE -
HEEE  BRIBRAFERSESRE  TE(RE AT - W E A RN -

¥ 1.1 Green Construction
AREEE

The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations such as Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China, Energy Conservation Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, and
standardizes and guides the environmental management of all projects. We follow the space construction concept of
environmental protection, energy conservation and sustainable development, and are committed to creating green,
healthy, ecological and harmonious architecture with a humanistic atmosphere.

AEBBBET [PEARKMEREREE]  [FEARKNMBERRZEFEE]  [MEARKMBEHORRE] -

[REARKMBASRIAE] SERER - HEBRBRFERMARGRIEE - RIFVEERR - £ - TRHERR
MZEREREER  BONTERERE - RN - AXREREZESR -
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During the construction process, the environment and needs of neighbouring communities should be considered
comprehensively to reduce the impact on air, water and land during construction and create a clean, tidy, comfortable
and safe construction environment.

In terms of waste treatment, according to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Group actively participates in the publicity and implementation of waste
separation in response to the government, adopt the waste separation mode based on local conditions for projects
across China, and make due contributions to the construction of resource-saving and environment-friendly society.

From 2022 to 2026, a pilot waste separation programme is to be launched for certain projects to enhance the
participation of property owners, tenants and residents, and raise the waste separation rate of the community to over
80%.

During the Reporting Period, there were no incidents of significant negative impact on the environment and natural
resources and no violations of any environment-related laws and regulations.

EHTBRPEAZERENEEAERE R REETHMAER /K THNFE  258% 82 585 %2
BIpE TIRE o

FEREEYEIESE - KE [PEARKNMBEERESAREN L] BRERRZRA - S2HEAFHOBNTEEY
17 H2REREE A ERRESE S EER - HERGBOE - RERFUTSNERMEEENER -

CECCHFF-TORF  HAMHBNRSE  NREE  EFREF2E  ReHEBENROSBEREREH 2T
Fo

RBEME - AEBERBEEHRBLRRABEREREAAAZENEN - BEMERBREEBAEINERBR

4 @
/ \
)
]
\ ' Compliance Management in Construction

REAHRER

During the construction, green construction procedures such as the dust prevention facilities, sewage treatment, garbage
transportation, water saving and energy saving were reviewed and examined. Complete dust removal and haze reduction system

and sewage

treatment system were equipped, to attain the “Six One-Hundred-Percent Requirements”

ERUBIEP B BEERRGE - J5UKERIE - BIROME - EUKENRE SR B TIREETEERE - YRAE T TEMMRERERBMTK
BRIEZRGE - WENEBasAE] -

® Ensure 1

00% construction site fencing rate

e T3R5 EHE R ZE] 100%

® Ensure 1

00% road hardening rate on site

BRI (L RIZEER] 100%

® Ensure 1

00% materials coverage rate on site

T RE & FEEI100%

® Ensure 1

00% sprinkle water cleaning rate on site

S REBFIRRERZR100%

® Ensure 1

00% vehicles cleaning rate on site

A HEERER 100%

® Ensure 1

00% dust removal application rate of spray dust removers throughout the project period

HE 2 THMEEHRERRERARES100%
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Measures for Prevention and Treatment of Pollution
FasaS5 it

During construction, the environmental management of each project shall be standardized and under guidance, the environmental
factors in operation activities shall be identified and evaluated, and control procedures shall be implemented for environmental risk
factors.

ETHERIARREEEMARERIEE B WFHEEHELRDTNRERNR - HRERBEZNITENEF -

® During the course of project operation and administration, we actively take measures to improve the efficiency of resources and
energy use and reduce emissions of pollutants.
FEIH B EL PN BIZT - BRI RS ERMEEERNE AW « A5 R -

Q

=)
"' =il Waste Treatment
© D~

ERYEE

~

The Group controls waste discharge from the source, and takes strict treatment control measures. Waste separation and collection,
and proper disposal are proceeded based on different policies of different cities of the different projects.

WRTABRETTRE R B DR S - WIREEAR MR B RS IE - IR T RIAR A ST T RBERETTHIR D BIRES ZZ0IE -

® Construction wastes are stored in fixed location and coverage measures are taken, regular cleaning and legal treatment are also
in place.
HERENF - ERERIRIREBEEE G - THEETETEERE -

® Hazardous wastes are placed stored in special warehouse. Regular inspections are carried out and professional organisation
with hazardous waste treatment qualification are engaged to handle the waste collectively on a periodic basis.

HYERERY  BRETEETN  THRE  UBFAALREVMEEERNEXEE TG —EE -

Case

=6 ~N

Weinan Project, in order to ensure the protection of cultural relics, a professional organisation was introduced to prepare a
cultural relics survey report before construction. Shenzhen Baoxin Building project, dust-proof fencing sprays were in place
on the construction site to effectively reduce the impact of construction site dust on the neighbourhood air quality. The use
of prefabricated buildings can reduce on-site construction procedures, save scaffolding and template operations to save
building materials, reduce on-site labour demand, resources consumption and negative impact on the neighbourhood
environment of the construction project. In the backfilling stage of Yunfu Yuelanshan project, air pollution index may rise, so
it is proposed to adopt efficient dust control solution so as to increase sprinkler frequency, and cover all bare sail.

BRER - BT HEREXNFRE - AL AZERRBERXDBHERE - RYEFAEHRE - THREREHERER
W BRERETIHESEAEERNTE - RARKARE U RSHITIER - HEMNFRARBAEEEMEE R
SR BABRBANTEFR  ERFEAARERTIRR FERENEETE - BFURILIAR DR LEERATESEKER
BRIEEES  RRASRNBERAES R - BINEKER  RE2HEE -
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¥ 1.2 Green Building

REZE

We strictly follow national and provincial architectural design standards and norms, compare with excellent cases,
organize teams to study and research, and inject new green building elements into the Group’s new projects to create a
healthier and more comfortable living environment.

We actively respond to the national call for energy conservation and emission reduction, and add a large number of
energy-saving and water-saving devices in the projects. Through the sunken green space, rain garden, vegetation
shallow ditch and other ecological landscape and catchment zoning facilities, collect and store rainwater, to reduce
runoff discharge. Moreover, the use of photovoltaic power generation system, solar water heating system and air
source heat pump system, would achieve the ultimate goal of energy saving, water saving, material saving, emission
reduction and harmonious coexistence with the environment. The commercial catering oil fume exhaust system of its
Shantou regional project is equipped with instant monitoring and purification system. By 2024, all commercial projects
in Shenzhen Baoxin Building will be equipped with real-time monitoring and purification devices, and all new commercial
projects will be equipped with air purification systems.

Among them, Shantou Eastern Coast Project; Building No. 1 of Shantou Chaoyang Project; and Shantou Financial
Centre Project all meet the one-star requirement of green building design evaluation standard.

By 2023, the “300 Humanistic Details” design guidelines will be compiled for residential projects.

AR EEER R EFRERARENREL - HREFRY - AEEKEBFHR - AAKENFIRB T AT
= REERE  SEMARRE -

BRSO ERIRE RPN A - EHE P IMAKREHEEKKE © BB T - FKEE - EREEFER
SEMEKD @R - ARMATERK - ZERDERINEOIER - R - AR EERS - ABREAVKES - =
RRRRZESRE - KLZEDIEEE - 67K 806 RBERERBAFELEOREB M - ETLEREIEROEAEERY
HIE R E BN EDRI A R BERIE R E R AT © 2024 5 A1 - IRINEHTAEIR B AT A 278 B MRS G DN RNES BRI R kR
FERE - IEMEREARBREERFLERL -

Hep - ISERERIER OUSEHEIEE —512 - JOISBEERP OER SN AR ARG ERE—EREK -

RZZFZ=FA1  (EEHE BHERTK(300BAE AN )ERFTES] -

On 18 June 2021, the senior management
of Shantou Company led the heads of each
centre to visit the site of China Resources Mixc
Project.

KRB —FRATNB  BERREGEHK
BEHRLBEEA  FEHERMIAR THRGE

25325
AT ©

7~
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a Green Operation
REEE

The Group implements the whole life cycle environmental management from design, construction, operation to management.
While ensuring basic requirements such as quality and safety, we adhere to the green operation, maximize resources saving,
reduce the negative effect on the environment, and promote the sustainable development of the living, life, environment with
innovative ideas and innovative outcomes.

During the process of project construction, the Group shall continue to promote the preliminary planning and management of
energy consumption and energy efficiency of projects, and introduce green building design to the office projects in the early
stage, which can reduce the power consumption of the relevant projects by about 10% year-on-year, involving garage lighting,
in-building area lighting, equipment room lighting, elevator inverter, etc.

AEEE IR B MR - B &
1

CERNRAGBHNRARER  ERERE  RE2FEAZRWART @ BEZE
B RARESHOER ROH &m

&
BNAETE LRI RTGEAR - B8 - RENTHEEE -

AEEEIRR ERGBIET - FAEHEIA R RN ATREEEE - sTHEMATRE %I)\ﬁ?@@i&&ﬁ EAHARR B MEIH
FERLLRD10%TE - PREERA - BATRRE  REFRA - EHEHES

2021 Changchun Baoxin Wealth
—ET_—fF Total area Centre Project
Green landscape TS REBNV=H0OIEE
maintenance around183 500m2 around 2 ZUUmZ
M RBRE
Shantou Financial Centre Shantou Chaoyang
Yunfu Villa Project Project Project
FRIEIEE ISR AP OIE B BRI 18 B

= 10 000m* 710,300m* 5 17,900m?

Shantou Eastern Coast
Changsha Project Project Weinan Project
RPIEA SEER G A B SRR

5 30,000m? 5 36,200m? " 77,000m?

While promoting green operation and construction, the Group actively participates in all kinds of environmental publicity
activities to call on more people to participate in the action of protecting the ecological environment.

REEEHEREEE BZENAR  BRES2HEZPRRLBZETGLY  WEEEZ AARSERELERENTE

W
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Eco-friendly Workplace
BRI RIS

¥ 3.1 A Green-Friendly Work Mode

AREMRIER

To enhance an awareness of green office and to install a sense of preservation and to reduce wastage among all staff, a
lean structure is to be introduced into the company’s administrative logistics. All workplace property services, water and
electricity costs are deduced based on the basis of the number of people being covered. Measures include inspection
and maintenance, transformers management, and putting air-conditioning switches under master control, with
energy-saving signs posted for notice in public area. The application, procurement, and distribution of office items are
conducted in strict accordance with the company’s office supplies release standards. The Company is set to improve
its procurement plans to cut ad hoc requests, reduce inventory, and to shorten requisition frequencies; to recycle
used office supplies from employees leaving the company for reuse; to encourage trade-in used items while making
applications for office supplies.

In addition, the Company promotes the implementation of paperless offices. Data is to be archived in paperless
approach through electronic archiving. All filing materials are to be stored and transmitted in electronic formats; all
materials are to be printed in black-and-white and in double sides on paper.

The Company also advocates low-carbon business travel, and often requires employees to take high-speed trains,
public transportation and other forms of rountine travels (short-distance cross-city travel) as much as possible; it
advocates the priority use of public transportation for travel, and advocates combined itinerary travel.

AUV 2 EHZERDED  BREOVED  HERE  VEHRBITHRSBRLER - BISWERY - KEEZAUR
BABMENE - EanEEE BTEEES  AE=RRE  AHRERRESEFRS TN BRRRAFMAR
mECERAERE - IREE B IRITRBE M BRRR TR REET - REERER  HERE TR RS
EITEN - ABEMEREEAM ¢ A R R E A R -

HETEACHD  FRENERL  RAEFEES BEXAEF L KAEFREX  JIEMHRERA(L - &E
EEmEIEN -

ARBEGERABLET  ERERETIREABINM EEBER) - BEXASE  AHAXBELA © RIEEBLER
RGBT - RIEEHHITRETT
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¥ 3.2 Action for Emission Reduction

HBHTTE

The Company vows to advocate the concept of green development and make good use of resources and energy
to create a low-energy consumption office space, while strengthening energy management and water resources
management by multiple approaches. Energy-saving lamps and lanterns are to be utilized in offices as much as
possible. All office staff are required to turn off the lights when leaving for the day, and turning off some lighting when
there are only a few people around, and localize distribution and management as per the department’s office location.
All computers are uniformly set to auto standby mode in five minutes, and all staff has to turn off their computer units
and displays before leaving for the day. The temperature of all air conditioners is preset to above 26 degrees in summer
and below 18 degrees in winter. Air conditioners are to remain off when there is no one indoor, and windows should
not be opened when turning on the air conditioner. All air conditioners are to be turned off twently minutes in advance
before leaving the office. Water use in the office area is to be strictly monitored, with regular inspection and maintenance
of water pipe networks, thereby reducing the wastage of water resources through dripping and leaking.

The Group requests project companies to reduce the density of water resource consumption through technical
optimization and through usage saving technologies, and adopting less water consuming equipment so as to realize
the circular utilization or reuse of water resources and improve usage efficiency. The Group will also implement a water
resource utilization efficiency plan and formulate annual targets for water resources consumption.

All project companies of the Group vow to achieve the annual goal of “reducing water consumption density by 3% by
2024 (based on 2021), reducing carbon emissions by 3% by 2025 (based on 2021), and reducing water density by
5% (based on 2021)”, and propose management and technical measures to improve the efficiency of the use of water
resources, and to promote the implementation of measures down to the earth.

BERETREERES  ERERMER - BHITERERNAEMN - ZHEIRERERE KERER - WABH
BECAGEER  2FMOABTIIRVEARE - APKBAFRORIAE - RAPFIR AL EETE DR ERE
BRA—REAVEEDEAGEES - TUIABEAEMIR BRERE  ZHETH  EFRE_TRENUL £
FHNERT  ENEARTRZER - FEHERTFEME - THIRERN - T #RF=S - B EERARAK
B EHRSHERKER  BRIE T B RERBEKERNER -

AEBEENRIFER RRIRBEBCTE - BRI - KAFKENNRESER - BIEKERERZE - BERKERBR
FMALBNA - BIHEANE - Bk ERERRGFTE - SIRKERERFERR

AEBEWTRAGNER [ T _NFHRKBEREAEDZ=(A 2= —F/EE) - —T - RAFAHRIEMIEE

BAZ=AZZ2-—FRE%E) KEEREEDCHEUZZ—FRE%) | R2FEZEE  REKEREAX
s A ER MBI - SHEEEEE o
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a Green-friendly Enterprise
BRERFHEPHE

¥ 4.1 Dealing with Major Climate Changes
JELIEATIRE L

Climate change is one of the most serious challenges facing the world. Rising temperatures and extreme weather are
threatening society and our business operations. The Group regularly reviews the impact of climate change on its daily
business operations, and is committed to adopting various environmentally friendly operating measures to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions and the pressure caused by global climate change. At the same time, we will actively assess
and manage climate-related operational risks and improve our ability to adapt to climate change. During the Reporting
Period, the Board of Directors began to identify climate-related risks that could lead to financial and operational
disruptions and include them in the monitoring list.

RIREBC T R PAERKERKE 2 — - RE LT RERRRERBECEARBMNERLE - AEEFEDE
BERIEZCHERREBLENTE  YBNRNSBELRRNEERE - IR AEREHB I RIRRAIRE
{OERRE S - BRI - ARG G REERERRARNEERR - YiRERMHRIRECHERES - £
SR EFEREHA ARV RLETENORRARER - WHEAASIEBE -

Physical
Risks
ERER

Climate Types Potential Financial Impacts Countering Measures

RiREE BEMBR e E

Acute Typhoon and 1. Slowing work progress, leading to overtime | 1. Reinforce duty roaster system, and safety
2% rainstorm, pay and other compensation losses. maintenance during typhoon and rainstorm
snowstorm, hail, THEESYE  EREIBNELTREE and be timely aware of sudden flooding,
strong wind, Bk o disasters and dangers occurrence and
thunder, fog, 2. Equipment and personnel suffering injuries development.
sandstorm and casualties under natural disasters with hnsgReE RRHRERHENZ2HRE
BEST - & CONOMIG losses. B REBINNE - HE - RIBHB A
KB K éwﬁméﬁ%%&%;ﬁ% - ZIN-T- IR
’—L CERAR R FEigk o 2. Well prepared for all possible flooding and
®OER g Repairs required for damaged structures| ~ disasters. Implement hazard preventive
leading to additional cost. measures proactively.

EU TR S (TS - IR A o HABEHRMAE KEBBRD LR -
&R = BN S E TR A -

3. Ensure sufficient manpower of staff on duty
and warming equipment during business
suspension at winter times.
RELXFRGERAE - ANFTR - BIRER
IRERIETEE °

4. To ensure on-site safety checks and be
aware of weather changes for urgently
suspending construction and transfering
labour and equipment to safe locations.
HMFBRS L2 EIE - MBI XREL &
FiZIEMEEET - A8 - REEBIZ 2
e,

5. Fastening of materials and equipment stored
on-site and on high level at stormy weather.
K BRI TE 4737 %5 I = 22 CE MR I %
1 e
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Physical
Risks
ERAER
Chronic
181

Climate Types

RirgH

High
temperature,
cold ware at low
temperature

Potential Financial Impacts

BEMBE

Slowing work progress, leading to overtime
pay and other compensation.
ITHEEXZE SRNEIERERATHE

18 e

—

Countering Measures

e iR e

Utilizes coagulant to ensure cement quality;
issue summer-proof medicines to workers;
works to be undertaken by workers under
ordinary temperature; Maintenance and

inspections to be arranged for machineries.
FRERAIRRFIRRLME  BELIAR

=@ N N ) L .
= - FFER | 2 Personnel suffering injuries and casualties

leading to damages.

ABERIET  EEREER - BB E M BT ABRBREERE
3. Short-circuit leading to fire and other T I RIRIRIS « BRI
FRBIRETAE -

disasters and property losses.
B EER A S B - EEERK - |2
4. Quality issues caused by low temperature

leading to rework cost.
EREXNmEREEERTIER -

To ensure cement temperature through
coagulant; properly monitor cement
temperature and undertake works according
to weather conditions.

PR T RORFEM - (AL EER
SRETERRE  BERBRARSEETH
Eo

The Sustainable Development Working Group reports to the Board on a quarterly basis on the level of risks in ESG,
including climate change, and has preliminarily formulated response strategies and preventive measures for the
identified risks and opportunities in order to adapt to trends in climate change and alleviate the impacts of climate
change.

AREERTHENMEFENETEERBEREECEANERE  HEMERBBEANRL
MR SIS - VIPRUE T RE R - AERRRE(CBBIREREECTE -

KA - WETEERIH

Energy Structure and Applications:
BEIRAEBEEAER

According to the national plan and the 2060 carbon neutrality target, it is expected that China will table more aggressive
goals for green buildings and building energy consumption. The increasing national carbon reduction targets and policy
requirements will pose certain technical risks to the Group.

The adoption of energy-saving and consumption-reducing, renewable energy building designs and building materials,
energy-saving retrofits of existing building equipment, and self-development of green design technologies and patents
will further raise R&D, design, development and other construction costs. At the same time, improvements to be made
on the environmental performance of existing buildings will also lead to additional costs and technical constraints.

BREBEZRE XU R —TARTFHRPME R - B ESHHEReREMEERRIRLELERNBER

MR BN B S A S B R — e il o

B 2R B AR

RAENREIEFE - AT BARRNBT R LEEMH - BRFEFTREETHRIENRBTREF LR M EE
il i’JH IR - RRE - FBEEERAN - AF - RERARENRBRBCSEERBINRKAMEARS] o
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To deal with the situation as above, the Company has realized real-time monitoring of energy source data of public
and leased areas through re-adapting the energy management systems of self-supporting projects in operation. The
Company seeks to formulate enterprise long-term goals to promote green buildings in accordance with the guidance
of national policies, and gradually phase-in annual goals. The Company looks to establish an incentive mechanism to
encourage projects to carry out high-level/high-tech green building practices. The Company also seeks to summarize its
practical experience in green buildings over the years, and establish standardized processes for enterprises and roll out
standardized products, in order to achieve goals in quality improvement, costs reduction, and efficiency enhancement in
its green building tasks.

AEE EMEE KRR BAYHTELERFEEREREERAMETRE  ERAEBRHARERIEEFESANRER -
BRIEBRRBREOFECEEESCRENRHEE  UBRPRUFEEEZ - 2 HEEHEEERERS S
i EEREER REFTHEERERLS  EULEZELRE  WAIRELER  ERGEIERE - BA -
HHEE -

On Legal Aspect:
EEREE -

The government may introduce a new series of regulations relating to the protection of environment and the alleviation
of harsh climate effects. Enterprises may amend their relevant business models or be ready to bear higher operating
costs. They need to seek further legal advice and bear additional operating costs.

The Company will pay close attention to whether the relevant government departments have issued any new
regulations. The Company will proactively adjust the operating model of enterprises and shift towards low-carbon
environmental protection to meet the development direction of future government plans.

E&W‘J“bﬁé%ﬁm*%ﬁlﬁﬁi%%%ﬁ* ERB S RIEERRERIED - DEBE A RENEEEEBRAITHES D
BERAK - CEFESKEZINERER  YNHEZHEZEEBLMRA -

ARBBEZIREIRARBAPIREH LEFNERERED - BRABRLZEFERN - PEKRRDAEE - AR
BARRBITHREIHERER

On Technological Aspect:

R EE

The construction industry is one of the main sources of carbon emissions in China. How to make construction “go
green” and energy-efficient operation shall be a key component of the dual-carbon strategy.

The national strategy of carbon neutrality and carbon peak will raise the Company’s financial costs. Therefore, the
Company is proactively formulating its near- and long-term plan and actively contacting the local government to
understand its dual-carbon policy, while proactively managing its relationship with suppliers, social groups, and the
media to achieve win-win among all parties.

BRETERPEMPFMNEIERL 2 — - IAEEE [ 5] MEELETT - B LLMBBPREZN—#D

BRERA -~ BROZIE B R B R IGINAR R ERA o Bt - KABABMIFLERRE - TSHERE BT - BRE
BT RV EERRBOR - TRIB ML - (B - HEEE - REZMEEE - BERZTHE -
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On Marketing Aspect:
TISEE -

The market is evolving in a rapid pace. It is imperative to adapt to changes in the market to align the supply and
demand relationship between commodities and suppliers. Looking forward, the Company will develop near- and long-
term plans and proactively observe and grasp even the most subtle changes in the market, and re-select suppliers that
meet the market environment and the Company’s requirements. These measures will gear the Company’s products
towards market requirements, and meet the needs of the market and the public and environmental protection.

MZRCHEET - MEERMENE(L  URAEHmMHERNHERR  BEFEE - KR - ARRHUFIER
HE - BB AR TISEMAMNE L  SMEETEMERERARAEROMER - UEARBERMEIFT

BMHER  REMHRRMIRFREF K o

¥ 4.2 Bio-diversity Protection
EYZ IR E

The Company works alongside government departments, professional institutions and other forces to implement
biodiversity conservation and carefully protects the balance of the earth’s ecosystem. Strictly abiding by the “Land
Management Law” and other land development laws and regulations, the Company is especially sticking to the bottom
line in the development of green spaces, brownfield development, biological diversity, cultural protected areas and
other related areas. At the same time, the Company is committed to protecting the biological diversity around the
development projects, and taking into account their impact on the environment during the whole construction cycles,
and considering the adoption of nature-friendly designs in the new development projects while meeting economic
benefits.

ARARBABUFHR BERBESEZ T NE  BHEBELVZHEUEREERERE - BOTEMKERAFNTE  Bi8E
S EEIRE | ERRTMFRBOLEER - FRIRENGMAE - FRRE  £WZHE - UEREESHEAT
BTIRAR - AISHEIRERMBIRE AENEYMZENL  ERE2BHRZERHEYRENTE AN EERENERT
BN ERRIA R RARN B ARG

Case

£ N

The practising course of Baoxin Golf is
situated alongside the scenic Xixiang Sports
Center with a total project area of more than
50,000 sgm. The project looks to protect
human health through filtering solar radiation;
to consolidate embankments through
reducing soil erosion; to purify water sources
and improving soil; to regulate the ecological
environment of the micro-climate; to reduce
noise; and to purify the atmosphere and
natural oxygen.

BNRBANRESEERAREXNAMES
RE - BREEESEZFIIK - HEBEBR
DRIGERSS - (REALRIERR - BAKLRK -
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Customer First,

Cooperation for Win-win
EFZL GEHR

17 R RRERN

RS

The Group emphasizes a green business philosophy to adapt to new changes in consumer demand and increase high-quality
products and services through multiple channels to respond to people’s new expectations for a better life. Under the current
situation, the Group’s business development should focus on gaining further insight into the underlying market dynamics, and be
highly sensitive to the core elements that affect the development of the industry, such as policies, population, and industries. The
Group should be forward-looking to explore in-depth user needs and develop diversified, thematic, and characterized service
projects to create a more mature, differentiated, and diversified product eco-system, thereby crafting out good branding experience
that exceeds customer expectations, and satisfy customers’ higher pursuit of quality of life.

AEERTHEEEES  NERBEBFIHNE (L  SEEENEEERTIRYE - REEARYXIFEENNGT - EEATE
T AREEXBHRENAZTSERNEERR  HRETEEROROER  IHEK - AQD  EXZE2SEHE - BN
Rt REZEAPHRR - MEZHEL - TR  BEENRBER - TEEMME - 2R - ZIUENERER - THEBLE
FHfFemieiEs  meErPHRmEEinESER -

a Realize the commitment to a happy life
HIRSERETEAR

Impacted by the pandemic and new industry movements during the Year, the Company’s projects still adhered to the guiding
principle of “Overcoming difficulties to the best of one’s abilities”. Under the mission to “build each project into a benchmark
that represents best quality”, we meet the personalized needs of consumers “in every form with unique needs”. The Group
also vows to closely follow through even the finest of detail in design and manufacturing. It serves to not only fulfill customer’
expectations for a better life, but also demonstrates the accountability of the Company’s brand.

We have always paid attention to the experience and feelings of the property owners, and hope to witness the growth of
families in partnership, and work together to precisely carve out every moment of a happy life. During the construction
process, project open days will be carefully prepared for property owners and potential customers. The on-site project heads
will lead property owners, customers, and media representatives to visit the garden landscape, and to examine building
designs, monitoring and security setups, power distribution loops, etc., and be briefed on project progress and on-site details,
so that all visitors may fully experience the ecological residence to be delivered in due course. While helping the property
owners to gain exposure to our quality, these activities also reflect our readiness to accept the test of time and customers’
oversight, so that the property owners can feel relieved, at ease and worry-free about the construction process of their
residence.

REERRBEHBEMTEERNFET » ARARSBBRARE [HEB R | 051K RA - BN [ESEEE EITERRE
BT BEw - RMBBEEE [ TATH] WEREHER  ERFIRITHCRER ENEMN—ERASHNEH - MERRTE
FHIEBERFERNMEG  FERTENRENEEEE

HAAOIEETNRBRET  FREET —RAREROKE - KRB OMEKERBLEENSERE - EeTEEZTSHL
RETMEBEEFPEFRBFARAGES BHERBAEATERT TP KEARFAAULRZ2BEMNZE  BFER+ &
Rl RS - YNERERMRSAN RESATRDBRIKINOERERF - FXEMEERMANBIREN
RIES - RN EZHRNZRETPNES  EEAXIHRNEEBREIL - ZOMED
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Property owner in Shenzhen interviewed by media
R B ERARE T RRRD

: "
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On 29 June 2021, the Chang Chun Bao Xin banquet
and the opening of the Art and Styles Exhibition Centre
were simultaneously debuted and followed by reception
to mainstream media and fellow property owners.
RZZBZ—FRAZTIB  RFEEHHESRO O
ZEEBIEN | R mE e BB AR [ 5 Ak S BB
BOBREREBNMEEZRRAHARARBZTE—FA -

On 29 September 2021, Tower One of Chao Yang
Project of the Shantou Company has its structure

topped as scheduled.
RZZFZ—FNAZ+NAB  JLERFESGEE —5%
AR ER TR A ETTE -

On 12 June 2021, the new Block No. 11 of the phase Il of
Wei Nan Project was launched with splendid success.
RZZE-_—FX ATZH EERBEHREHEER
B+ SR mpA AR R EE o
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On 30 June 2021, the foundation of Shenzhen Baoxin
Mansion was laid down as scheduled.
RZBEZ—FNA=+H RINEFKNEBBBERE
TIER|ZER -

On 1 October 2021, the Block T1 office building in the
southern district of the Eastern Coast Project of the
Shantou Company was formally delivered in a grand event.
RZZEZ—F+A-HB - WBERARREFEEERTI
& 55 AR R B R R & ED o
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In the post-pandemic era with the emerge of new consumers’ trends as well as the accelerated integration of online and offline
consumption scenarios, the consumer market is clearly at a stage of major transition and upgrading. Consumers are now
paying more attention to personal health and are more willing to maintain a healthy lifestyle. The Group is able to grasp these
shifting consumer trends in a timely manner and throughoutly understand consumers’ needs, so as to quickly and accurately
capture ever-zigzagging consumers’ psyche. Focusing on the theme of “healthy life” in the post-Pandemic era, the Group has
mapped out three key purposeful consumption orientated establishments: KTV, children’s playroom, and fitness room. These
new projects have altogether realized a solid and diversified portfolio of multi-facial health-focused entertainments to meet the
upgrading consumer demands.

BERBER  OEBEREREL SR TEBSRINERAS @ MR TEHEMSHEE - SHEME - BFBEEESREA
R YERBRFERAENEETN - AEERKEETEZLAEEBE  RAEMOEBET K - EE(LhRRLERE
WIEBER LR - BRERIBRAN [EELE ] TRERRERNMR  TRIMNET KV REBELE  5g=XK8nK
HEXRNLE  ERBRERUNRFERES TEE  BREBE TSNS REEERE -

On 1 June 2021, the Group’s own amusement park
brand, the Xiao Mutong Xili Store, has met another
holiday peak in passenger flow. With concrete Pandemic
prevention and control measures and smooth guests
reception in place, a new record was set for a single-
day visitor flow and revenue again.
RIZZZ—FRA—B AEESEELEME — M
EFEBEIRX —ARARRSE - 7D MEFEIEN
RV AT NIEF TR EE S TIE - B AR R R EWEE R
T SE 40 8% -

On 6 November 2021, Xin Dong Neng Fitness Room
Sungang Global Exchange Store was launched in a
grand ceremony.

RZTE_—F+—HARB  FIiEsSaERRE
JERARZE -
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On 17 September 2021, the Group's own cultural
entertainment brand — T.T. Club Xili Store was debuted
in a major event.

RZZEZ—FNA+TEE  AEBBEERME —
T.T. Club FERBJE B AR o



The Group always regards product quality, engineering quality, and safety management as the lifeblood of the Group’s
development, with strict control of quality and strives for excellence. The Group firmly believes that only through fine-crafting
of every single product and ensuring its excellent quality can earn the confidence by more consumers, and only on which the
enterprise can achieve further long lasting development. To this end, the Company has established a strong product quality
control, engineering quality control and safety production management system, which form the golden combination that
ensures ingenuity and quality.

During the Year, the “Guidelines for the Application of Residential Product Standardization Results” was integrated with the
Group’s residential projects. The Group’s office building projects has completed the one-star certification of green buildings by
2022, and the apartment projects will ensure that 100% of its new development projects to be qualified for national one-star
certification of green buildings or other higher-level certifications, with the further perfection of the Group’s apartment complex
regime. It is expected that by 2024, the residential sub-household acceptance standard documents of the Changsha project
will be revised in accordance with national norms or industry standards.

As per the relevant national industry technical standards, technical specifications have been issued for various construction
industry categories such as door and window designs, office/commercial hardcover grading standards, and residential product
standards. Before 2024, all projects involved in the Group will be implemented in accordance with the abovementioned
standards, and relevant system documentation will be continuously revised in accordance with national policies or industry
standards.

B BERME - TiEnE X2ERRATEEERNEBR - BICEE  Basfs  HMRERAROHITFE—E
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The Group is strictly abided by the “Products Quality
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Construction
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Regulations on the Quality Control of Construction
Projects”, and the “Unified Quality Acceptance
Standard of Construction Projects” (GB50300-2013),
etc., and conduct business in accordance with
relevant laws, regulations and standards. Complete
quality control procedures and system are developed
to provide customers with safe and high-quality
products to create a people-oriented living space.

Strict control of product quality from the origin is
emphasized, and the quality of materials and parts
are controlled through random inspection, special
on-site project inspection, inspection of project
safety, quality, with internal management operations
conducted through the engineering department, etc.
Along with well-rounded quality control to eliminate
safety hazards, and strict implementation of the
Group’s procedures and relevant documentation on
safety, quality, plans, skills and process management,
ensuring that controllable quality, project quality and
safety are in place, so as to ensure delivery of high-
quality products to customers.

BIRKB(PFRAREMBEERREE) (FEAR
HFBREEL) (GERIIEREEHIEE) - (BET
BT ME S —BUIZEE) (GB50300-2013) S5 454
EEFRAIZERRER - WIREESESRFRTTE
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2OMEmE  BREAOEEER  TEUABERH
HEEZER o
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The Group is strictly abided by the “Production
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Construction Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, and the “Regulations on the Management
of Production Safety of Construction Projects”,
and continuously improves the production safety
management system.

The Group values the establishment of a safety
management structure. The headquarters of the
Company has established a safety management
committee, while the subordinate companies have
established individual safety management committees
or safety management teams in combination with
their actual operations, and set up independent
safety management and supervision department.
Employees in all departments and job positions have
signed the “Safety Production Responsibility Letter” to
clarify who is responsible for safety and urge that daily
safety management measures can be implemented
down to the earth.

The Office of the Group’s Safety Committee makes
full use of monthly safety meetings, morning meetings
and WeChat work groups to promote safety
production, fire safety laws and regulations knowledge
and advanced safety production management
concepts, and actively carry out safety education
activities covering all employees, to be combined with
safety production week, safety production month and
other theme activities, effectively improve employee
safety awareness and improve risk prevention
capabilities.

BERENPEARKMERLZEZEER) (FEA
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Engineering Quality Control
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To formulate operating guidelines for material and
equipment management, and ensure that engineering
materials meet the quality requirements of design drawings
and specifications through strict and effective management
of engineering materials and equipment in a controlled
manner before and during the process.

BIEM MR EBEEEEES]  BEBRS  BREERR
TREME MREEER - FREESIEREE - HBETEN
BRI ERRRBNmERK -

v

To conducts ad-hoc inspection on incoming material
exercises. “Notice for Conducting Acceptance Inspection
for Incoming Materials” is to be issued twenty (20)
days before the commencement of inspection wherein
the inspection objectives, inspection methods and
requirements, the inspection scope, the inspection time
and the cooperation requirements by the respective
project team are clearly stated. Standard forms such as
“Score Sheet of Acceptance Inspection for Incoming
Materials”, Review Report on Acceptance Inspection for
Incoming Materials”, and “Rectification Sheet for Findings
of Acceptance Inspection for Incoming Materials” are also
provided to the units under inspection. If any materials
are being found to be unqualified, strict penial actions
including punishment on the suppliers and accountability
by the responsible employee will be taken whilst for those
reported cases with serious quality problems, the project
works concerned will be ordered to halt for rectification,
and the management warnings and notifications will also
be issued.

TEHRMEEMEEESEE RS - ERREEREN-TX
ZH(ARFEM SRR TEERREAN) TR
MARFREBREEEZ REFARER  BREWHE - &
BRME  SEMNESERE  WRHEKMEESBRIKREE
BEFDR) - (MRHESBRIN T FREEBRERE) «
ESRBERREMEERRFEER)IERBRNES - — B
WAAEME SREERANBSEE  2EEHEED
BELBRSABESTANME  UREEMRREME
ESEIEN > BHEREEREIRER -

As the Group’s business did not involve products sold or shipped that must be recovered on safety and health reasons, no

such disclosure was made.
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During the customer’s inspection stage upon completion,
we provide a set of inspection standards for customer’s
professional reference as well as arranging follow-up
repair by all construction units to provide the best services
for property owners. Specialized construction teams
are appointed to follow up the entire delivery process
by resolving ordinary problems within half an hour.
Commitment involving raw materials customization can
be delivered within a reasonable time frame (normally one
month), which is highly appreciated by the property owners.

EEPRWMEE - RERMR  FHOREET - B4R
HISIREFRETE  REFRERHEIERKE - LHE
BXmTEURRREEE - —REBES/ AR
R RMEE B AGEE A EN R ESBER T (—K—
BA)  NSRENER  RIYEETHF -
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Upon the registration of project completion, the project,
in principle, should still be subject to a 3+1 inspection
formality (Covering initial joint inspection, joint inspection
after rectification and property acceptance inspection,
inspection for delivery acceptance and final inspection
before delivery). The inspection team is composed
of Engineering Management Centre, Operational
Management Centre, Marketing Management Centre,
Property Management Unit and the local project company
team of the Group. Delivery shall be subject to the
successful acceptance upon inspection carried out by
all the concerned parties. The inspection shall be carried
out thoroughly with one check for one project and one
record for one household while inspecting each property
unit; clearly define the parts and details of project quality
problems; and strictly control the project quality. In terms
of quality problems spotted during the inspection, the local
project company/the Shenzhen Project Department will
formulate a rectification plan and urge the construction unit
to rectify and complete within the prescribed time limit.

HEERTHEETKE R LEBL=—R (B R
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Production safety-related casualties’ incidents (including casualties during
work progress) 0
EEZETAREEH(ERIERTTASFR)

Fire hazards-related injuries and casualties’ incidents

NSHE B E 0
Production safety incidents with direct economic loss of RMB100,000 or

above 0
BEREEERREARK 100,000 T RIA FHR R EERR

Social order and criminal cases

BEEVEGAREN  WERE 0
The betterment of safety management structure with corresponding
responsible officers at all levels signing production safety responsibility 100%

agreement

BEZ2EBEREE  RESRLEEBRREIA  ZiIIR2EERESE

Enforcement of Group’s safety and fire control systems and standards, with

strict enforcement through meetings/learning/training/duty/inspection/drills/
examinations/assessment/benchmarking 100%
WITRER? HBRGIE REE - g3 28 8B &E kL
BREH T R EERREIL

Completion of all safety permits and the qualifications of all safety and fire
control-related duties staff (including special duties staff, special equipment

operators, fire safety equipment operators, etc.) 100%
EELTEFRIVETHE - B E  BMERRELE THE X (FEE

EAE - FERMBRIEAR - BIRERIEAES)

Improvement percentage of major production safety hazards and fire

hazards under the Group’s direct management 100%
SEEEENNERNEELR D EREEME N BB EUE

Ensure the company’s continbution to safety expenditure and the
complection percentage of safety insurance policies 100%
BRABLZELERA T2 HERBRRTKE

Regulations-breaching design, constructions and illegal operations (project

oversight, evaluation, preparation and inspection compliance) 0

ERERE  EERER  @AEE(IEE B B REEaHE

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s products were able to maintain steady quality and there was no product recovery
due to product quality.

AEEME - AREEMRE FIRER - RERRERGSEMEKHNE
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Facing increasingly diversified consumer needs, the Group insists on serving customers with honesty and a pragmatic attitude.
The Group is continuously upgrading its lines as accordance with the needs of different business forms and customers’
groups, so that customers can fully enjoy high-quality services.

EH ARSI HHER R AEERFURE BENREREES - ST TRAERM IR ZHRHK - TEERAR - &
BEFADEXSMEMRS -

¥ 4.1 Customers’ Feedback and Response Mechanism

The Company attaches great importance to customer experience and evaluation at different stages including pre-sales,
in-sales, and after-sales. The Company has also established a professional customer services system and complaint
feedback system to cope with different business forms such as residential projects and commercial projects utilizing
membership centers, service desks, service hotlines, WeChat and other channels to accept feedback in real time, and
across the whole customer services flow.

To ensure service quality, all business forms have formulated standard customers’ services operating guidelines to
address issues such as problem responses, handling, closure, and return visits. Throughout the year, the Group
received 11 complaints for various projects, all of which were processed in time and within the deadline, so as to quickly
and effectively resolving customer problems.

ARFREERER  &F  SRTARRNFTFERENE  HEHETEE  BERBSTREERIEENTS
RIFEAMBGREEER - BB BT L RREE - RERR  MEFEENIRTIELR  EFEFRHZBIE -

ARBERBRE - SEEDHIEEHEQE  ZIE - B - DGR ERFREERFERS - AREE2FEBEERTKR
HER TR HREZIBWNREE  REFYERT EFHE

¥ 4.2 Confidentiality of Property Owners’ Personal Data

e - o2y 0
xFEHANKRE

The Company emphasizes the protection of customer information, strictly complies with the “Network Security Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and other laws and regulations, and protects the basic rights and interests of customers
by protecting customer privacy, safe guarding customer information security, and observing bottom lines of marketing.
For the property owners’ information and data, they shall be managed by dedicated personnel, and be stored in a
dedicated filing room with proper locking. Staff which are not responsible for files handling are strictly denied entry by
virtue of the Company’s strict internal regulations. All files handling staff have signed “confidentiality agreement”. If there
is a breach of confidentiality, they are supposed to bear relevant legal responsibilities. In addition, the Company has also
put in place strict regulations on file retrieval. File retrieval process needs to be strictly administered, and files can only
be retrieval after being verified and approved by the Company’s management at in a seriously manner.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any complaints of leakage of customer information.

ARBEBREFPEARE  BBET[PEARANBERLDE] FERER - BERETPRAL - TEXFPEA
22 BRTHESKFSR RETPHENED - HNEINERANEHNRMAZTATE  FRREREREEY
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¥ 4.3 Improving Customers’ Satisfaction

& mE R

We value customer evaluation and feedback on our products and services. To this end, we have established a full-stage
and full-contact satisfaction survey system as per the characteristics of different businesses, a standardized service
process, and a supervision and inspection mechanism to evaluate the degree of customer satisfaction in a timely
manner. Customers awareness throughout the Group is realized by referring to industry values and adopting proper
incentives.

Starting from 2022, the Company has arranged to incorporate green environmental protection-related matters in all
projects into the research indicators, and conduct customers’ satisfaction surveys every six months, ensuring that the
total score of office tenants’ satisfaction is maintained at not less than 90. All in all, the score of apartment customer
satisfaction has been maintained at 80 or more, the score of sales customers’ satisfaction is maintained at 90 or more,
and the score of residential project owners’ satisfaction is maintained at 70 or more.

B+ ERELPHREMERMRSHTEDLE *ETFT\W%F%%EIT%%E& - REEHREEATER 4T
IERECIRISRIE - U BB KRES  RNERTEREERM  BRAYETEE  FRASBNSNEERSES
EEEENER

BT Fi  ARFEBEESAEEENSRERFREBERAARTIESR  SXFHE-REFPHEERT -
THEARBFEEEMERABDRENMERNTD  ABEFPABEENDRE/N\TOHAL - HERSEFIDRE
NTAFAL  FEEBETFNRITETAHAL

At the end of December 2021, the Shantou Chaoyang
Project was evaluated through property owners’
independent online evaluation, and the satisfaction
score for this arrangement was 92.9.

REZ-—F+ AR UEHSHEERNELIRER
AR ERHE - WWRRBEZ BRSO R+ —HNs -
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¥ 4.4 Protection of /m‘e//ecz‘ua/ Property
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We are strictly abided by the “Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and other laws and regulations, and work to strengthen the management of intellectual property
rights such as patents, copyrights, and trademarks, and take legal measures to safeguard intellectual property rights.

The Company has formulated the “Measures for the Management of Intellectual Property Rights” in 2017 in order to
implement an intellectual property management system, and clearly define management responsibilities and content.
The Company has also established a regular mechanism to provide intellectual property training for employees at least

once a year.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any complaint regarding intellectual property infringement.
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‘\,@ 'Engineering Management Centre
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Review of the design drawings and technical parameters specifying the technical requirements, the dimension specification, major
equipment parameters and quantity figures with respect to the significant materials and equipment for each respective project.
Meanwhile, the Engineering Management Centre is held responsible for conducting parameter review on all significant large-scale
electromechanical materials and equipment upon arrival at the Engineering Management Centre/project department of the local
project company for verifying if the parameters have been consistent with that specified in the contracts, providing review results
and comments, and also conducting random acceptance inspection for such significant materials and equipment.
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@': /I Technology Management Centre
- B AR
Review of the material samples provided by the bidder and the
content in the technical deviation from furnished by the bidder for
meeting the design requirements or not, and sign approving the
technical evaluation report jointly with Engineering Management
Centre of the Group.
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1 Cost Management Centre
RABE AL
To verify whether the quantity of the significant
materials and equipment for each project shall be
consistent to that as prescribed within the bidding
drawings.
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Suppliers are our partners to deliver customer services. Implementing standardized supplier management can enhance
supplier management capability, and promote the provision of quality products and services to our customers.

HEFRRMERTLPRIENEIERHN - ETRBNHEHEE — ST EERTHERNEIERES ST EhRAeER MY
BEPRHEGERMRY -

The Company has always pursued responsible procurement by, taking a supplier's commercial credit and social
responsibility as the key premises for cooperation. The Company has formulated the “Rules Governing Procurement”,
clarifying the implementation of centralized management for procurement, to strive improving the level of procurement
management.

During the Reporting Period, the Company well protected the rights and interests of its suppliers and partners, as well
as achieved mutual benefit and win-win results for all parties concerned.

Hierarchical Supplier Management

Under the “Rules Governing Supplier Assessment and Grading”, suppliers are being evaluated on a semi-annual
and annual basis. A hierarchical supplier management system has been put in place by which suppliers’ fulfillment
performance in seven aspects, namely quality control, delivery cycle, level of cooperation, information, reasonableness
of payment terms, costing work cooperation, responsiveness to quotations and contract requirements, will be
dynamically monitored. Based on the scores of such fulfillment performance, suppliers are ranked into four grades of A,
B, C and D. Unqualified suppliers which are ranked Grade D will be removed from the list and denied the qualification
for bidding for two years. During the Year, a total of 1,147 suppliers were introduced, among which 36 suppliers were
ranked Grade D.

Total number of suppliers of the Group (breakdown by place of incorporation of suppliers): 6,760.

ARR—EBRBERE  SRXERANCERERBIEAHNERNAIFNERAR - ARRGIET T [FREBEERA]
RIEREETHROEE - SHRITHRBEIENKE -

RREME - ARBARSREHER - SEBRHOES  BRTAESHINENRE -

HEBIRER

R HEBFEEREENE] BRY¥FE  FEARMEANG  SHERERIQEE  taEEs  #HER

HiBIERCA - B IRERESEM  KATIFEA - HEESRERNOERE S CEEEHHERBAET
REE  SERBDHERNSHEHERTER/ABCDLEZR  HDRTARMEARNFATBEEAE - hiRE

& o RERASIEHREE 1,147 EFIADRHEEEIBR °

AEEHEEmARE RHEREMERD) : 6,760%K °
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Central China Northeast China

HFErhithE RitihE
171 518
Western China
EFE
528 )
Southern China
EFE
2,458

Eastern China
ERIBE
2,191

The Group has raised suppliers’ environmental awareness by demanding the manufacturing suppliers to attain ISO9000
management system certification and 1ISO14000 environmental system certification. Moreover, we set high standards
for energy conservation and environmental protection. Our efforts have enhanced the development of a green and low-
carbon economy.

ARESEHERMNREEAEH  FSEEREEDLEETEZREET]ISO9000 BRE XRF - RIREEET]1SO14000
RERARE  UREBT RGO BREMESR  TEGBERMEEEE -

¥ 5.2 Closed-loop Management of Procurement Chain

L i

The Company has established a regular supplier introduction mechanism for suppliers. Under our tendering rules, only
suppliers in our prospective supplier database are allowed to bid for our projects. Such mechanism and rules help
regulate the bidding and purchasing practices of the Group’s construction project contracting and bidding management
departments and to build an efficient, honest and fair procurement management system.

When making decisions on procurement, the Company encourages persons in charge of each subsidiary to consider a
range of factors including the qualities, costs and environmental impacts of the materials. On the premise of fulfilling the
Company’s procurement policy, preference is given to the products, equipment and services of the local suppliers, and
priorities are given to the suppliers in closer proximities who adopt eco-friendly means of transport. Procurement from
local suppliers can reduce the emission of greenhouse gas, and the occupation of social resources. While reducing risks
in our supply chain, the Group also closely works with the suppliers to attain resources saving with effective solutions.

RRBARFERAR TREEMAREERBHPINAERBILS  BESN  BE  REMNRBEEERR K&
EEY T HERERSERY  HHERERER [ EABERAR R -
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supplier
sourcing

The Group also inspects and grades the EHS (environment, health and safety) management practices and status
of supervisors and main sub-contractors, and applies outcome of such inspection and grading in performance
assessment for the suppliers. We have centralized procurement processes and dispatched on-site staff to monitor the
production process and promote eco-friendly manufacturing in the suppliers. Moreover, regional service centres have
been established to enhance the efficiency in supply and technical services.

With reference to national standards, the Company will focus its own product inventory and initially complete the setting
up of green procurement category standards by the end of 2022, as well as initially complete the formulation of green
supply chain quantitative goals by the end of 2025.

R - AEESEIRMABBHRTHEHS (R - K2 EIRIR— ) ERTAMNERMEETTREN Y - WIERER
BRETER - BEETRYHENSBRE  BRESLEEBNRERERNGELEE RUBREHRBH LIRS HEMK
AR R

HREREE  ARRBHESAFERE  R-Z2- _FRIVSTAGERERBRENGET/E YR _"F "R
FRAYZERECHERE B IRNHE -

Close-looped Management and Supervision
FREEREE

on-site
inspection

BIBER

process
evaluation

BT

preliminary certification database
vetting for goods establishment
AfETEE Lizeei Tt EERY

DL E&AE
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People-Oriented,

Growing Altogether
UABK HEKE

5 HHFE BEIFEN

3 R#F
fREUEL SRR

As core members of an enterprise, employees not only play decisive roles in daily operations, but also are creators and sharers of
corporate culture, corporate value and corporate interests. The core competitiveness of an enterprise depends on the employees’
satisfaction. The Company adheres to the concept of people-oriented and the responsibility of treating employees well, firmly
promotes the talent strategy, and fully considers diversification of employees and equal opportunities. While strengthening the
formation of talent teams, the Company constantly improves its welfare system and caring measures for employees, so as to care
for and accompany the growth of every staff member.

BTERCEMNZOKE  TEERRELZRIMEZREEENAEG  EREENL  CXEEHECENGENAEENDF
EBIRBERETEENROBEFS - AABMKRBRUARE EFETINETER  RFEMREATER IRXHEEE
TZUeMEETE  EIBREEASKOERNER - TETERANEREE TRIEEE  BOBERMHE (L8 THME -

a Employees’ Rights
BT

In terms of talent strategy and employee’s caring, the Company has always adhered to equal and transparent talent
recruitment, respected cultural differences among employees of different background, and strived to create a safe working
environment as well as equal and diversified career development paths for employees at the same time.

EATBREBETRIEL  AAR—EEFHTYE  EHRNASTHEE  BETREREIZHNYCER  ABERNR/BTE
ERENTERENTES TABEERKE -
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Number of employees in 2021 by employee category, gender, age and region

_?_

By employee category
RESERIZ D

5%

. 8%

87%

By age
REERED

5%

I 239 aged 30 to 50

—FRESED - M5 - FiR - HEESNETIAH
By gender
BRI D
40%
I 22 senior management . I 161 female employees
BIEE - 221 ° ZMET -161A
33 middle management I 246 male employees
PREIERE - 33A BHET -246A
352 general staff
—fMRET -352A
By region
BHERIS
1% ) ) )
[ 149 aged 30 and below 99% B 402 in mainland China

FREIAREE - 402A
[ 5in Hong Kong,

Macau and Taiwan

HRE -5 A

0B MLAT - 1494

30-50%% - 239 A
19 aged 50 and above
50 RIALE-19A

Turnover rate (%) by age, gender and region in 2021
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aged 30 and below
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aged 30 to 50 old
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49%
aged 50 and above
5088 M A £
26%

Age
FHe

Male employees
SMET

62% Female employees
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B 116 aged 30 to 50
30-505% - 116 A
5 aged 50 and above
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Macau and Taiwan I 97 female employees
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M 247 in mainland China
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Vi1 Equa/ Employment and Fair Competition
EREEMNFiF

The Company strictly complies with the “Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, and other relevant laws and regulations. It fully follows statutory requirements in the
processes of signing, renewing, terminating and cancelling labour contracts with employees. All relevant processes are
fair, transparent and impartial, regardless of any other factors such as gender and race. The Company has formulated
the “Management Rules for Hiring”, the “Operational Manual for Hiring” and the “Job Description Handbook”. All these
have standardized the recruitment process for ensuring that our hiring activities shall comply with laws and regulations,
and also prohibited child labour or forced labour from the origin.

In terms of promotion of employees, the Company explicitly sets up functional requirements and promotion conditions
for each rank and position, as well as implements the “Employee Performance Management Measures” and “Reward
and Punishment Management System”, so as to conduct performance appraisals on employees in areas such as job
performance, abilities and attitudes on a periodic basis, and the assessment results formed important basis for bonus
payout, salary adjustment and promotion. The Company has also formulated the “Employee Resignation Management
Measures”, where we strictly prohibit any unfair or unreasonable dismissal in order to safeguard employees’ rights. The
Company upholds equal employment during the recruitment process, and ensures that every candidate will be entitled
to applicable rights during recruitment, and will not be declined for employment due to factors such as gender, age,
race and religion.

During the Reporting Period, no child labour or forced labour was employed within the Group.

RARERIBEST [PEARKNBELEE]  [PEARKTES @J/\ﬂ/ﬂﬁffﬁfﬂié/ﬁﬁ EE\I/\HﬁfnT &R
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FEEREREN  {ERBELHBETAEHET -

EETENTE - ANARREGESBAREUNBEZRLRETR - Y EE [ 8 TERERIE] - [ LRI EEH
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ERBETERRSFERGER  HERERE (REBEDEZIRANEN  TERAR/MR - Fik - BERRED
FREMEARBIE -
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V1.2 Salary and Benefits
FroEaiE 7

The Company strives to motivate employees through the continuous optimization of remuneration and benefits system.
Under the national and local requirements, the Company’s headquarters and its branch establishments in the PRC are
obliged to make regular and adequate contribution payment to social insurance and housing provident fund schemes
for the employees, provide commercial comprehensive insurance plans covering both outpatient and hospitalization
benefits for employees who are suffering from accidental injuries and major diseases, and let the employees enjoy the
share of goals accomplishment by setting up the corporate annuity plans.

In addition to salary pay, the Company abides by the arrangement of statutory holidays and paid annual leaves, for
boosting employees’ sense of gains. The Company also provides holiday allowances for employees on major holidays.
The Company has provided other benefits like the meal allowances for overtime and business travel, and the incentive
paid leaves, etc. Moreover, in order to ensure reasonable working hours and duration of employees, overtime work
of employees will be provided with overtime pay or off-shift arrangement according to the overtime circumstances
recognized in the relevant management system. In addition to statutory holidays, employees will also be entitled to paid
leaves including marriage leave, bereavement leave, maternity leave, nursing leave, family visit leave and annual leave,
where adjustment will be made on annual leaves according to employees’ length of services.

Through caring programs such as launching internal passionate donations, establishing various employee
communication channels, and organizing employees’ recreational activities, employees are able to receive sufficient
care and possess the sense of participation, thereby safeguarding the welfare of employees. During the Year, the
Group’s headquarters in Shenzhen expanded its staff activity room, and combining with the Pandemic prevention and
control measures, it has focused and improved the dining patterns of employees. The Company satisfies the residential
demand for employees in need through provision of talent-affordable housing for qualified employees. Moreover, various
festival activities are organized by the Company to create a warm festival atmosphere.

RRRFHER(CHIRENRE - SHRAFHENEERE - ARBEE RSO THRBIRBER T 2K RE
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¥ 1.3 Occupational Safety
BEZE

The Company is very concerned about the workplace environment and safety of employees, and therefore has
formulated sound management policies and regulatory requirements. The Company on both regular and ad-hoc basis,
undertakes specific safety checks on office premises, places of operation and construction sites. All project companies
are required to put in place a safety management office according to the regulatory standards. The Company has
assigned designated staff to take charge of safety management, and regularly conduct trainings and conferences on
safety. On-site safety inspections are being conducted to ensure zero accident in the workplace. Further measures to
mitigate safety risks, with an ultimate goal of building a zero-accident working environment are also implemented.

During the Reporting Period, the number and ratio of deaths due to work-related accidents and the number of lost
working days due to work-related injuries were all zero.

ARBTHDERETINTFREERZ S ARHETRE2NERHEERBEFR - THENEHEM DGR - €215
B ERIRFARSER2FEARE  EXSAARRARABRELRE2EERE  SIEX2EEAR TR
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AIHEHA - ATHEBEMILCHOARELXERTHBRATIERBEHAT -

Labour Rights

E T

Index

it

Occupational health and safety

BERENZE

Work-related injury cases Cases 0 0 0 0
AT EEZR =

Serious work-related injury cases Cases 0 0 0 0
BREIEER =

No. of lost working days due to work-related  Days 0 0 0 0
injuries

TESIBIBRTIFRE X

Death cases due to work-related accidents Cases 0 0 0 0
ETETEzR =

Employee Complaints

ETHH

Employee reporting cases of discrimination Cases 0 0 0 0
BRERA B TR ER =

Employee complaints regarding basic human Cases 0 0 0 0

rights, employment and labour rights

BREEAAE  BEESTHENE THHFESR
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Safety slogans are displayed in
the office premises and work
areas, such as “Be Careful! High
Temperature” at the location on
which the drinking water equipment
is installed, and “Do Not Move” at
the storage place for fire-fighting
equipment.

ER ARG RTERERE R 28
R BREAKEERS
N BB RRM BROR AL [APIER
MBS | SRE -

In the course of real estate development business, the Company has assigned production safety personnel with
relevant production knowledge and management capability as well as relevant certificates and licences to be on duty in
strict compliance with Article 20 of the “Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

Our specific measures to ensure employees’ safety include:

EEBFEHERBEERT  ARBBREL [FEARRNBER2AEE] F- & HABLEENZ  EEEN
MFERHERNZEEEEEA BB -

ARARIEASEASEIBE IR S

Clear Signs Strengthen Protection Periodic Inspection
o A TR hnis Ry & EHRE

To ensure the normalization of
workplace safety, the Company
has set up a specific inspection
team to inspect periodically, safety-
related matters and bring to the
employees’ attention of risks such
as fire protection, electric circuits,
chemicals, etc.

For positions with relatively high
risks, in addition to posting
the relevant safety procedures
and operating instructions in
prominent places, we also provide
the employees with appropriate
personal protective devices for the
prevention of occupational diseases
and work injuries.
RERIIESMEZE2ERIL  AF
RETHEERSE/E - EeEH
@ THIRERS - LARTED
B LEmEHEAER

S —tEBRERE N TEMA - B
THEBRESHZ2IRIERRRIE
EEEDS - BERGABTIRME
WEFLZ2SRAMUPTABER
RITEHEA -

V1.4 Safety Trainings and Emergency Dirills

LRIEEEZER

The Company is used to preparing the safety training plan for employees at the beginning of every year, which sets out
details of the occupational health and safety trainings for employees, including the identification of safety warning signs,
the operation of safety facilities, the safe operating procedures for corresponding job positions, and the lessons such
learned from actual cases of safety accidents, etc. All these trainings have been aimed to raise the employees’ safety
awareness so that they can recognize safety risks and stay vigilant.

ARBEFFNERUETIR2EIFE  RETRHEENBERRERZE2EI BIAREZBRLT2IRHAHE
A - ZEREREORE  AEREBUNLZZRERR  R2FREIIRESE - WERAEBEINZ2ER - £
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The Company has also arranged employees to go through fire and emergency drills periodically in which they will
familiarise themselves with basic self-rescue and emergency escape skills. Knowledge and skills on emergency
measures concerning firefighting facility deployment, firefighting safety, safe electricity use in offices, as well as safe use
of high-rise elevators are shared in depth. Classic firefighting cases have been shared with the employees to raise their
safety awareness and sense of responsibility.

In addition to safeguarding effectively the safety of the Company’s employees, the Company discharges the safety
supervision role for those contractors within its business scope. The contractors are requested to establish sound safety
management procedures for carrying out all kinds of safety instruction tasks and improving the management systems
for occupational health and safety.

ARFEEHESETHERBEN N L 2RRM  HEETREEABMMESMRERE - (OB - BhZ2M
BERRE WARELR  SEENREEMARESRABHRITET T RAADE B EMEARINZE - BEBE
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BTARREEBEI L2 ARRHBERET T HERBENABHNL 2 EREERE  EREEYR#E2Y
E2ERESE  AOMHFZTRELEEETFE TERFRFEL2EERR -

On 8 November 2021, Shantou Company’s property
management center simultaneously launched the
firefighting emergency drill activity with theme “Fire
is merciless; Fire prevention at First Priority” for all
employees in three projects — Financial Centre,
Chaoyang Project and Eastern Coast, thus further
raising the fire safety awareness and response
capabilities on fire emergencies among employees.
RZZEZ—F+—ANB LBEREMEEERFRLRDT
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—FREE T EIAEN R 2 E B RN REEE S
H o

V1.6

Welfare and Caring
TETI B

The Company has made contribution to the five mandatory insurance schemes (pension fund, medical insurance,
industrial injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insurance) for the PRC employees, and has
organised employees to join the “critical illness insurance” scheme as recommendable by the government. For
employees who work for the real estate development segment where certain operation risks do exist, the Company has
additionally purchased the commercial casualty insurance.

The Company continues to promote the establishment of the employee health care system to help employees identify
and reduce health risks. The Company conducts multiple tasks such as employees’ health assessment, health
promotion activities, promotion of health concept, provides annual health inspection and body check for all employees,
arranges casual health promotion activities such as medical consultation and health physical therapy, and launches
health lectures, so as to provide a comprehensive cover of health management for employees.
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The Company has operated psychological counseling room for employees. Besides organizing periodic counselling
sessions held by professional psychological practitioners from professional institutions for providing specific services
in the areas of psychological adjustments in the workplace and stress relief, the Company has also cared the healthy
growth of the employees through the provision of mental health training, consultation and guidance.

ARRFARNE TOEEAE BT ERLHEERBOIRZAMBRHEBIS VIERE
Sh - BEBOIRREIEY  HAREE  HERIS TOREKE -
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Case Case

ESY] ~ £ ~N

The Group’s headquarters invited psychological experts
to give a women’s health lecture to female employees
in the headquarters.

REBBEHFHOEER  REHNZEIHBR—IHL
MR RS R o

On 9 June 2021, in order to thoroughly implement the
Party’s and the government’s requirements for safe and
harmonious development, the trade union committee

of Yufu Company (£/%/2 7)) organized “Cool gifts for
the summer (8 Hix/&R)” caring activity. On 29 July

2021, Changchun Company sent cooling gifts such as
Chinese herbal tea and fruits to frontline staff.
RZZFEZ—FANE  BARAERBEEENBTEA
REEERE NMBERMNER mFQAFAIEZEE
RBEAXRBER] BEES - R=ZFT=-_—FtA
ZHNAB - REQRRR—BEIXERAE  KREN
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a Employees’ Development

BET#ER

The continuous improvement of an employee’s lifelong employability is a responsibility that both the employee and the
Company should assume. In order to meet the work requirements under the normalization of Pandemic, while at the same
time assisting the continuous business development of the Company, keeping up with market demand, as well as meeting the
needs of talent development, the creation of an efficient, pragmatic and flexible multi-dimensional training model has become
the main objective of the Company’s talent development system for the Year.

BTRADRERENNFERAREINARAEELRARENER - AREGRBERICIEEX - ARPNAREEBHE
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In the future, the Company will combine the business needs of every segment, periodically organize one or two professional
knowledge training course(s) and one general quality training course each month, as well as organize a high-quality public
course once every two months. Duration of each course is expected to be one to two hours, adequate publicity and
announcement will be made prior to such courses so as to encourage the active participation by employees.

ARARBBEEBRREBTE - SACHES —EREXTBEEI - —RBE
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REERIEI - MEABSE —R=RE

¥2.1 Live Broadcast Teaching and Online Training

EIERRAAR 155

As the pandemic has been fluctuating, ordinary trainings and offline centralized teaching has been restricted. In order
to meet the needs of the Company’s business development and the personal growth of the employees in a timely
manner, the Group’s talent management team has continued to launch an online learning platform and developed a
new platform for live training, participated by the Company’s senior management in opening ceremonies, with a total live
broadcast of 25.5 hours and training satisfaction score of 9.7, which was highly praised by the employees of the Group.

HREBRE - BIERIE GTEFRRAZIR - ARKRRARAERERLETEAARERR
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2021 As of the end of 2021

RE-T-—FE

Cumulative number

Per-capita training
hours

INCESIES
30.62

Accumulated training
sessions launched

D+F;:ﬁ§ ||i77_1
641

of trainees

ZE2IIAR
18,339

Cumulative total of

training hours
qu 1| 42 F—%

35,424.5

By employee category By gender

ZEEERIE S RIERIEI S

The percentage 92.86% 87.50% 96.27% 99.19%

of employees trained

XilEEB S

98.03%

Senior Middle female male

Management Management i =
ERERRE PREBRRE

The average training

hours completed

per employee (hours) 30.50 32.38 32.45 36.13
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b HlED R AlSE S (UNS) Senior Middle female male

34.67 Management ~ Management 7 B
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EFESHEBERLT 2021 FHK

113



¥ 2.2 Strengthening the Construction of Talent Team
BIEAT 5 ER

With the guidance and teaching of internal hotshots as the core and the training of external experts as the
supplementary, we continue to build a high-performance management team to effectively foster the Group’s business
development:

In order to cope closely with the Company’s need to develop talents, the Company stimulates the work enthusiasm
and the motivation to learn and grow within employees, reduces the cost of introducing talents from the outside,
creates competitive environment of “promotion for the capableness; reward for the excellence; elimination of the
inferiority” for internal talents, thereby forming a mechanism for continuous creation of new talents from within, which
effectively prevents talent gaps and actively adapts to changes in both internal and external environment. In the third
quarter, the Company conducted a 360-degree talent quality assessment on talent teams, distributed 664 assessment
questionnaires and recovered 651, with recovery rate of approximately 98%.

WERRWSHHRE ~ SMNBEFIFAE - HEITESERNEEEN - AU N AEEREFRE
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¥ 2.3 Improving the Quality of Internal Training Team

FEFH AN B dn &

Talent Team Cultivation Guidance and Teaching Team of
AT BBITE Senior Management

The Company comprehensively launched the mEFAEE
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talent team cultivation project during the Year,
a total of 179 individuals enrolled, who were
outstanding employees from mid-and-general
levels of the Group’s headquarters and local
project companies as well as certain secondary
companies.

NARFERZEME T AT BBEIEEER - &
BHEFITON - RETEREABRATRF]
O —MRARMFERBESET -

External Professional Training

SRR SRR T

In 2021, the Group sent 8 employees with
outstanding performance to participate in
external professional training to enhance their
professional knowledge and skills and broaden
their professional vision.
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A mentoring team of senior managers who are
leaders and responsible heads in respective
business units of the Group has been set
up, helping a total of 6 newly recruited senior
managers to quickly switch their roles, enhance
fast integration into the team and adapt to the
new job positions, and thereby accelerating the
performance results.
HRUAEBHEAERETLEEARGHN
EREBRETREN - RE B A ARS
FREBENARERECAG - REFABEK
WISERMA TR - IR T EEED -



Case

ESY] ~

The Confidential File Division of the Company’s
headquarters organized special training on file

management
AR B E RS E R PERE R R A

J

Through continuing to explore the resources of internal trainers and effectively carrying out internal training activities at
all levels of the corporate organization, the business development of the Company can be fostered: During the Year,
there were 641 training sessions conducted by all levels of the corporate organization, with training satisfaction score of
9.51. Evaluation for internal trainers has been undertaken by the Company through reviewing the performance of such
internal trainers in the training classes which is based upon those dimension factors such as course satisfaction, and
quality of course content, and a total of four outstanding trainers have been elected.

FEZRERANBIFZNER FREDSLEBANIZL  HWHIARARR - AFEXRAERFTRREZ
NEOT—5  HIREEFS 9515  BBRIZHEE  RIEANTRESHEERIAMBMRRIEN - AR REE
EHEAIERHERE) - HEH PRI ES B -

Work and Life Balance
TEELE RN T

The Company is committed to maintaining the physical and mental health of its employees, and is much concerned about
their work-life balance. Therefore the Company has fully leveraged its advantages in human resources management, and has
effectively analyzed the workload of each job position and assessed the work intensity of employees for ensuring reasonable
deployment of labour. The Company shall never force its employees to work overtime.

To help employees relax and relieve their work pressure, the Company has enhanced internal communication and allocated
funding to each department by every quarter to subsidize recreational activities for the release of the employees’ stress. These
include sports and fitness activities, reading, and team building activities (such as camping), which have enriched employees’
life beyond the daily work.

ARRBNBHBTHHORE - FEWTREB TETIEREFY
BGTE - ALAATRRIEAANEREEED  HEBEE M
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a Anti-corruption and Probity Cooperation

REFERREHE

The Company has viewed that integrity has been the essential foundation of employees’ business ethics. Without integrity, it
would be impossible for the Company to provide quality products and services to the customers. The Company has always
upheld the belief of “Seeking progress with actual performance; Establishing prestige with conduct; Winning support with
actions”, where it must withstand all challenges regarding on matters of principles. The Company has been improving its
monitoring, auditing and disciplinary penalty policies. Moreover, anti-corruption education and training has been organized to
establish and reinforce the integrity culture across the Company.

RRAFIREENRRRABERT MNEINZEZAR  LRATFREHEEER ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ’]g$1ﬂi 2R FF [IAE

%ﬂiiﬁfv - ARTTIIEE - LM’E%?:E;%E%J WiES  EREMEL - BERBKFLEER - KD Em BE - TR
BHE - Z— 7 HENAREEBETINRETHE JI' BBZEMER I MEEAT J:TE’\JJ%/%XKC’

¥ 4.1 Establishing a System of Integrity
bedvy J:¢- 77

The Company has introduced “Key business Monitoring Measures”, “Anti-Corruption Monitoring System” and
“Complaints Reporting Management Measures”, which are complemented with internal audits and process controls.
Moreover, the Company has effectively executed its anti-corruption policy to ensure that the corruption is to be
prohibited in its origin. The Company engages both internal and external auditors to audit the financial accounts of
the Group, to ensure the accuracy of the account ledgers and strengthen the internal financial control and monitoring
system. To enhance the stakeholders’ awareness of integrity, subsidiaries of the Group always attach the “Probity
Cooperative Agreement” as an appendix to agreements. The purpose of such agreement is to clarify the integrity
requirements of both parties in business so as to prevent any unlawful acts.

The Company has established a whistle-blowing mechanism that enables making complaints via hotline, mailbox,
webpage and other reporting channels. The Company has designated responsible officers to receive and handle
whistleblower reports. All whistleblower reports will be filed and handled in strict confidence. The audit department and
the legal department will pursue accountability for any violation of anti-corruption rules.

RRRHFRIEMR T F%%%%’zﬁ*% R BIETHEN TRESERENE]  MRFRBEERE]  BUARRE -
MAZEAE - EfERZRER L - BRRERE - ELRBENNIT - {EHE LB ERRIRE - ARRRAASE
ErF SN EFREA N T ARESBMEIRE - ARERIR B IERE - HIR M B RiE %IJJ*EEEQ Z o RIGERRZRNES
o AEEETAREMEARNRIBRTEER [FRAFRZ ] Rl SEBEXBEREETEXHREE
FRRRERREN x‘JEﬁ%ﬂiFﬁﬁ CEERISHICR -
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V4.2 Strengthening Integrity Education
HILFEBHE

Since the Company joined the China Enterprise Anti-fraud Alliance in January 2019, it has actively participated in
various activities of the Alliance and has shared information and conducted business communication with the Alliance
and other member units. All levels of management (including Directors) and employees of the Company will receive
special-topic training on anti-corruption upon job commencement. The Company requires all employees to uphold a
transparent power system, under which they shall not accept bribes, nor bribe government officials and representatives
from commercial organizations.

The Company has also conducted various anti-corruption warning education activities, as well as provided occasional
special-topic trainings and anti-corruption-theme advocation for the Company’s senior management and employees of
sensitive positions.

The Audit and Monitoring Centre periodically organizes training on building integrity culture every year for middle-to-
senior level employees of the headquarters, local project companies and each secondary companies; conducts integrity
education and publicity during the orientation training for new staff; posts anti-corruption slogans in the Company’s
offices; periodically publishes anti-corruption educational promotional articles or pictures at the Company’s WeChat
“Sunny Glory Sun (FZYE#1)” column; reminding all employees of the Company from time to time the principle of
“Guarding the bottom line; Keeping away from risky areas”, build a strong border of integrity and self-dicipline.

During the Reporting Period, no corruption litigations was filed against the Company.

ARBEZT-NF-AMATBELERFFRBENR - RS EERARNS LS - EHELEME 8B 2H
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Weinan Company organized the “Do the best with full
efforts” learning activity. On 21 October 2021, Weinan
Company organized all employees to watch the movie
“Leap”, which inspired the team to go all out and work
hard.

EBEATRITIZNNHENHE| Z2EFEY - R=F
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Contributing to Charity
NBRE P HES

As an enterprise with a high sense of social responsibility, the Group has always integrated the concept of social responsibility
with the development strategies of the enterprise. For a long period of time, the Group has taken care of the public’s well-being
and benefits, had in-depth understanding of the actual needs all stakeholders. We are committed to participating into all those
community activities which will help establish a positive image of the industry as well as the Company, and also respond to the
needs of the communities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to approximately HK$542,000.

R FXEEREMHSEERNEE  AEFRKBHEEAECRCENERERETHEA - REUK - AEE@IHeLR
MR - RABRBERNENERTE  YRN2EERYITERARARLAMSNTREE - BELE LNEERK -

AMERA - REBED RS M EALBE A4 542,0008 7T °

ﬂ Assume Responsibilities on Pandemic Prevention and Control
RIEPIEE AR E

With the normalization of Pandemic prevention and control in China, the Company has fully participated in the pandemic fight
and protection within its operating scope, strictly complied with requirements at all government levels, implemented strict
prevention and control measures, arranged resumption of work in an orderly manner, promoted the recovery of social and
economic operations, lowered the impact of pandemic, and thereby the Company has observed its obligations to safeguard
public health and practiced corporate social responsibilities.

EEBEARBIEERL - ARRELEREANT N2 ERBENBE R # - BRIEREQEAER - BITEIE - AR
T #BHHSLEETRERRE  REZBFE REREREATREE BIICEHEEME-

ﬂ Focus on Education, Donations to Schools

HIBERENE

In recent years, the Company has paid close attention to the development of education in China, taking education poverty
alleviation as an important way to give back to society. While hoping to assist the country in fighting against poverty, the
Company has also wished to bring hopes to children who are eager to learn, and has proactively called upon more caring
enterprises and individuals in society to participate in caring and supporting China’s educational development.

EER - ARB—HERYBIZTEREEXNER  EHEKREERQBLENEENT FERERMEREREXE)
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Case

£’ ~

Shantou Company donated a batch of electronic and
teaching materials (a total of 51 computers, 26 sets
of desks and chairs as well as 1 set of projector) to
Chaoyang District Huagiao Junior High School to
improve the school’s teaching facilities.

ISR BIAEG RER VIR T 2R - EHMEAR
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ﬂ Charitable Acts of Glory Sun’s Employees
EERNBAEBEN

The Company profoundly realizes that charitable acts of employees are reflection of the values of an enterprise. Through
encouraging employees to participate in charitable activities, and actively exploring the combined effects of public welfare acts
by employees and the company, a new path will be built for the Company to practice social responsibilities.

Before 20283, coupling on the Arbor Day on 12 March, the World Environment Day on 5 June, and the International Volunteer
Day on 5 December, Shantou Regional Project will launch no less than three themed community public welfare and promotion
events.

RABARARBE - BEINRTASCEBEENES @ MARBETI2REEAHEY  BRRREI &  bEAHREMNU
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The Company’s employees actively participated in the

prevention and control of Pandemic as volunteers
RARE LTRBSEEIEH%E - MEREE

CANARRERESE -+ - FABEEREERESRERFRAD

E3] ~

By actively coordinating the organization of vaccine
zones at streets, Glory Sun’s volunteer teams (“Red
Vest (4155 F)”) cooperated in the large-scale COVID-19
vaccination work. The “Red Vest” team was busy
in maintaining order during vaccination, answering

people’s inquiries, explaining the registration program
to the public, and providing various services regarding
vaccination for residents, which effectively promoted
the construction of an immune barrier to safeguard
people’s health.

ERBAaEEBEE CEBHEIR(ALER])
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On 21 October 2021, Shantou Eastern Coast Project
organized the “Voluntary Blood Donation Activity 2021”.
RZBZ—F+A=Z+—RH JUEREFEE R
T FRERNARED -
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Report Disclosure Index

RERBERC

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

EREE - EBH

—REERBRENER

A. Environmental &%

Aspect A1:

Emissions
[EEAT
PERk

General Disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under national laws
and regulations.
Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,
perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.
Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

—RINE
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ&i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ& KR EHEEES AERBEERRMNELSH
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BEEEYIEATEOITTRES

Corresponding chapter

HEEED

Chapter 1: Green Operation
& Sustainable Development

—F G EEE MR RHE
B

KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environmental Sustainability
RASRIEN e IE 28 R AR BB B DB - — 1. Emissions
EIEAL RIBAFEERE - 1.0
KPI' A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas | Environmental Sustainability
RAGAE emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per | — 1. Emissions
FEIZEAL2 unit of production volume, per facility). IRIB R FHE SR — 1. B
i (HE1) RS (BE2) R E R (LA &) R (M
HA)EE (MABESBA - §IEFRMEAH)
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | As relevant disclosure has
RAGAE appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | no significance in relation
FEIZEA1.3 facility). to the Group’s business
FMEABEEEWHEE (LUETE) X (iEA) RE (WASESE | operation, we did not
(- GERIEHE) o produce specific report on
this matter
R RA#E B B R R (B 75
BIESBEERBIE UL
PRt EEEE S
KPI' A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | As relevant disclosure has
RAGAE W appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | no significance in relation
EIZA1.4 facility). to the Group’s business
FMEAEEZEEYHESE (LUETE) R (EA) RE (WASESE | operation, we did not
Bfy - GERIEHE) o produce specific report on
this matter
R A BE B R A (B 75
BIESBEERBE UL
PRt EEEE S
KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | Chapter 1: Green Operation
RAGEAE K them. & Sustainable Development
EIZEA15 M PTETSZEVHERE B R R ERE L B R P ERENE) 28R - 3. ECO-friendly Workplace-
3.2 Action form Emission
Reduction
—E  EEZRHFE
ER
3. IRIE R ARV —
3.2 FHTE
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are | As relevant disclosure has
RASRIE handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps | no significance in relation
JEIEA16 taken to achieve them. to the Group’s business
M RIE B EREEEZEYN T E - REIATET I8 FEE B 2% | operation, we did not report
B L B IR A R A 2B o specifically on this matter
R A AR B B AR SR B 75
BIERBEERBAER  BULE
M EFEEEEL RS
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Aspect A2:

Use of
Resources
A2 :
BIREMR

General Disclosure
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw

materials.

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings,

electronic equipment, etc.

—RRI

BRERER(BIERER - KREAMRME) BB -
it BRAARLE  FF EH BT EFRES -

Chapter 1: Green Operation
& Sustainable Development
B : g EES A
B

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, | Environmental Sustainability
RASRAEW gas or oil) in total (kWh in " 000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of | — 2. Use of Resources
FEIZA2.1 production volume, per facility). R FEERE
RERSSMEER,SEEER(NE - faohn) BFE (AT | -2.8REMA
BT ERTE) RERE (MASESSA - BIERMTE)
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production | Environmental Sustainability
RASRAEN volume, per facility). - 2. Use of Resources
FEIEA2.2 RFKEREE (MAGESBM - BIEREAE) - RIRARERR
- 2. BREH
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken | Chapter 1: Green Operation
RASRAE N to achieve them. & Sustainable Development
E1ZA2.3 HPARI MR REA NG B R REIE LA RMRBNTHE - | B—F - SEESEAFHE
TR
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that | Chapter 1: Green Operation
RASRIE is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to | & Sustainable Development
EIEA2.4 achieve them. 3. Eco-friendly Workplace
SR EGE AR ERI A EMEE - ARPIEI A AKME B | 3.2 Action for Emission
NORER G B IRPTEREU P8R - Reduction
58 GEEBE THE
BE
3. IREB R ERS
3.2 WEHTE
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, | As relevant disclosure has
RASEAE K if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. no significance in relation
EIZA2.5 to the Group’s business

R MR NAE (CAEAE) M (Emn) £ EER(L

=-°

operation, we did not report
specifically on this matter
HIPAE B 1 2R B AR S [ 3 7S
BIPRBERBIE - BLH
ISRt FEEE RS
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Aspect A3: General Disclosure Environmental, Social and
The Policies on minimising the issuer” s significant impacts on the environment and | Governance Philosophy
Environment | natural resources. and Management -
and Natural | —fRHEE Environmental Sustainability
Resources | RUEEITALRIBERARABREKERZEHTE - - Use of Resources
[EEAS : RIR e RERESEE
BRI RAA BZRBAFEER ER
IR £
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the | Chapter 1: Green Operation
RAREW environment and natural resources and the actions taken to &Sustainable Development
FEIZ AB.1 manage them. D EEE ER] R
BT HRERRAERNEAZERERNEEEHY %éé)?é
£m178 -
Aspect A4: General Disclosure Chapter 1: Green Operation
Climate Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which | & Sustainable Development
Change have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. 4. Green-friendly Enterprises
[EE AL —RARER 4.1 Dealing with major climate
RIEEML BRI LEH KR AT HETAEEXENEARIGEEEENBE changes
—F  GEEE NN RHE
B
4SRRI

41 EHERRIRE

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
RAREN impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
FEIZE A4 taken to manage them.

IO A& R Al pe e B 1T
178 -

AEEFENEARREHEEE - KE

Chapter 1: Green Operation
& Sustainable Development
4. Green-friendly Enterprises
4.1 Dealing with major climate
changes

F—E EELENE
EiYi

4B ERITROE
41 FEHEATIRE L
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B. Social &

Employment and Labour Practices &% &% T F 8

Aspect B1: General Disclosure Information on: Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
Employment | (a) the policies; and Grow AItogether
[BEB1 : (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact | =% : AA AR HFEKE
=7 on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

— AR ER

BRHMERE - BIERE - TESE - R - FERS - 20t RIERIA

KB AR B AR

(@) BiX : &

(o) BFEEITABEALENBER LRI

HE R o

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-or | Chapter 3: People — Oriented,

RAREN part- time), age group and geographical region. Grow Altogether

FEIRB1.1 IR RIEER (N2 BEGER)  FiRENRMREHHEE | 1. Employees’ Rights

g - =% DARAE HRAKE
1. B THEs

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical | Chapter 3: People — Oriented,

RAGEAE K region. Grow AItogether

EIEB1.2 IR - FiedER Rt E S BEERKLLE - B=% : LARK HAKE
Aspect General Disclosure Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
B2: Health Information on: Grow Altogether
and Safety (a) the policies; and 1. Employees’ Rights
[EmEB2 : (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on | 1.3 Occupational Safety
BEFEEZS | theissuer 1.4 Safety Trainings and

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

Emergenoy Dirills

occupational hazards. F=F  UABK EEKE
— AR ER LEIE@
BHAREZETIERERREREHCBRELEED 13BELSE
(@) B : & 1.4 L2 5| ESIRR
(o) BTEEIT ABERZEEBERE KA
HE R}
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the | Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
RASEAE K past three years including the reporting year. Grow Altogether
FEIZB2.1 BE=F (BEERFE) BFRIUHRAAZBRLE - 1. Employees’ Rights
1.3 Occupational Safety
F=F : LARK HAKE
LEIEm
13BELS
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
RASEE R ETHEEBAIIEES - Grow Altogether
$EIEB2.2 1. Employees’ Rights
1.3 Occupational Safety
F=F : UARK HRAKE
LEIEm
13BELE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, | Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
RARE and how they are implemented and monitored. Grow Altogether
#E1EB2.3 IR PTER AN B S R R B 2 2 1 B - DA BRI T REE R 50 © 1. Employees’ Rights
1.3 Occupational Safety
1.4 Safety Trainings and
Emergenoy Drills
F=F : LARK HAKE
LEIEM
13RELE
1.4 L2 EFI B ESIRR
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Aspect General Disclosure Environmental, Social and
Ba: Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at | Governance Philosophy
Development | work. Description of training activities. and Management
and Training | Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid | 5. Introduction of Professional
[EMFB3 : by the employer. Training
RN | MR Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
BREREERIT TEBRE R A R IR BUR © S IES) Grow Altogether
it IEIIEBFEIEY - A B HEF (T BRINSNEEARIE © 1. Employees’ Rights
1.4 Safety Trainings and
Emergency Drills
2. Employees’ Development
2.2 Strengthening the
Construction of Talent Team
2.3 Improving the Quality of
Internal Training Team
RBE HgRERESEE
bE1
5. 5| AZEET
FE=F : LARK HRAKE
1. E\Iﬁm
1.4 L2 EESIRR
2. BT¥%E
2.258{E AA BB
23R A AHNE B mE
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee | Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
RASRIEW category (e.g. senior management, middle management). Grow Altogether
512 B3.1 RERIREERERN (WSRERE  PREREE)AS>OZIEES | 2 Employees Development
ERalsa FE=F : DABEKHERKE
ZEI%F
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender | Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
RASREE and employee category. Grow Altogether
#E1EB3.2 RURIREERMNE S BREETHZ I FIIRE - 2. Employees’ Development
FE=F : LARK HRAKE
2. BITERE
Aspect General Disclosure Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
B4: Labour Information on: Grow Altogether
Standards (a) the policies; and 1. Employees’ Rights
[EE B4 : (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on | 1.1 Equal Employment and
4T AR the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

Fair Competition

=F : MARE HKREK K

—REEE 1. B TH#EES

B IEE T SoaHI% T - 11 FEEBEATHES

(@) BE &

(o) BFHEITABERFERNRBEEELIRN

H)ER} o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid | Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
RABRAERL child and forced labour. Grow Altogether

FE1Z B4 iR R E PN EA R R E T RoRHIS T

1. Employees’ Rights
1.1 Equal Employment and
Fair Competition

=% AARK HEKEK
1. B THEm
11 FEREBEATESE

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
RASRAE X

discovered.
fE1EB4.2 W IR E AR IB AR B A IS R FTEEA 2 5 -

Chapter 3: People — Oriented,
Grow Altogether

1. Employees’ Rights

1.1 Equal Employment and
Fair Competition

F=8 LARK HRAKEK
1. B THem

11 FEREBEATESE
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Operating Practices &

EIED

Aspect

B5: Supply
Chain
Management
EB5 :
HrEEEE

General Disclosure
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

—RRIEE

EIEHERARE R SRR EUR

Chapter 2: Customer First,

Cooperation for Win-win

5. Cooperate to achieve

win-win results
F_E:EBFELA
E/L\ LREERR

ﬂf/ N

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Chapter 2: Customer First,
RAREE EHEE D HEREE - Cooperation for Win-win
FE1ZEB5.1 5. Cooperate to achieve
win-win results
5.1 Supply Chain Management
B EFPE | AEAER
5. B LHEAIERR
5.1 g E R
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of | Chapter 2: Customer First,
RASEAE K suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how | Cooperation for Win-win
1812 B5.2 they are implemented and monitored. 5. Cooperate to achieve
el A AR EROED  mENTEBEMNEEMEE | win-win results
AR ABRERNI T REER 04 o 5.1 Supply Chain Management
5.2 Closed-loop management
of procurement chain
—5:BFE L AR
5 B LHESIELR
5.1 HEEER
5.2 FREEHEEIRE R
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social | Chapter 2: Customer First,
RARAE risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and | Cooperation for Win-win
FE1EB5.3 monitored. 5. Cooperate to achieve
fa A FH R R T EREA R IRIE R G RBAES - AR | win-win results
BAITREER % © 5.1 Supply Chain Management
5.2 Closed-loop management
of procurement chain
FoEBFEF AR
BELHEEAELR
5.1 Lﬁiﬂéﬁ
5.2 FRBEEIRE R
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally | Chapter 2: Customer First,
RARE preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and | Cooperation for Win-win
E1EB5.4 how they are implemented and monitored. 5. Cooperate to achieve

R ESRE BRI (R0 2 AIRRE M RLRIFHEH -
BRITRERTTA -

A K 48

win-win results

5.1 Supply Chain Management

5.2 Closed-loop management

of procurement chain
—E:RPELS
ELHBEAERR

5.1 fHIEHE IR

5.2 FREBHEEIRE IR

ﬂf/ N
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Aspect

B6: Product

Responsibility

Z H B6 -
EmiRE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

—RRIRER

BREMRHERMRBNRERLZS  BE  RERLEBEEARBRTAR -

Chapter 2: Customer First,
Cooperation for Win-win
4. Dedicate to provide high-
quality service

—E BFELE AEERE
4. BURESmE R

(@) B : &

(o) BFEEITABEAZEBNBERE KR

Ak

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for | Chapter 2: Customer First,

RASEAE K safety and health reasons. Cooperation for Win-win

512 B6.1 PERDEXEMEETRALZBRFIEAMARKNE S 3. Ingenuity to create excellent
quality
FoF KPR AELE
3. ELTEESME

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and | Chapter 2: Customer First,

RARAE how they are dealt with. Cooperation for Win-win

1512 B6.2 BN E MR IR IR FEE AR EL 7% - 4. Dedicate to provide high-
quality service
FEBFEL AEER
4. ACRESmERY

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | Chapter 2: Customer First,

RASRAEN intellectual property rights. Cooperation for Win-win

1% B6.3 it B o S ARB AN B A AV B -

4. Dedicate to provide high-
quality service
4.4 Protection of Intellectual
Proper‘ty

5 RPEL AERAR
4, Fﬁukﬁi\‘m‘ﬁu%fﬁﬁi‘%

44 HBERRE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Chapter 2: Customer First,
RAREN HilE SR THRENRERBIRRES ° Cooperation for Win-win
JE1EB6.4 3. Ingenuity to create excellent
quality
%:ﬁ : Eﬁﬁt {/E/\HETL
3. EUTHE S M
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and | Chapter 2: Customer First,
RREW how they are implemented and monitored. Cooperation for Win-win

¥E1%B6.5 HIUB B EERURE RARBOR - KRBT RERITE -

4. Dedicate to provide high-
quality service

4.2 Confidentiality of Property
Owners’ Personal Data
FEBFEL AEERE
4, )ﬂuhﬁﬁﬁ:%ﬁ&ﬁ%

42X FEARE
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Aspect

General Disclosure

Chapter 3: People — Oriented,

B7: Anti- Information on: Grow Altogether
corruption (a) the policies; and 4. Anti-corruption and
HB7 : (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on | Probity Cooperation
RES the issuer F=E  UABK EFAKE
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. 4, Jiﬁﬁéﬁi%/?\ a1E
— AR ER
BRMLERRR - IR - BFFROEERER
(@) B : &
(o) B FH BT ABERTENERMERZ IR EH -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
HEWIEZ | brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
B7.1 period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERAANEETASHESIRETEEEN R THAREFNE
B RAFAsER
KPIB7.2[# | Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
BREEWMIERE | procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B7.2 HEErE e R R AR T - ARMBRITRER L -
KPIB7.3 | Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
BIAERUEIZ | staff.
B7.3 futmEE R B TRHNRESE
Community #f &
Aspect General Disclosure Chapter 4: Contributing to
B8: Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities | Charity
Community | where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the | $V0E : AFAE B hzE
Investment | communities’ interests.
[ETE B8 : —RRIREE
HEREE AR RSEREAREEMEHERENBRAEREDEE R EFZAK
%o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental | Chapter 4: Contributing to
RESEAE K concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Charity
512 B8.1 EIEREE(NHE  BHEER  STHER @R b 8B | FOE  A5AE PHOES
B)-
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Chapter 4: Contributing to
RABRAERL BT HESENHER (N EsRE) Charity
JE1EB8.2 BHE : RmAE PHES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Fax: +852 28152239
www.bdo.com.hk

I BDO Tel : +8522218 8288

EEE 1 +8522218 8288
{85 1 +8522815 2239

B 2 AR &

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLORY SUN LAND GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Glory
Sun Land Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 133 to 296, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matter described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Scope limitation relating to appropriateness of the going
concern assumption

As disclosed in note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements, as at
31 December 2021, the Group had total borrowings of approximately
HK$8,067,474,000, of which the current borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$5,404,088,000. However, the Group had bank and cash
balances of approximately HK$341,393,000 only.

The above events or conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and, therefore, that the Group may not be able to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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In view of the above circumstances, the directors of the Company have
prepared a cash flow forecast (the “Cash Flow Forecast”) which takes into
account of the plans and measures as set out in note 2(c) to the consolidated
financial statements. Based on the assessment made by the directors
of the Company, assuming the plans and measures can be successfully
implemented as scheduled, the Group is able to continue as a going concern
and it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The appropriateness of the consolidated financial statements prepared on a
going concern basis largely depends on whether those plans and measures
as detailed in note 2(c) can be successfully implemented as scheduled.

However, in respect of the plans and measures that the Group would
successfully (1) negotiate with fund providers in respect of certain borrowings
repayable during the year ending 31 December 2022 (the “Renewable
Borrowings”) for an extension of maturity beyond 31 December 2022;
(2) make further drawdown of the unutilised loan facilities (the “Unutilised
Facilities”) from the fund providers, as and when necessary; and (3) accelerate
the pre-sales of major property development projects of the Group, the
directors of the Company have not provided us with sufficient supportable
evidence that enables us to evaluate (1) the feasibility that the fund providers
of the Renewable Borrowings would grant the Group an extension; and (2)
the financial viability of those fund providers of the Unutilised Facilities to the
extent that is necessary based on the Cash Flow Forecast; and (3) the basis
of the estimation of scale of proceeds from the pre-sales of the major property
development projects of the Group in the period of the Cash Flow Forecast.

Due to the limitations on our scope of work as stated above and there are
no alternative audit procedures that we can perform to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to support the above plans and measures can
be successfully implemented, as a result, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidence to conclude whether the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting to prepare the consolidated financial statements
is appropriate.

Should the Group fail to continue as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
their net realisable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPAs “Code of REBEEAGHM AT EX S AEESFA)
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our ([ <FRI]) - EFF IR E5E - WERESFE

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. BITEMBERET -

BDO Limited EBUGERSTMEBMERAT
Certified Public Accountants HEDF A

Lo Ngai Hang ERHE

Practising Certificate Number P04743 HMEFEERS P04743

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022 BE —E__F=RA=+—H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEeEERkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

m—Z—

CE - FF A= —HIFFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Note: HK$’000 HK$’000
PiEE FExT FAT
(re-presented)
(re=751))
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue e 9 5,504,341 6,766,470
Cost of sales HER A (5,234,073) (6,712,494)
Gross profit EF 270,268 53,976
Selling expenses SHEFMZ (99,558) (94,291)
Administrative expenses 1TBAX (141,074) (117,782)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S B A R ke 40(b) 296,057 -
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment WEYENNFHEWRES (B18)
properties 21 70,713 (52,297)
Fair value gain on derivative TEEMEEN A TEKZ
financial asset 1,313 18,291
Impairment losses on goodwill [BEEAEL ! 22 - (18,566)
Impairment losses on property, VI - BB R EREREEE
plant and equipment 20 (35,755) (34,687)
Impairment losses on financial and TRIRAHEERERE - F58
contract assets - net (23,005) (83,723)
Other income, gains/(losses) - net Hadg A - Uz (Fi8) - F58 10 9,875 75,483
Profit/(loss) from operations LSRR (F58) 348,834 (253,596)
Finance costs & AR AN 11 (125,036) (97,687)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATERADER (&8) 13 223,798 (351,283)
Income tax expense PRASTRRI X 12 (3,541) (29,629)
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFESEEBNEREE
continuing operations wA(ER) 220,257 (380,912)
Discontinued operations ERIEEEEK
Profit/(loss) for the year from REDKRIEEEEBENAFE
discontinued operations swHL (B8 17 84,452 (409,710)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEEHRN,(EBE) 304,709 (790,622)

EFEHEEERLT 2021 FHK
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEREREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z —F-—F+ A =+—HIF&E

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PiEE FE T FAT
(re-presented)
(ge&E5)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax BRF & H b2 E U
Item that will not be reclassified THEH S BEZEBHEE -
to profit or loss:
Fair value changes of equity BAFEEAEMEEREYIER
instruments at fair value through (B AFESBEMEERZEY
other comprehensive income R 2BRATEM AT EZS
(“FVTOCI) (2,782) (32,822)
(2,782) (82,822)
Items that may be reclassified RETEH 7 HFBmHEE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating HEGINETSHIE X =58
foreign operations 180,390 249,868
Exchange differences reclassified to HEWBARBEHDAETIERNM
profit or loss on disposal of subsidiaries PE 5 Z=%E (31,732) -
148,658 249,868
Other comprehensive income REERBRBIEEM2Em
for the year, net of tax 145,876 217,046
Total comprehensive income AEEEEWEBEE
for the year 450,585 (573,576)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: FE{G A FE#EF], (FE) :
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEEFEUN
— Continuing operations - FHEEEEB 250,169 (325,434)
— Discontinued operations - BRI E TS 84,452 (409,710)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to KAEIFBAEBLEEAFEE
owners of the Company s, (E518) 334,621 (735,144)
Non-controlling interests IR RS
— Continuing operations - BEIREETS (29,912) (55,478)
Loss for the year attributable FEFE 1 M R PG AN R B 1R
to non-controlling interests (29,912) (565,478)
304,709 (790,622)
Total comprehensive income B FE2ERRARE
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company VN/NEIESFEDN 393,486 (624,980)
Non-controlling interests FEFEH MR R 57,099 51,404
450,585 (673,576)
Earnings/(loss) per share - basic and BRERN(BE) -EXRBEECE
diluted (HK cents) fils)
— Continuing operations - BBICEER 19 4.79 (7.16)
— Discontinued operations - AR IERE TS 19 1.62 (9.00)
19 6.41 (16.16)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

As at 31 December 2021 W —_E-_—F+_-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-_—F —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PEE FE T FAT
Non-current assets FIREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE M&E 20 137,116 159,448
Investment properties BEYE 21 4,063,202 6,034,541
Goodwill fEES 22 - -
Other intangible assets HitmpEE 23 - 101,348
Financial assets at FVTOCI BATESREMEERGESE. &
BhEE 25 4,694 7,477
Deferred tax assets EEFTEE E 35 - 36,657
4,205,012 6,339,471
Current assets RBEE
Inventories wE 27 10,016,940 10,875,059
Contract assets BHEE 28 34,619 33,293
Derivative financial asset PTHEEREE 26 - 32,044
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMERRIE 29 5,116,986 5,002,498
Tax recoverable AJ Y R IE 53,487 30,616
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B R 2R B IRITIE R 30 381,882 618,133
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR® 5 30 341,393 735,501
15,945,307 17,327,144
Current liabilities REAEE
Borrowings & 31 5,404,088 5,420,474
Trade and other payables B 5 N EAMEA IR 32 4,039,754 4,058,138
Consideration payable FERTRE 34 - 589
Contract liabilities BHAE 28 2,351,563 1,923,928
Lease liabilities HERE 43 5,918 6,521
Current tax liabilities HRIEEE 101,877 206,553
11,903,200 11,616,203
Net current assets REBEERE 4,042,107 5,710,941
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAEBRABERE 8,247,119 12,050,412
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

As at 31 December 2021 W _E-_—F+_-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P s FET FET
Non-current liabilities FREAE
Borrowings EEN 31 2,663,386 6,943,190
Consideration payable FERRE 34 - 163,747
Financial guarantee TSR 33 89,628 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 43 58,626 53,430
Deferred tax liabilities B IEEFE 35 643,522 812,689
3,455,162 7,973,056
NET ASSETS EEFE 4,791,957 4,077,356
Capital and reserves BEXRf#E
Share capital [N 36 273,006 227,505
Reserves B 38 2,680,928 2,055,344
Equity attributable to owners of the RARFAE AEIGER
Company 2,953,934 2,282,849
Non-controlling interests FEFE S A 2 1,838,023 1,794,507
TOTAL EQUITY EAE 4,791,957 4,077,356
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 31 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf. S e AR O REEeN T - —E= A

=+ BIERRETI BT HATERREZESE -

Yao Jianhui

iz e

Director

EZE
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Director

EBE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERARE R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —F+—A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FFC

EFEHEEERLT 2021 FHK

KAREREAES
Share Non-
Share Share  redemption Merger ~ Statutory Other ~ Sharcholders  Translation FVTOCI  Accumulated controling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reseve  contribution reserve eserve losses Total interests  Total equity
#OYE
FEER2E
HEAE
B&  BOER RABERE  AMRE  tERE  ARER  BREE ENRR f#f  ZiER R 2 R
HK8000 HK8000 HK8000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK8000 HK8000 HK8000 HK8000 HK$000
FET 7ET 7ET ji i AL 7T 7T 7T 7ET 7ET 7ET ji7
At1 January 2020 W-8-%5-F-R 21506 31698 2269 (940,026 91427 VALl 4118 40,356) (198,329) (3074 20178 1TAOTST 464855
Lossforthe year TEEEE - - - - - - - - - (735,144 [735,144) 5479 [1%622
Falr value changes ofequity RATEREEHAENE - - - - - - - - (32822 - (3282 - (3282
insiuments at FVTOC) EUBRTENNTERY
Exchange diferences on BEBNEHENES 2E - - - - - - - 142,986 - - 142,986 106,882 249,868
transiafing foregn
operations
Total comprehensive KERRENEAE - - - - - - - 142986 (32822) (736,144) (624,980) 51404 [573576)
income for the year
Degmed corirbuion fom - EREARE: - - - - - - 3 - - - 3 - 3
shreholder are fom JREBIELE (M)
acquistion of a subsicery
(note 40(d)
Capital contributons from FARREEEALE - - - - - - - - - - - 2346 2346
non-controling
equty holders
Transfer ofloss on dlsposal FERMTESEENATENE - - - - - - - - 27312 (217312 - - -
ofequiynstuments i HEz BRI AR
ATOCIo BRZEIE
accumulated losses
Tranfer to stafutory reserve Boitrhe - - - - 5006 - - - - 5,006) - - -
Changes in equity EERRSD - - - - 5,06 - 3 142986 184490 (957462) (624949 53750 (571,199)
forthe year
At 31 December 2020 AZE-8E+25°1-8 221505 318984 2269 00%) 96,433 VAR 4,149 102830 (13830 (1288207) 2280840 1794507 407735
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KNEREREARR
Share Non-
Share Share  redemption Merger ~ Statutory Other ~ Sharcholders ~ Translation FVTOCI  Accumulated controling
capital premium resenve reserve Teserve reserve  contribution resenve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
RAVEER
Efo2E
i

b5 iR BEMEZE  GKGR  MREE  RHER BRI EEER B 2R B AR RNAE
HKSODD  HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSO0  HKSOD RSO HKSOID BRSO HSO0 KO HKSOD  HSOD RSO
&L TRr TR TEn  7En  TEr AT AT T &L Tt TR TEn

At1 January 2021 R-8=-£-A-A 2505 3,189,824 269 (940,026) 96,433 0211 4149 102,630 (13839 (1288207 2282840 1794507 4077356
Proft forthe year TERET - - - - - - - - - 334,621 334,621 (29912) 304709
Fair valug chenges of equity BATEREHH2TEEE - - - - - - - - (2782) - (2782 - (2782
nstuments at FVTOC! JRRIENLTEED
Exchenge diferences on BEESRNELZE - - - - - - - 9379 - - 98379 8701 180,390
transiafing foregn

operafions
Exchange dferences - - - - - - - (31,732) - - (31,732) - (81,732
reclassifed fo proft or

loss on disposal

of subsiciares
Total comprehensive FEER2ENREE = = - - - - - 61,647 (2782 334,621 393486 57,099 450,585
income for the year
Disposalof subsidiares HEREAR = - - 940,026 (o1.427) (2049 - - - (846,556) - (8519 (8519
Deemed partl disposal of RIS ENBAR (REXE - - - - - 431 - 3 - - 5,064 (5,064) -
subsidaries withoutlosing Bl Bk up)

control rote 24(o))
Issuance of shares 0n RERSTRAR (i) 45,501 207034 - - - - - - - - 5% - M55
placement (note 36)
Transfer to stafutory resenve Bleik - - - - 49195 - - - - (49,195 - - -
Changes in eqity FEERERD 45,501 2104 - 940,026 (42232) 2308 - 62,360 (2782 (661,130) 671,085 43516 714601
forthe year
At 31 December 2021 AZE--E+28°+-8 2730063416858 2260 - 2l S0 4149 164,990 16621) (184933 2053934 1838028 4791967
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SLEBHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

2021 2020
—E—— —ETHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
{iEsd FE T FAT
(re-presented)
(se&E5)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETERATE TR, (&518)
— Continuing operations - FBEIREE 223,798 (351,283)
- Discontinued operations - BRI ETS 84,452 (459,594)
308,250 (810,877)
Adjustments for: KA BIERE -
Interest income FEMA 10 (9,924) (30,241)
Dividend income A& Bl A 10 = (9,100)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B AR MU E 40(b) (399,199) -
Finance costs BhA& BN 11 140,643 120,484
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hh & =iy 23 4,303 36,875
Depreciation e 20 30,642 22,833
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE M RENEIR
plant and equipment 10 1 123
Gain on early termination of lease AR EEERN kS 10 ()] -
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment EMENATE (W) EiE
properties 21 (70,713) 52,297
Fair value gain on derivative financial PTESMEEN AT ERS
asset (1,313) (18,291)
Loss from derecognition of derivative BIEERITESRIBEENEE
financial asset 10 33,357 -
Gain from derecognition of financial BITERY ISR A LI
guarantee contract 10 - (33,419)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEIE 22 - 18,566
Impairment losses on other intangible HibmpEEREsa
assets 23 10,211 419,802
Impairment losses on property, ME - BE MR EREER
plant and equipment 20 35,755 34,687
Impairment losses on financial and SRINRENEERERE - F8
contract assets - net 13 23,730 83,765
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 13 163,998 136,826
Operating profit before working capital EIEESEBE 2 KR
changes 269,739 24,330
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N E b FE UL R IE S N (214,807) (508,896)
Increase in inventories FEEMN (1,453,808) (1,970,760)
Increase in contract liabilities SHBEEN 2,137,536 1,088,653
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other 25 REMBARERN CRD)
payables 1,153,491 (679,229)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations  &&EENATE, (FTFE) IR & 1,892,151 (1,945,902)
Tax paid EAHIA (159,735) (228,654)
Interest received BUF B 9,924 30,241
Net cash generated from/(used in) REENATS, (FTHRE) IR F 58
operating activities 1,742,340 (2,144,315)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
LEBHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

2021 2020
—E—— —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE THET FAT
(re-presented)
(1&=%1))
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividend income of financial asset EATEBEBEMEEKETRZ
at FVTOCI SREEZRBKA = 3,135
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash HEMRBAR - IRELERS
disposed 40(b) 178,023 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash WHENB AT - HREESRS
acquired 40(a) - 2,937
Decrease in pledged and restricted EHERRZR RTINS
bank deposits 188,429 207,669
Payment of consideration in relation to BEFERKEBNB ARSI NRE
acquisition of subsidiaries in
prior year (548) (802,691)
Purchases of property, plant BEYE  WELRE
and equipment (34,642) (27,231)
Payment for investment properties SRR EE (233,559) (307,512)
Payment for intangible assets SEEEE (128) (1,720)
Proceeds from redemption of bond & o] R U (BRI FTIS 3B
receivables - 168,150
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAFEEBE MBI
assets at FVTOCI HIBRM 2R E EFTS A = 135,725
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - E REHENATSZ0E
plant and equipment 103 497
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMENEHRIE
properties 415,604 11,675
Net cash generated from/(used in) RE RS (FTiE) & F58
investing activities 513,282 (109,366)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

z%-"‘A

BEnER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE
2021 2020
—E—— —ETHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
{iEsd FE T FAT
(re-presented)
(1&=%1))
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution by non-controlling TS ER 2 A AZLE
equity holders - 2,346
(Repayment to)/advances from RlEs 2 (1E8) 83
related parties 40(c) (110,536) 29,896
Proceeds from borrowings EEIEEE S 40(c) 5,117,219 14,572,149
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds — #17R BlEH TSR 40(c) 180,000 879,000
Proceeds from issue of shares on R E RSB TIR D TS 2B
placement 272,535 -
Repayment of borrowings EEER 40(c) (6,873,804) (10,883,740)
Repayment of corporate bonds BERARES 40(c) (374,000) (1,210,500)
Repayment of principal portion on EBEEHEEREIASHY
lease liabilities 40(c) (6,405) (2,432)
Repayment of interest portion on lease BEHEBRZMNEHND
liabilities 40(c) (6,003) (3,086)
Repayment to an non-controlling [EheEzeat e £
interest 40(c) (230) (232)
Interest paid BAFE 40(c) (799,271) (986,392)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE (FTHE) B IRE T
financing activities (2,600,495) 2,397,009
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH RE&RREZEY (BD) ENFEHE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (344,873) 143,328
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHNZEEeRRLEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 735,501 634,120
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE Exgy g
RATE CHANGES (49,235) (41,947)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZESRBRSEEY -
AT END OF YEAR, REPRESENTED BY #UTARRR 341,393 735,501
Bank and cash balances KREESMERS TR 341,393 735,501
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

1. General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business in Hong Kong is 18/F., Wing
On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements. “The Group” comprises the Company and its subsidiaries.

2. Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

(b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under

the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values.

(c) Going concern assumption
As at 31 December 2021, as disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had
total borrowings of approximately HK$8,067,474,000, of
which the current borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$5,404,088,000. However, the Group had bank and cash
balances of approximately HK$341,393,000 only.

The above events or conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, that the
Group may not be able to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

2. Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©)

Going concern assumption (Continued)
For the purpose of assessing going concern, the directors of

the Company have prepared a cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period of twelve months from the end of the reporting
period (the “Cash Flow Forecast”) with plans and measures
to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its financial
position. Certain plans and measures have been or will be taken

by the directors of the Company include, but not limited to, the
following:

M

(i)

The Group has been actively negotiating with the fund
providers in respect of certain borrowings with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,092 million,
which are repayable during the year ending 31 December
2022 (the “Renewable Borrowings”), for an extension of
maturity beyond 31 December 2022 in order to improve
the cash flows of the Group. The directors of the Company
are confident that the extension would be granted based
on their advanced negotiation with the fund providers;

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a number of
unutilised loan facilities of approximately HK$5,294 million
(note 31). Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group
has further obtained a number of other loan facilities in
the aggregate amount of approximately HK$43 million.
Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group has drawn
down approximately HK$32 million. In this respect,
the directors of the Company are confident that these
unutilised loan facilities could provide adequate financing
funding to the Group, as and when necessary; and

the Group will accelerate the pre-sales of its major property
development projects during the period of the Cash Flow
Forecast.

2. EEEE@m)

()

FEEERR (R)
RIEIFERLE  ARRERERY
MEAREEBREARET @A
HHzREREBA(RERERE
AL - I AT B R A A AR R
BeBORREREFBRR - ARF
EECRHKRIE TR R -
BREEIRRATEIE

() AEBEFEGHETSEESHS
491,092,000,000 78 JT I B
EZE_ZF+ZA=+—
EFEEEZER(AEER
R EESREEFER - T
REHBEE-_ZE-_—_F+=48
=+t—HBZE KhmERSE
BvBRenE ANAREEN
ERENSHESREE S
AIRER « ISREIBMEIER

/!

m @

i) RZTEZ—F+A=+-—
A AEEEBZERDHAE
X Eh & 495,294,000,000% 7T
(M5E31) c RZBZ—F+ =
B=+—B#% A&E#E—F
BEZEEMERBELIED
43,000,000/ R=ZFT=—
F+ZA=+—RH% £~%H
2 $2EX#732,000,00078 7T © Bt
ME  ARRESHEEZE
REAERBERETERE
ABAEBRERTEMEES
53

(i) ARBEHNEDSRERRHRE
IREBMEFBRBNTAE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

2.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©)

(d)

Going concern assumption (Continued)

Based on the Cash Flow Forecast assuming the above plans
and measures can be successfully implemented as scheduled,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
is able to continue as a going concern and would have sufficient
financial resources to finance the Group’s operations and meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above plans and measures,
it might not be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their net realisable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is the Company’s
presentation and functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

3. Adoption of HKFRSs

(@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2021

The HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase
2

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior period. In addition, the Group has early applied the
amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 ahead of the effective date and applied the
amendment from 1 January 2021.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting
for changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows
of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as
modifications, and (ii) discontinuing hedge accounting when an
interest rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR
reform”). The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the group does not have contracts that
are indexed to benchmark interest rates which are subject to the
IBOR reform.

3. ERMWERBMBHREER

(@

RAF T REETERBTBER
HER - A ZFE=Z—F—H—
BAEXM
EEEHMASCEHLENNER
ARG EIR R E R B ET S s ET
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g 8 AN 5 B 8 HA R ok R 1T B R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2021 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

In April 2021, the HKICPA issued an amendment to HKFRS 16:
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021,
which extended the above practical expedient to reductions in
lease payments that were originally due on or before 30 June
2022. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2021 with earlier application permitted. The
amendment is to be applied mandatorily by those entities that
have elected to apply the previous amendment Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions. The Group has early adopted the amendment
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 in
the current annual financial statements.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these changes
on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'’

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?®

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use!

3. RHBFBMBHREER @)

B BB RAERZHFTHE
BRI & B BRELER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract'

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards,
HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, HKFRS16
Leases and HKAS 41
Agriculture’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 2018-2020 Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
S No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 instead of
the version issued in 2010. The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a
requirement that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition
date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a
levy that would be within the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies,
the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the
obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent
assets acquired in a business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Veenture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. When the transaction with an associate or joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method, any gains
or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that
does not contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting
from the remeasurement of retained interest in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture) to
fair value are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments

HKFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts
and supersedes HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

HKFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for
insurance contracts with direct participation features, described
as the variable fee approach. The general model is simplified if
certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining
coverage using the premium allocation approach.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B ISR AR B E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments
(Continued)

The general model will use current assumptions to estimate
the amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows and it
will explicitly measure the cost of that uncertainty, it takes into
account market interest rates and the impact of policyholders’
options and guarantees.

The HKICPA issued Amendments to HKFRS 17 to address
concerns and implementation challenges that were identified
after HKFRS 17 was published. The amendments defer the date
of initial application of HKFRS 17 (incorporating the amendments)
to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023. At the same time, the HKICPA issued Amendments to
HKFRS 4 Extension of the Temporary Exemption from HKFRS
9 that extends the fixed expiry date of the temporary exemption
from applying HKFRS 9 in HKFRS 4 to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

HKFRS 17 is applied retrospectively unless impracticable, in
which case the modified retrospective approach or the fair value
approach is applied.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial
application is the start of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the standard, and the transition date is the
beginning of the period immediately preceding the date of initial
application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if
it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted.

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is recognised
in profit or loss.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts are
immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information relating
to material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B ISR AR B E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require such
items to be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be
observed directly and must instead be estimated. In such a
case, an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the
objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions based
on the latest available, reliable information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
prospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is recognised
in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs
of fulfiling that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling contracts
(e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

3. Adoption of HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of standards,
including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees
included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of
HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received between
the entity and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative Example 13
to remove the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated
in that example.

HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the requirement to
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value
of a biological asset using a present value technique.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies

(@)

Basis of consolidation

Business combination

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition
or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combination using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities and assets
meets the definition of a business and control is transferred to
the Group. In determining whether a particular set of activities
and assets is a business, the Group assesses whether the set of
assets and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired set has the
ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred
and equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments
in which case the costs are deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(@)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwiill
only to the extent that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
such non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and
each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control of the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(@)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination involving entities
or businesses under common control

A business combination involving entities or businesses under
common control is a business combination in which all of the
combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties both before and after the business
combination, and that control is not transitory. The Group adopts
merger accounting in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5
Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations issued by
HKICPA for common control combinations.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities or businesses in which
the common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using their carrying amounts prior to the business
combinations. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill
or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost
at the time of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date presented
or since the date when the combining entities first came under
the common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of
the date of the common control combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% — & ——

4.

Ft_A=1—HIFFE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

()

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount (see note 4(r)), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(©)

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However, the
loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual asset’s
carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, including buildings, held for

use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their cost or valuation net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:

Office equipment 3to 10 years

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years
Yacht 4to 10 years
Buildings Over the shorter of the

term of the lease,
and 20-30 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
Other land and properties leased

for own use carried at cost

Over the lease term

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as
borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate class
of property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

(f)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held either to earn rentals

or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are measured at cost on initial recognition
and subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

Investment properties are derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property,
calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Leases

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases
for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or leasehold land where the interest in
the land is held as inventory, the Group measures the right-of-
use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the
Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS
40 and are carried at fair value. The Group accounts for right-
of-use assets related to interests in leasehold land where the
interest in the land is held as inventory are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.Other than the above right-of-use
assets, the Group also has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it judgement
and determines that it is a separate class of asset apart from
the leasehold buildings which is held for own use. As a result,
the right-of-use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: () increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the
carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments to
make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly
revised when the variable element of future lease payments
dependent on a rate or index is revised, except the discount rate
remains unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent adjustment
is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the
revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised in
profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate with
the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained,
the modification is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other
cases, where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease
(whether that is an extension to the lease term, or one or more
additional assets being leased), the lease liability is remeasured
using the discount rate applicable on the modification date,
with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount.
With the exception to which the practical expedient for Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions applies (see note 2(a)), if the
renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease,
both the carrying amount of the lease liability and right-of-use
asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the partial
or full termination of the lease with any difference recognised in
profit or loss. The lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure
its carrying amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated
payments over the renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable on the modification
date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group has leased out its investment property to a number
of tenants. Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group accounts
for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, recognising the remaining lease
payments as income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term.

Service concession arrangements
Service concession arrangements are accounted for as follows if:

(i) the grantor controls or regulates what services the operator
must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must
provide them, and at what price; and

(i)  the grantor controls through ownership, beneficial
entittement or otherwise any significant residual interest in
the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

The Group’s rights over the infrastructure

Infrastructure constructed by the Group under service concession
arrangements is not recognised as property, plant and equipment
of the Group because the contractual service arrangement does
not convey the right to control the use of the infrastructure to the
Group. The operator has access to operate the infrastructure to
provide the public service on behalf of the grantor in accordance
with the terms specified in the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Service concession arrangements (Continued)
Consideration received or receivable by the Group for the
construction services

Consideration received or receivable by the Group for the
construction services rendered under service concession
arrangement is recognised at its fair value as a financial asset or
an intangible asset.

An intangible asset (other intangible assets) is recognised to the
extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of the
public service, which is not an unconditional right to receive cash
because the amounts are contingent on the extent that the public
uses the service. The intangible asset (other intangible assets) is
accounted for in accordance with note 4(h).

Construction or upgrade services
Revenue and costs relating to construction or upgrade services
are accounted for in accordance with note 4(mj(iv).

Operating services
Revenue relating to operating services are accounted for in
accordance with note 4(m).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful
lives as follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% — & ——

4.

Ft_A=1—HIFFE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Operating right for operation of a marine sports base
and a sailing school arising from a service concession
arrangement

Shenzhen Yuejin Sports Company Limited (“Yuejin Sports”)
entered into an agreement dated 27 August 2014 (the
“Operation Entrustment Agreement”) with Shenzhen
Dapeng New District Management Committee, pursuant
to which the operation of Shenzhen marine sports base
and sailing school would be entrusted to Yuejin Sports
for a period of 20 years (the “Operating Right”). Under
the Operating right, Yuejin Sports has developed the
operations of a yacht club and provision of training
services.

The Operating Right is initially measured at fair value
upon acquisition of Yue Jin Asia Limited (“Yue Jin Asia”)
and subsequently less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over an initial period of 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

()

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing
their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirely when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Debt investments at
FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest rate method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”): Financial assets
at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at
FVTOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables, contract assets,
financial assets measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at FVTOCI. ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when
the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to action such
as realising security (if any is held); or the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

° failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

° existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the counterparty; (2) a breach of contract, such
as a default or past due event; (3) the lender(s) of the
counterparty, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted to
the counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider; (4) it is becoming probable that
the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or (5) the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021

4,

FESHBER @)
() £mMIEw@
() SREEZREEEE)

AEBMABL - WEFATKA
RREASREEERERNER
BERMFBE)ETHOBER
TRRAEEREXNEEREER
T HEREERHBEIERD
B AeREERED -

e

EME - AHEEERRES
B R HERBIARARE LSS
EEATER :

hfll3

3

e RERAHIHBXNAR

BHAE

o ERMTAIEHAEMN

FR(NE)WER LA
m@ER

o  EBRAREEEERLE
HEEEl &

o HEBABRITEHEAEKE
B NELEEARTH
FENRI - ™ KR
PERRFRERFANE
1t o

AEERREREER TG
MBEERE: (NBETARER
ZHEFRABREVR Q&R
AR PlmRHLBRENS
QR ZHFERALRER
SHHFHREBOLELA L
REA - MAXZEHFRTER
ARERTEZENESR R
S FRIEHERETH MY
BEMA: HEBARME - %2
BEEWEERETS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or contract
asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the
recovery oCcurs.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, borrowings and consideration payable
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

()

(v

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
loss allowance, being the ECL provision measured in
accordance with principles of the accounting policy set
out in 4(i)(i); and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

0)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(vii)  Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other financial institutions, and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

)

U]

Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group (i.e. the

operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group) that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the component meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, which comprises the post-tax profit or
loss of the discontinued operation; and post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operation.

Properties under development and properties held
for sale

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Development costs include acquisition costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
costs attributable to such properties during the construction
period. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

On completion, the properties are reclassified to properties held
for sale at the carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

U]

(m)

Properties under development and properties held
for sale (Continued)

Properties under development (Continued)

Properties under development are classi?ed as current assets
when the construction of the relevant properties commences
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal
operating cycle.

Properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of each
relevant year are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
cost necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or
service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method.

For contracts where the period between the payment and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i)

Yacht club services
Revenue from yacht club services comprise mainly income
from members and other customers.

Revenue from provision of yacht club services to
membership holders are recognised over the membership
period in which the yacht club services are performed.
Payment for the membership therefore is recognised as a
contract liability over the membership period.

Revenue from yacht parking services is recognised over
the time of the services performed to customers.

Revenue from provision of yacht club services to other
customers is recognised when services rendered to the
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(v)

Training service
Revenue from training services is recognised over the time
of the service performed to customers.

Sales of properties

The Group develops and sells commercial and residential
properties in the PRC. Revenue is recognised when
control over the property has been transferred to the
customer. The properties have generally no alternative use
for the group due to contractual restrictions. However,
an enforceable right to payment does not arise until legal
title has passed to the customer. Therefore, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the legal title has
passed to the customer.

The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed
under the contract. In most cases, the consideration is
due when legal title has been transferred. While deferred
payment terms may be agreed in rare circumstances, the
deferral never exceeds twelve months. The transaction
price is therefore not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component.

Revenue from construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
when or as the construction projects are transferred to the
customer. Depending on the terms of the contracts and
the laws that are applicable to the contracts, control of the
construction projects may transfer over time or at a point
in time. If the Group creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
and therefore, recognises revenue over time in accordance
with the input method for measuring progress.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

%5—:\«&

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

BTSRRI RE

Ft_A=+—HIFFE

4. FESHEE@®

(m) &EERI

(#8)

(v)  Trading of commodities V) AFRXZ
Revenue from the sale of commodities is recognised when HEMMTS 2 EENE mE
control of the commodities have transferred, being when flEgEr (AEREEXER
the commodities have been shipped to the customer’s FeE 2 (M) ) R RERR o
specific location (delivery). The Group is primarily AEBFTEZBERITIREEE
responsible for fulfiling the promise to provide the specified BEmsk RS 2 A - RRIERE
good or service, has inventory risk before the specified %ffuiﬁ&i%%%%%%:}ézmﬂ
good or service has been transferred to a customer and BEFE BRI E®
has discretion in establishing the price for the specified THEFE’]F“EFW REHE
good or service. A receivable is recognised by the Group REmRX =R R (BIURER
when the commodities are delivered to the customer B2 R R G I ) FERR B
as this represents the point in time at which the right to WskIE - MBI BN RAER
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage BRI o
of time is required before payment is due.

(vi)  Trading of seafood Vi) EE&H
Revenue from sales of seafood is recognised point in time EESHNEEERERNTT
when the goods are delivered to customers and title has BPRAAERERRESR -
passed.

(viij  Trading of home appliances and building materials Vi) B EEE Fan FIEZEMH
Revenue from home appliances and building materials is BEEXRERAMMEEMBAE
recognised point in time as those services are rendered. RN IRHZF RIS -

(vii) Rental income (viip)  HHEHA
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over AW ARBEHRNFERAERE
the lease term. TR

(ix)  Dividend income (x) REHA
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTOCI is BEATFEAEBEMEEKES)
recognised in profit or loss when the shareholder’s right to R SREE 2R EBWARR

receive payment is established.

BRURER A 50z M HE ST B A 1R
TR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(x)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group completes
the construction works under such services contracts but
yet certified by architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by customers, or (ii) the customers retain retention
money to secure the due performance of the contracts. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified
to trade receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the
output method then the Group recognises a contract liability for
the difference.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

Contract costs
The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil a
contract when those costs meet all of the following criteria:

(@)  the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss
on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the cost relate. The
asset is subject to impairment review.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
that reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes
and initial recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part
of the business combination which affect neither accounting
nor taxable profits, taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, provided that the deductible
temporary differences are not arises from initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction other than in a business
combination that affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and reflects
any uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income tax levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the assets to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

(0)

Income taxes (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement in determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under HKAS
40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted,
the deferred tax amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than through sale.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the functional currency are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% — & ——

4.

Ft_A=1—HIFFE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

(P)

Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in
profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the
Group’s net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the foreign exchange reserve.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the related service.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021

4,

(0)

(o)}

FESHBE @

S ()
RAREE  BINEBZWRRR
FANTEERRESRERZ 27
B (ANETT) » HEE XK BRI ARIER
BAIRRSN - EUERT - AIER R
SEITE T RERIRE ZEX - B
X ZMBEERBBERBENIRZ
PERIME o FIELMEN Z5 (WA)
REMZEEEATER - LRRAR
RETRE LR (R BN IEEH 1%
@ (RER)) - NEEE B ER &
BmER 2 BERAER 2 ELZEN
BERHERIER (BRAKERE
BN ER 2 FREN—HD)KE
MEEAREMEMENKE - YHEAR
RERIER R

RHEEEINERR - RZEBEED
& B AT RO E R A R RETE
HER DEFSEEBERERLE
Bmz—=29 o

RIZERF-A—HzgWEE
INEBELENECRBEIRNEEZS
BRAFEAE  RERZEINER

ZEBERAE  WRBEHRZEMR
PERIE o ULEL 2B N ERNE

R -

BEREF

() FEEHESEF
MR E RN R ERER
REBBRENFEREHR
&+ {8 A ART IS 28T 2
RERN (BERAEMERIN) - 58
HifE B I E B R AR AR
B2 FENFER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(P)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the services received
is measured by reference to the fair value of the options at the
date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in profit or loss over
the vesting period with a corresponding increase in the share
option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period so that,
ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting
period is based on the number of options that eventually vest.
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all non-market vesting conditions are
satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not
adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before
they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification, is also recognised
in profit or loss over the remaining vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of assets (other than financial assets) to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating unit
(see note 4(c)), discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021

4,

FESHEE@®

)

& (SMEERHN) AIE
ARBREREHAENAE (2R
AERIN) 2 BEE  AREREE
BRERHS AR RAEEESB
EERRZMEBRREE e
D o

BEZ WO SR (BIQFER G E
RAEEREEMET ZREE)
FHOREBREER - A& EREER
MEER WD S - R EE R
P HER - FRIFEREERES —A
ERUBREENZEHSRIIER
HEUBERT - REREREAEEM
BlEERIE THE-RD

WEKRBREIRERE - RIKEEZR
B N = H B AT /b FT AT k@
B MBI BREENSBEEN
BEFEWEMEER-ZRERBEM
REEERRE(E - BIERERE A
R A - FRIFHREERES
—EEEMBREENREH SR
R ERBERT  REBEEDRR
RBEVBRELERNAT 2EMHE
e

EREENREBEEMNREEEXRS
EEE B (R 4(0) Bk EH R IR
EREME  BRREBKREZE
ARG EREERRSEL SN2
Fra R AR RBIREHIR
B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income
earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets (including property, plant
and equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identi?ed as the executive directors of the
Company that make strategic decisions.

Related parties
(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)()) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

)

(i)

(i)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

There is significant ongoing uncertainty surrounding the COVID-19
pandemic and the extent and duration of impacts that it may have on
operations of the Group’s yacht club, training as well as golf practise
court. There is heightened potential for impairments of property, plant
and equipment and other intangible assets. In the current environment,
assumptions about results of operation of yacht club, training as well
as golf practise court and customer creditworthiness have greater
variability than normal, which could in the future significantly affect the
valuation of the Group’s assets, both financial and non-financial. The
Group’s cash flow projections for certain assets are based on a longer
time horizon due to the long-term nature of its underlying contracts,
allowing time for a recovery of such assets. As an understanding of the
long-term impacts of COVID-19 pandemic on the Group’s customers
and business develops, there is heightened potential for changes in
these views in future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(i) Deferred tax for investment properties
For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised
deferred taxation on changes in fair value of investment
properties as the Group is subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT).

(i) Principal versus agent consideration

Significant judgments include determining whether the Group is
acting as the principal in a transaction. When another party is
involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to
be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent). The
Group is a principal in a transaction if the Group obtains control
of the specific goods or services before they are transferred
to customers. The control is the (i) ability, (i) direct the use of,
and (jii) obtain the benefits from the specific goods or services.
The Group follows the accounting guidance for principal-
agent considerations to assess whether the Group controls the
specified goods or services before they are transferred to the
customers, the indicators of which including but not limited to (a)
whether the entity is primarily responsible for fulfiling the promise
to provide the specific goods or services; (b) whether the entity
bear the inventory risk before the specific goods or services are
being delivered to the customers; and (c) whether the entity has
the sole discretion in establishing the selling prices for the specific
goods or service. When the Group acts as a principal, it records
revenues on a gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net
amount earned as commissions from products sold or services
provided.
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5. Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Principal versus agent consideration (Continued)

The Group has obtained the control of the commodities prior
to the delivery to the customers, therefore, the directors of the
Company considered the revenue for the trading of commodities
is acting as the principal and the revenue is recognised for on the
gross basis.

Going concern assumption

As mentioned in note 2(c), the directors of the Company have
prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 based on a going concern basis. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves making
judgement by the directors of the Company at a particular
point of time, about the future outcome of events or conditions
which are uncertain. The Group’s management has prepared
a cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period of twelve
months and concluded that there will be sufficient funds from
the Group’s existing cash and fund resources, and cash flows to
be generated from its operations to finance its future operations
to maintain the Group as a going concern in the year ending
31 December 2022. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group have the capability to continue as a
going concern.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, other key sources of estimation uncertainty that have
a significant risk of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within next financial year are as follows:

()

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income tax in the PRC. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

()

Income taxes and deferred tax (Continued)

Moreover, The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
in the PRC. The PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of the sales of properties less the estimated deductible
expenditures, the cost of land use rights and all relevant property
development expenditures. Significant judgment is required in
estimating the amounts of land appreciation and the applicable
LAT rate due to the uncertainty of proceeds of sales of properties
and deductible expenditures. However, the implementation and
settlement of the tax varies amongst different tax jurisdictions in
various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the Group have
not finalised their LAT calculations and payments with any local
tax authorities in the PRC. The amount of the land appreciation is
determined with reference to proceeds of the sales of properties
less the estimated deductible expenditures, including the
cost of land use rights and all relevant property development
expenditures. The Group recognised the LAT based on the
management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the related
income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised
with local tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.
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5. Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuer. In
determining the fair value, the valuer have based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates of market condition. In
relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the valuation
method, input used and the assumptions used in the valuation
are reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to these
input and assumptions would result in changes in the fair values
of the Group’s investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets based on lifetime ECL. For trade receivables
and contract assets which are individually significant and credit-
impaired, the management assesses credit losses individually
by estimating the contractual cash flow expected to receive,
based on the evidence of credit-impairment and forward-
looking information. Except for trade receivables and contract
assets which are individually significant and credit-impaired,
the management uses provision matrix to assess ECL, which
is based on collective credit risk characteristics. The ECL
rates are based on the Group’s historical loss rates, taking into
consideration forward-looking information. The impairment of
trade receivables and contract assets involves management’s
accounting estimations and judgements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

Provision for net realisable value on properties under
development and properties held for sale

Properties under development and properties held for sale are
stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value. Based on
the experience of the directors of the Company and the nature of
the subject properties, the directors of the Company determine
the net realisable value of properties under development and
properties held for sale by reference to the estimated market
prices of the properties under development and properties held
for sale, which takes into account a number of factors including
the recent prices of similar property types in the same project
or by similar properties, and the prevailing real estate market
conditions in the PRC. The directors of the Company estimate
the costs to completion and costs necessary to make the sale
by reference to the actual development cost of other similar
completed projects of the Group.

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the Group
entities, Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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6.

A= —AIEE

Financial risk management (Continued)

(@)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s bank and cash

balances and pledged and restricted bank deposits are mainly
denominated in HK$, RMB and US dollar (‘US$”). Since HK$ is
pegged to US$, the Group believes the exposure of transactions
denominated in US$ which are entered into the Group to be
insignificant.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% with all other variables held constant, there will
be no significant impact on the post-tax results of the Group.

These are the same method and assumption used in preparing
the sensitivity analysis included in the financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have been followed
by the Group since prior years and are considered to be effective.
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6. Financial risk management (Continued)

(b)

()

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in equity securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk and return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Stock Exchange
and Nasdag Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2020: 10% higher/
lower):

- other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2021 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$469,000 (2020: increase/decrease by approximately
HK$748,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from
its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.
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6.

Financial risk management (Continued)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group as set out
in note 33, the Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at
the end of the reporting period is disclosed in note 33.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is
calculated using the probability of default, loss given default and
the exposure at default with reference to the historical data of the
market of the debtors’ and the industry.

ECL rate of contract assets with gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$38,743,000 (2020: HK$37,256,000) is
assessed to be 10.64% (2020: 10.64%). As at 31 December
2021, the loss allowance provision for contract assets was
HK$4,124,000 (2020: HK$3,963,000).

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021

6.

B ERERE @)
) EERE@

B B 5 33 ATl AN S2 B R L A0 BA A HE R
SN REEVWERBTAATESEAE
EEEEERRAEMER - RIRE
X BAZEMBEROEAEER
[B B FR PAKTEE 33 ©

E SN EREEE

BEFEERBRIIZBAEEREHARN
EFEERREBOBE BFR
EETUEE - AKBEHMA ERiE
B-EEESENEPETENEE
FHE  ZEFEETREPBERER
T8 B BT RO SE SR AC 8% N B AV IE TR AE
h BEREFPHREERARER
LEMBKERE - —RM=E - A%
BAEREFIEHMERR -

AEEZEFHRRERFHESEN
TEHEBESRYFENANEELZ
EEEE - BETMERENRER - 2BY
EREMEORR  K2EBEHAR
TRZTSBERETE -

AR 42 B 4938,743,0008 L (= F =
T 137,256,000 T0) ZERNEE
2B EEEBRAE10.64% (=
TFF 1 10.64%) c AT =—4F
TZA=+—RH " AHEEZEEE
#B41240008 T(Z T T F -
3,963,000787T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

6. Financial risk management (Continued)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The following tables provide information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables as at 31

December 2021 and 2020:

6. HEERERERE @

(c) EEREE @
ESEWABARENEE (&)

TRIEHEEHAREBR = —F K
—E-TFE+_A=+—HnE5E

WERFTE R (E &R MR ER

EBEER
Gross

carrying Loss
2021 B —F ECL rate (%) amount allowance
FEHIEEEIEER (%) BERE{E EERE
(HK$°000) (HK$’000)
(F#&x) (F#&7)

Current (not past due) to BUER (R#EHA) =
30 days past due #HIZ0 H 0.001%-1.88% 21,774 22
31-90 days past due #HIZ1 £ 90 H 0.001%-1.88% 5,836 8
More than 90 days past due BHEIQ0 HIA L 0.01%-8.58% 49,569 667
77,179 697

Gross

carrying Loss
2020 —ETF ECL rate (%) amount allowance
TEEEERIEER (%) HREREE it
(HK$’000) (HK$’000)
(F%7T) (FA&mT)

Current (not past due) to BNER (R fp) =
30 days past due #HI0 H 0.04%-23.54% 41,485 128
31-90 days past due #HI31 £ 90 H 0.02%-23.54% 34,756 46
More than 90 days past due BHAQ0 HIA £ 0.20%-23.59% 37,012 608
113,253 782

ECL rates are based on the probability of default, loss given
default and the exposure at default with reference to the historical
data of the market of the debtors’ and the industry. The loss
allowance based on past due status is further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

BHEEBEERENZONE - &
MEBERIENRR  Y2REBAR
TEMSNELBURETHE - AR
B EHRNBRREEARE T
R % P AR 2 FINAE— Ry
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

6. Financial risk management (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade

6. HEERERERE@m

(c) &R @
ESENABRENEE (&)
BRE SRR BRBERNF

receivables during the year is as follows: NEBIAT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —EITF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
At 1 January n—A—H 782 535
Amounts reversed during the year FRE O e (163) (471)
Impairment losses recognised FANFERARIERE
during the year 1,330 677
Disposal of subsidiaries(note 40(b)) & B 2 ] (3T 40(b)) (1,284) -
Exchange differences P =58 32 41
At 31 December R+=BA=+—H 697 782

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of contract

BB NAE BRRBERENE

assets during the year is as follows: BT
2021 2020
—BE-—F T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
At 1 January n—A—H 3,963 68,471
Write-off s = (125,013)
Impairment losses recognised FRERRR(EEE
during the year 3 59,822
Exchange differences P i ERE 158 683
At 31 December R+=-—B=+—H 4,124 3,963

The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts
of trade receivables and contract assets contributed to the
changes in the loss allowance:

- disposal of subsidiaries resulted in a decrease in loss
allowance of approximately HK$1,284,000 (2020: HK$NIl);

- write-off of contract assets resulted in a decrease
in loss allowance of approximately HK$nil (2020:
HK$125,013,000); and

- origination of new trade receivables and contract assets net

of those settled resulted in an increase in loss allowance of
approximately HK$1,170,000 (2020: HK$60,028,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

Financial risk management (Continued)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

In respect of other receivables, the Group monitors the
exposures and manages them based on historical settlement
records and past experience, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. At the reporting date, the credit risk
on other receivables has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of other
receivables during the year is as follows:

6.

== —AILEE

B S E b B I (@)

() EEER @
/ﬁ:@/’_@/ﬁ?ﬂ%
ﬁE@EWMEWE'KEEEKﬁ
PREDHRBELCH  BRRED
*X%@#R#% BALEITEIR -

RS A ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ& KIRNE
B 2l B Y156 B 52 A 2K I M K 1 12
no AEBERESN+ _EARRE
EEEZ 2B ERMERTRNE
1B -

5 A L U 50 IE 2 SR B AR T 4
WEBIT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 January R—A—H 31,223 5,572
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(b)) T E A E] (KI7E40(0)) (45,706) -
Amounts reversed during the year FREERE 5 (998) (3,882)
Impairment losses recognised FERRBEEE
during the year 23,558 27,619
Exchange differences EH %R 1,634 1,914
At 31 December H+=-—B=+—H 9,711 31,223
The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts Hp WG EARMER AU TEX
of other receivables contributed to the changes in the loss BEERBEREEMEY
allowance:
- disposal of subsidiaries resulted in a decrease in loss - BT B A 718 SR B BB

allowance of approximately HK$45,706,000 (2020:
HK$NIil); and

- origination of new other receivables net of those settled
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of approximately
HK$22,560,000 (2020: HK$23,737,000) during the year.

4 #145,706,0008 T( = F =
THETET) R

- FRESFMNEHMDEKEIE (0
BREFEEE)  SREBEREE
22,560,000 T(=ZZE =F

4 : 23,737,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

6.

Financial risk management (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s management regularly monitors current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$8,067,474,000, of which the current
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$5,404,088,000.
However, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$341,393,000 only.

The above events or conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

For the purpose of assessing going concern, the directors of the
Company have prepared the Cash Flow Forecast with plans and
measures to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its
financial position. Certain plans and measures have been or will
be taken by the directors of the Company as summarised in note
2(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

6. Financial risk management (Continued) 6. HMKEEBEE @
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) RBESE(#E
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash REAEEFETESHMBENTTOR
flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities is as follows: ALIRIR &M EETH R E R HTE
PONNE
Less than Between Between
1 year or 1and 2and Over
on demand 2 years 5years 5years Total
1FHR
BER 182F 2E5% 5L st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEL FET TEL TEL TEL
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—-%+-B=1+-H
Borrowings TN 6,599,799 848,965 2,887,657 - 10,336,421
Trade payables B AR 2,940,351 - - - 2,940,351
Wages and salaries payables, [Eff TE R4S - RIS -
interest payable, accruals [EETE R R E M EN 08
and other payables 1,025,529 - - - 1,025,529
Lease liabilities HEAR 12,029 11,627 34,545 41,739 99,940
10,577,708 860,592 2,922,202 41,739 14,402,241
Financial guarantee issued: B % H B &R :
Maximum amount guaranteed ¥R &5 45 - - 1,660,573 - 1,660,573
At 31 December 2020 R-BZBF+-A=t-8H
Borrowings & 6,216,800 3,332,163 4,716,140 - 14,265,103
Trade payables B HEIIE 2,978,021 - - - 2,978,021
Wages and salaries payables, [Eff TE RS - RIS -
interest payable, accruals [EETE R R E AR 08
and other payables 1,077,174 - - - 1,077,174
Consideration payable ERRE 589 - 46,236 416,129 462,954
Leas liabilties HEAE 12,557 10,481 36,997 37,327 97,362
10,285,141 3,342,644 4,799,373 453,456 18,880,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

6.

Financial risk management (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amounts if
that amounts are claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Group considers that it is more likely that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subjected to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee that the guaranteed
financial receivables held by the counterparty suffers credit
losses.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits which bear interests at variable rates that vary with the
then prevailing market condition.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds and
loans from related parties bear interests at fixed interest rates and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit for the year and increase/decrease the Group’s
accumulated losses by approximately HK$60,506,000.

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s
loss for the year and increase/decrease the Group’s accumulated
losses by approximately HK$92,727,000.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that date. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting date.

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE

Financial risk management (Continued) 6. HMERBERE @
() Categories of financial instruments at 31 December H HR+=-—A=+—HzE&®MIA
B
2021 2020
— B —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Financial assets SREE
Measured at fair value: BAFERE
Financial assets at FVTPL EATEBEBRERYEZEREE
— Derivative financial asset -TTEeREE = 32,044
Financial assets at FVTOCI RAFEEBEMEERE
PR SR EE
- Equity instruments -BRATHA 4,694 7,477
Measured at amortised cost: LESH ARG E
— Financial assets included in trade -5t AB 5 K H AR RIE
and other receivables NemEE 3,378,690 2,335,652
— Pledged and restricted bank - BIE R ZRAIRITER
deposits 381,882 618,133
— Bank and cash balances - IRIT IR 341,393 735,501
4,101,965 3,689,286
Financial liabilities SRAaE
Measured at amortised cost: WEH ARG &
— Borrowings - B 8,067,474 12,363,664
- Financial liabilities included in trade - 5t AE 5 N E fb FEAT T8
and other payables HNERAaE 3,965,880 4,055,195
- Consideration payable - EARE - 164,336
— Lease liabilities -HEAaE 64,544 59,951
12,097,898 16,643,146
— Financial guarantee - IR 89,628 -
() Fair values (99 2¥%E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial FEMBRARAIITAEESRE
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial EkeRBAEZEAEREAZIZA
position approximate their respective fair values. FEMRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

7.

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three
levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December:

APEHE
NHERMS2RENGEAPETZAF
R PHEREMBESERREMXTZ
B - ATRBEZAHEHEERRFES
B - ARSI AN EAFEZAE
BRIz B ABUED B=4

F—HRBARE  ARERFERHAES
HREERE BRIEET SN RE CREH
) o

E_RBABE : E—RPAEENREBIAI
AREEXRBETEEMG(BRIER)
& A\ B o

F-RBARE  BEXRBENTUBRRH
ABE -

AEBEZBRINEMHEELERER B
MEREE 2 H - BREANBH =S
Effz— -

RT+-A=+—HB2Z22FESH 2
=

2021
Description i Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E_—fF
E—& E-R E=R et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FTHET
Recurring fair value BEMATETE
measurements:
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTOC! 2 A EFBEM R E
PR SR EE
Listed equity securities TR AE S 4,694 - - 4,694
Investment properties REYE
Properties in the PRC hEHEE L ES = 694,452 3,368,750 4,063,202
Total st 4,694 694,452 3,368,750 4,067,896
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

Fair value measurements (Continued)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December:

7. AREFE @

RTZA=+t—HZAFEERZEK

(Continued) g @
2020
Description i Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—EC-TE
E— B/ F=H “aEt
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FH&T FAT FA&T
Recurring fair value BEMAFETE:
measurements:
Financial assets SREE
Derivative financial asset ~ £T4 & R & E
Put option RohEARE - 32,044 32,044
Financial assets at FVTOCI & A FEF BEM 2 mE
PR EREEE
Listed equity securites TR 554 - - 7,477
Investment properties REYE
Properties inthe PRC ~ FAFR B # 4 2 1,069,035 4,965,506 6,034,541
Total et 1,069,035 4,997,550 6,074,062

Reconciliation of assets/liabilities measured at fair value

REE=ZRRATFEFEZEE &

based on level 3 B AR
2021
—E_—F
Assets
BE
Investment
Description it Put option properties Total
oh HRE REY% et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET
At 1 January R—A—H 32,044 4,965,506 4,997,550
Total gains or losses recognised  RIBzsER IS Sl 1B A%
in profit or loss 1,313 71,922 73,235
Additions NE - 350,562 350,562
Derecognition on derivative RITFERITESRI A
financial asset (33,357) - (33,357)
Disposal of subsidiaries B 2 A (B EE 40(b)(iii))
(note 40(b)i)) — (2,224,723) (2,224,723)
Exchange difference VEW =58 - 205,483 205,483
At 31 December Rt=A=+—AH - 3,368,750 3,368,750
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Fair value measurements (Continued)

Reconciliation of assets/liabilities measured at fair value
based on level 3 (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

DNEEFE @

BREZE=GRLATVEAEZEE &
R¥ AR ()

2020
—TTF
Assets
Investment
Description H Put option properties Total
o HAE REME #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHETT FHETT
At 1 January H—B—H 13,753 4,321,668 4,335,421
Total gains or losses recognised in FAIE 25 MERR) Uz sk B 1B 42

profit or loss 18,291 (17,563) 728
Additions NE S 390,071 390,071
Exchange difference R ERE - 271,330 271,330
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 32,044 4,965,506 4,997,550

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements:

The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The chief financial
officer reports directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the chief financial officer and the Board of Directors at least
twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally engage
external valuation experts with the recognised professional qualifications
and recent experience to perform the valuations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

Fair value measurements (Continued)

Level 2 fair value measurements

Description

Valuation technique

fhERM

Inputs

WARE

Fair value

as at

31 December
2021
R=ZB=—F

t=A=+-8

ZAFE
HK$°000
FH

Investment properties

REWE

Direct comparison approach

BEERLLEOA

Market price of comparable

AL ERTISER

694,452

Description

it

Valuation technique

AR

Inputs

WA BE

Fair value

as at

31 December
2020
RZZE_TF

+-A=+—~H

2 APE
HK$'000
F

Investment properties

REMFE

Direct comparison approach

BERLLEE

Market price of comparable
AELLRTSER

1,069,035
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

7. Fair value measurements (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements

7. AREFE @
E=RAVETE

Effect on Fair value

fair as at

Observable/ value for 31 December

Valuation unobservable increase 2021

Description technique inputs Range of inputs Assets

WASEEH RZB=—F

HAYE +=HA=+-H

it fEE R ABRE/ TUESEARE gE ofZ ZEERTE

HK$’000

FHET

Investment properties Direct comparison Price per square meter, taking ~ Approximately Increase 3,368,750
under development  approach into account the differences HK$28,138-

EEREMFE BEREBE

in time, location, condition,
size, age and other
individual factors between
the comparables and the
property

BEAKRER - G RALR
WMERZMEZ FER S
@ e - R0 EE
RAMEMENRENZR

HK$41,875 per
square meter

FY¥KA28,13878 L0

TTE 41,8758 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

Fair value measurements (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

7. AVEFE@
F=RAFETE @)

Effect on Fair value
fair As at
Observable/ value for 31 December
Valuation unobservable increase 2020
Description technique inputs Range of inputs Assets
AHIE EA R-T-TF
HOTE +=ZA=+—H
fst h{ERAT AR/ TABREASE &E EofZ ZEERTE
HK$'000
THET
Investment properties Direct comparison Price per square meter, taking ~ Approximately Increase 4,965,506
under development  approach into account the differences HK$26,387-
in time, location, condition, HK$42,212 per
size, age and other square meter
individual factors between
the comparables and the
property
HREREME BELBE BEAARER  EHARALER  §¥HKH26387/8 B0
WMEEZMEZ FER S TLE 42,2120
- e - R EE 2
RAMEMENRENZR
Put option Income approach The Company’s share price HK$0.01 Increase 32,044
Rk e WeaE /NI 0.0187T 2 m
Fair value of Yue Jin Asia 1% Decrease
BRGMNNDTE ey
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

8. Segment reporting 8. IEME
The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports AEBENEBLERRENERN 2 ARIE
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to make HERRAE C MREETEELEDE -
strategic decisions.
The Group has several operating segments as follows: REBBUTZEKEDE
Yacht club = operation of a yacht club PEREE FT - RE—MEEERT
Training = provision of training services =oll - REEIIARS
Real estate and property = property development and BiER - ETERZERDE
investment property investment MERE wE
Trading of commodities = trading of commodities KRR S - KRR5
Construction - provision of construction works EiE - RHIEgE
Others = operation of a golf practising court; EAfth - RBESRKIRES
- operation of children playrooms; - KREREFEEE
- operation of fitness rooms; - BEREE
- operation of a karaoke box; and - EERNOKE: K&
= trading of home appliances and - BEREAGMEE
building materials Mt
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that offer AEE 2 7] 2} D ARG RE R KRS
different products and services. They are managed separately because R EN - BRSNS HERERE
each business requires different technology and marketing strategies. EAGEZEBRENR 2 Bl R HisHEER
B o
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the operating segment of yacht BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HLtFE iz
club and training was discontinued. g RIBII 2 EED I DRI -
For the year ended 31 December 2021, others included operation of a HE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HItFE - H
golf practising court, operation of children playrooms, fitness rooms, a MBELESRRRRES K2R EHEN
karaoke box, and trading of home appliances and building materials. = -BIERFRNOKEUNEEREAM
(For the year ended 31 December 2020, others included only operation MEEMH (BEZTTF+-A=1+—
of a golf practicing court and trading of seafood). The Group disposed AIEFE - B EESERRAIKERE S
of its business of trading of seafood during the year. REESH) AEERFABLHEERS
BEZERS o

214 Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021

4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —F+_-H=+—HIF/ZF

Segment reporting (Continued) 8.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4(v) to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment result represents the profit/(loss) of each segment without
allocation of following items,

- Central administration costs;

- Directors’ emoluments;

- Gain on disposal of subsidiaries;

- Fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties;

- Fair value gain on derivative financial asset;

- Other income, gains/(losses) — net; and

- Finance costs.

This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.

D EBERE (@)

EEHBOBHRERGA BRI
SHEEIE SN TR 2N E DB
#/(B51R)

- RRTEAA

- EFMS:

- R ARG

- RAWEZATAEKS (B

- PESBAE ATENGE

- RfEWA s () R R
- RERK

W RERIERKRRFEEOMAEEZ
BEARAREZBHEEIE

EFEHEEERLT 2021 FHK

215

&



g

216

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

8. Segment reporting (Continued) 8. EEHmE @
Segment revenue and results DEPE R A
Revenue reported below represents revenue generated from external TXE2EWMzEXBEIINNETLPEECEE
customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both years. B o MBS EI S HBEEE -
The following is an analysis of revenue and results by operating REBIREEDEEI D E LB REEDT
segment of the Group: LU
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—S5+-HA=1+—HLEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REfesy Ay
Real estate
andproperty  Trading of
investment - commodities ~ Construction Others Subtotal  Yacht club Training Subtotal Total
EHER
HERE  RRR% B Hff Mt BEER il It it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
Th7n Thn Thn Thn T Thn Thn Thn T
Revene BE 1466901 3948164 - w6 SEMMT 656 - 6B 551000
Segment results nEzE (24,49) 2,884 U] 13,269 (8,350) (4149 (7,291) (11,440) (19,790)
Fairvalue gain on investment RENFNATEYE
properties 70,13
Fair value gain on dervative fnancil 74 2B EEN A TENE
asset 1,313
Gain on disposal of subsiciaries HEMBLAANNE 399,199
Other income, gainsf(osses) -net A - i/ (BIE) %8 18,246
Finance costs BENE (140,643)
Unallocated comorate expenses A FAREMERA (20,788)
Profit before income tax BEEHARH 308,250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment reporting (Continued)

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The following is an analysis of revenue and results by operating

segment of the Group: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

= ()
REBREE DR B D EEB R EEDT

BE-BR-BF+-A=t—-RHLEE

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RESEEH AHEERE
Real estate
andproperty  Trading of
investment - commodities ~ Construction Others Subtotal  Yacht club Training Subtotal Total
EHER
HERE  KRR5 BE f Mt BEER il It &5t
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
TER T ThR ThR TR TR ThR TER TR
(re-
presented)
(&25)
Revenue e 532,724 6,129,006 - 104740 6,766470 10,000 8,915 18915 6,785,385
Segment resutts LS (222,056) (8,354) (59,830) 18544 (271,69) (49314  (197,113)  (4d642)  (718,129)
Fair value loss on investment
propertes REMFHATEER (52,97)
Fair value gain on derivative financial
assel NEeEAENATEE 18,201
Other income, gainsf(osses) -net ~ EHUA - i/ (BE) 58 85,733
Finance costs BERA (120484)
Unallocated coporate expenses A PARALERR (23.997)
Loss before income tax BiERIER (810877)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

8. Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities
As at 31 December 2021

8. EHE =)

PHWEERERE
R-E-_—H+=-HA=+—H

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REfesy ALEEEE
Real estate
and property  Trading of
investment  commodities ~ Construction Others  Subtotal  Yachtclub Training ~ Subtotal Total
EHER

HERE  ARRE BE A Mt BEER il it &3t
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
ThEn Tn Tén TEn T Tén TEn TEn T
Seqment assefs APEE 19,814,148 1910 4547 178074 20,039,549 - - - 20,039,549

Unallocated assets AFoRMEE
- Bank and cash balances - SRR e L 79,47
-Others -Ef 31,623
10,770
Consolicated total Gaiy 20,150,319
Segment labiltes PEL 128580 142575 163,469 90516 13,221,840 - - - 13221840

Unalocated fabiifes roimaE
~Borrowings -f3 2,007,601
- Others {1} 128,921
2,136,522
Consolidated total Lo 15,358,362
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE
8. Segment reporting (Continued) 8. ZEFHE @
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) E Bﬁﬁﬁﬁfs (%)
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZEF+-A=+—H
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BELESH RIHEEEE
Real estate
andproperty  Trading of
investment  commoaities  Construction Others Subtotal ~ Yacht club Traning Subtotal Total
EHER
hEkE  ARRB B i gt e sl Iy g
HKGO00  HKS0OO  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKBOO0  HKS00O  HKSO00  HK$000
T T TiEn Thn T Tin TiEn T T
(re-
presented)
(&)
Segment assets HHEE 22,987,632 25,057 67,241 185,366 23,265,296 62,066 54,693 116,759 23,382,005
Unallocated assets AralmEE
- Bank and cash balances -BkEsks 205,834
- Others -Efp 18,726
284,560
Consolcated totel fpAlet 23,666,615
Seqmentebtes A8aR 6579955 194 46 6575 TRSEII4 71T OIS0 236331 170603
Unallocated iabiites AFARMES
- Bormowings - 2,007,145
-Others -Eff 85479
2,383,224
Consolidated total Sat 19,589,259
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating AR ERIA L DE D ERERME

resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
unallocated bank and cash balances, financial assets at FVTOCI,

derivative financial asset and corporate assets.

° bank and cash balances are allocated to operating segments
based on the location of bank and cash balances.

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
consideration payable arising from acquisitions, corporate bonds,

corporate borrowings and corporate liabilities.

o BAFTOEMBRITREADER BA
FEEBHEM2EK G ﬁlJ@EZ%%ﬂﬁ
[z MiﬁmﬂéF& AEE

BEEODBEEEDED

o RITKBRSEHKRIBERITIREGE
ﬁéﬁﬁ’\]ﬁﬁ&iﬂzn CERZEDES

. B%Hﬁlﬁ§$fﬁﬁiﬁ’]ﬁ§ﬁ1ﬂ“ CRAENE
% REERRARAEIN  EA

EHH @E?:,& k=1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

8. Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

° liabilities payable to the government department such as tax
bureau and social security department are allocated to operating
segments based on the location of the tax bureau and social
security department.

Other segment information
Year ended 31 December 2021

D ERERE (@)

THEEREE @)

o BEXNTHATRR (B HHEE Rt
SREIDF) WREDRERBEEE
it @ REFFINAELD LELZE

S -

HihpEER
HE-Z - —F+-A=+—HILEFE

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
ECEER RIEEER

Real estate

and property  Trading of

investment - commodities Construction Others Unallocated ~ Subtotal  Yacht club Training  Subtotal Total

EHER

NERE  AFRS Bt - RS Nt EEER b Nt H

HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000

TER TER TR Tén TER TER TR Tén TER TER

Additons to non-curent FEFRBIAE
assets 400,709 - - 32,682 - 433391 133 - 138 43352
Depreciation and ERES
amortisation 14,185 - - 12,755 3,508 30,448 2,342 2,155 4,497 34,945
Impairmentlosseson Bt & AERBEE
other intangible
assets - - - - - - 5,620 4,591 10,211 10211
Impaimentlosseson 1% BERRERE
property, plant and 5
equipment - - - 35,755 - 35,755 - - - 35,755
Impaimentlosseson ~ SRRANEERE
fnancial and contract 8 - B
assets - net 22,533 26 I 47 (32 23,005 488 21 725 23,730
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

8. Segment reporting (Continued) 8. ZEFHE @
Other segment information (Continued) HihpEER (&)
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_Z-ZTF+-A=+—HILFE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HETEEH AEEEH
Real estate
and property  Trading of
investment  commodities - Construction Others  Unallocated Subtotal  Yacht club Training Subtotal Total
FHER
VES NS Bt iy TR Nt bR Sl st 3t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$O000  HKS000
TEn T T TEn TEn ThT T TEn FiEn T
(re-
presented)
(mE5))
Additons to non-curent  FEFEHEE
assets 405,720 - - 40648 48 46416 i 1,04 1,741 448157
Depreciation and TEREY
amortisation 9,986 - - 8,021 3444 21,451 20,584 17,673 38,207 50,708
Impairmentlosseson £t EFAERESE
other intangible
assets - - - - - - 231314 188488 419802 419802
Impairment losseson 1%+ BE R ERE
property, plant and BB
equipment - - - 34,687 - 34,687 - - - 34,687
Impaiment losseson £ RRANEERERE-
financial and contract %3
assets - net 23,548 121 59,830 153 n 83,723 91 (49) 42 83,765

Note: Non-current assets included property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and other intangible assets.

Geographical information
The PRC is the country of domicile of the Group.

No separate analysis of segment information by geographical segment
is presented as the operations of the Group, its revenue and non-
current assets are principally attributable to a single geographical
region, which is the PRC.

Information about major customers
There was no single customer that contributed to 10% or more of the

Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

M : FRBEERENE BMELRE RE
MEAREMBIZEE

1t 5 6
REEMERFKSPE -

Wik 250 R 0 #RE 0 2 DA AR 2 B8
DI WIARARENEE - HEXER
FRBEETBRRANE@LE - BIFE -

FEEFER

BHE_ZT - —FRkZFFF+=A=1+—
AIEFE BEE-—RPhASEEESE
10% KA E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

9. Revenue 9. HEEH
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major FA - BEZERIRBE D 2 EFEHE
products or service line for the year is as follows: EEHWWT -
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
(re-presented)
(#£=5))
Continuing operations: BEREER
Revenue from contracts with customers EBIHEREEAE15%EER
within the scope of HKFRS 15 ZEFEHNEEE
Sales of properties MEHE 1,446,556 519,541
Trading of commodities KFERXS 3,948,164 6,129,006
Others EAh 89,276 104,740
5,483,996 6,753,287
Revenue from other sources REHMRR & EEE
Rental income HehA 20,345 13,183
5,504,341 6,766,470
Discontinued operations: BRIEREETE
Revenue from contracts with customers EBHEHREEE15KBBRAZEFS
within the scope of HKFRS 15 R
Training services 53 RS - 8,915
Yacht club services e TR 291 1,612
291 10,527
Revenue from other sources REEMRRZEEEE
Rental income iEE A ON 6,277 8,388
6,568 18,915
5,510,909 6,785,385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

Revenue (Continued) 9. EEHum
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical MR EEBREEMERTIGNEEBRE
market and timing of revenue recognition. The table also includes a REEDH o TRANAEED IS FHBRE
reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the Group’s reportable B 2O LR o
segment.
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REgERy ALEEEE
BzoE--f Real estate
For the year ended 31 December tZR=1-H and property  Trading of
2021 LEE investment  commodities  Construction Others ~ Subtotal  Yachtclub Training ~ Subtotal Total
EHER
WERE  ARRE BE i Mt BEER i it &5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn TR TR Thn TER TR TER Thn TR
Primary geographical market ~ TEHEHIE
PRC B 1,466,901 3,948,164 - 89,276 5,504,341 6,568 - 6,568 5510909
Timing of revenue recognition ~ EXERIRME
-Atapointin ime - 1446556 3,948,164 - 89216 5,483,996 - - - 548399
- Transferred over time -R-BRERER - - - - - 291 - 21 291
1,446,556 3,948,164 - 89276 583,996 291 - 291 5484287
Revenue from other sources REEMREC €28 20,345 - - - 20,345 6,277 - 6,277 26,622
1,466,901 3,948,164 - 89,276 5,504,341 6,568 - 6,568 5,510,909
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arE M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F ——F+_-A=+—HI FE

9. Revenue (Continued) 9. EXEHuwm
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BETEEE AHEERH
Real estate
Forthe year ended 31 December ~ HE-Z-2F andproperty  Tracing of
200 TZA=+-ALEE invesiment  commodities  Construction Othes  Subtotd  Yachtclub Taing ~ Sublotal Total
BHER
NERE  ARRB B g gt e szl It &t
HKGOO0  HKS0OO  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKBOO0  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Thn Thn T Thn Thn T Tin T Thn
(re-presented)
(55)
Primary geographical market ~ TEHEHIE
PRC HE 53724 6,129,006 - 104740 6,766,470 10,000 8915 18915 678538
Timing of revenue recognition £ ¥R
- Ata point intime -RE-BEY 519541 6,129,006 - 104740 6,753,287 - - - 6753087
- Transferred over time -N-BRERER - - - - - 1612 8,915 10527 10527
519541 6,129,006 - 4T 675 1612 8915 10577 6763814
Revenue from other sources REEMRE 28 13,183 e e . 13,183 8,368 = 8,388 251
53724 6,129,006 - 104740 6,766,470 10,000 8915 18915 6,785,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

Ft_A=+—HIFFE

grants of approximately HK$210,000 (2020: HK$1,423,000) represented
subsidies from PRC local government as an encouragement for
contribution in specific industry in the region. The Group recognises the
government subsidies when it fulfills all the conditions specified in the

subsidy notice or relevant law and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, included in government
grants of approximately HK$798,000 represented subsidies obtained
from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund
launched by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government
supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees. Under the ESS, the
Group has to commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses, and not
to reduce employee headcount below prescribed levels for a specified
period of time. The Group does not have other unfulfilled obligations
relating to the ESS.

10. Other income, gains/(losses) — net 10. HWA - W/ (BE) F58
2021 2020
— B T -TH
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAT
(re-presented)
(F£=5))
Continuing operations: BEREER
Interest income from bank balances IRITHERRAF B U A 9,909 18,088
Interest income from bond receivable U EH T B A - 12,135
Loss from derecognition of derivative LIEERITE S BB EREIE
financial asset (33,357) -
Gain from derecognition of financial R IEFER B SRR A s
guarantee contract - 33,419
Gain on early termination of lease AR FRREN K 2 -
Government grants (note (a)) B (Bt @) 210 2,221
Dividend income R% B U A = 9,100
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) — net SNEWEE (518 7R 3B 28,370 (1,278)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEMREBRE
equipment 1) (123)
Others EAh 4,742 1,921
9,875 75,483
Discontinued operations: BRIEEER .
Interest income from bank balances HRITARET S A 15 18
Foreign exchange gain- net AN U R 8,375
Others EAb (19) 10,232
8,371 10,250
18,246 85,733
Note: MisE
(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, included in government (@ BEZEZ—F+A=+—HLFE"

BT 47 BY B 95 AP B 2 05 BT 60 A BR 4D
210,000 7T (=T =T 4 : 1,423,000 %

L) EASEIME S EITEMEENE
Bt e REBMNE B ETHBA S SRRE
2 IR BIFRHIBARY FR A (&1 R HE R R AT 4
B o

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—RHILtFE"
BRITH B 818 8 BB R RITTIR R AT 3 iR
MR ES TE S X 5T 8l ([ B %R
&) FTEELAY R 4) 798,000 7T AR
IRASEEREETE - BREREESF
T8 AEBEACAEEZSHBBRE
EHY - B ABERETHEEIREEAZK
ERREKRFE - AEE W EBBRELS
RN EMKRBITED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

11. Finance costs 11. BERA
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(re-presented)
(sg&E7)
Continuing operations: BEREER
Interest on bank borrowings SRITEZEOFE 359,475 274,957
Interest on other borrowings EMERAFE 315,041 267,247
Interest on note payables FENEEFB - 6,331
Interest on corporate bonds NEEFHTE 81,712 96,737
Interest on PRC corporate bonds FEINFIEHFMNFE - 19,356
Interest on loans from related parties faE T B HF B (MisE44(a)
(note 44(a)) 93,705 72,740
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFIE 6,003 3,086
855,936 740,454
Amount capitalised (note (a)) a2 58 (T @) (730,900) (642,767)
125,036 97,687
Discontinued operations: BARLERE .
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEFKAF & 2,597 3,971
Imputed interest on consideration payable FEAREBREE RS (MI:F34)
(note 34) 13,010 18,826
15,607 22,797
140,643 120,484
Note: MasE

(@) The weighted average capitalisation rate for the year on fund’s borrowed

is at a rate of 7.47% (2020: 6.51%) per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE

Income tax expense 12. FrBFiBx
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss GAEBmEMAETEKRERANTIES
and other comprehensive income represents: g
2021 2020
::;:_Eﬁ — 7 —= ﬁE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(re-presented)
(F£=5))
Continuing operations: BEREER
Current tax: RPEATHIE -
- PRCEIT - B EEFTIS TR 76,219 7,588
- PRC LAT — PR B ERR 39,448 47,795
115,667 55,383
Deferred tax (note 35): RIERIE (M52 35) ¢
— Current year - RFE (112,126) (25,754)
3,541 29,629
Discontinued operations: BRIEREER .
Current tax: BEATIE -
-PRCEIT - RIS TR = 4
Deferred tax (note 35): RIEFRTE (FI3E35) ¢
- Current year - RFE = (49,888)
- (49,884)
3,541 (20,255)
(a) Corporate income tax (@) EFREHR
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the R EMEFE @ ARAEERES
Group has no assessable profits for both years. WEERFEHN  WBEREENE
TEL B o
PRC EIT has been provided at a rate of 25% (2020: 25%). RS RIZ26% (2T ZFF -
25% ) BT R GHERAE -
(b) PRC withholding income tax (b) FEFEHNMAEH

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends declared by the companies established in the PRC to
their foreign investors out of their profits earned after 1 January
2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when
the immediate holding companies of the PRC subsidiaries
are incorporated or operated in Hong Kong and fulfill the
requirements to the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC
and Hong Kong.

REBEKZHARIEERZZENF
— B — B 2 B BEAE F P mg Mg
B E IR R B R 10% M R B4
TENFEH - P BB A RNES
miiw“lﬁé¢lﬁﬁﬁﬁim
IS GO ZHR TN EEER AR
T A% MBEIEMBHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% — & ——

B ISR AR B E

Ft_A=1—HIFFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(©)

PRC LAT

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including lease charges
of prepaid lease payments and all property development
expenditures, which is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as income
tax. The Group has estimated the tax provision for LAT
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon completion
of the property development projects and the tax authorities
might disagree with the basis on which the provision for LAT is

12. FRFf
(c)

calculated.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss)

SHRIX @

AR L AR

AP R E R B B E (BN &
YIESFIENBRATIRIEERX
(BiEENHEERE 2 HEBR KM
EMEBRERY)) RREMEI0%E
60% &M - WHRERABEREMEE
Iz R ATIERMSHE - ANEEREF
BB T IS A 2 RO AR MR E (A AT
THIEEFEL O IERE - B F
Bl 3B E % B & R B 2B FTR Y
EBEIEESTREET - MBEEEM
AN R B IR A BEE B M L i
BEREHREME -

AEEMREHAX G ERER Eﬂﬂ%@ﬂﬁz

before income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and BRAZBRABHIDEF, (E8) N
other comprehensive income as follows: LU
2021 2020
—E-—F —EITF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(re-presented)
(ge&E5)
Profit/(loss) before income tax KRBTSR ATER, (B518)
- Continuing operations — BB 223,798 (351,283)
- Discontinued operations — BRI ¥ 84,452 (459,594)
308,250 (810,877)
Tax calculated at: BT AR ;Etﬁ’ﬁ)%lg :
the domestic tax rate of 25% AR 25% (ZE=FF : 25%)
(2020: 25%) S pRIIE 77,063 (202,719)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARBWANT B E
purposes (149,288) (17,472)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible B AL ORERE
for tax purposes 16,182 46,192
Tax effect of temporary differences not RIERRE RS ERR TS &
recognised (22,788) 29,489
Tax efftect of utilisation of tax losses A Z I AR IS ENR IS E
previously not recognised - (7,756)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHEEENHR G E 48,373 83,569
LAT + IS (ER 39,448 47,795
Tax effect of EIT on LAT DEMSHE T IS EROHETE (9,862) (11,949)
Others Hih 4,413 12,596
Income tax expense/(credit) Frisifs, (Ee) 3,541 (20,255)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE

13. Profit/(loss) before income tax 13. BRATEH AR, (F#E)
Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRETEHAEF(B8) B (GTA)
THIRIE
2021 2020
— B —E-ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(re-presented)
(F£=5))
Continuing operations: BEREER
Cost of inventories FERA 5,059,496 6,469,228
Write-down of inventories FE MR 163,998 136,826
Cost of inventories recognised as R AR NFERA
expenses 5,223,494 6,606,054
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN S
- Annual audit - FEFEZ 3,180 3,000
— Other audit and non-audit services - EthE NIRRT 588 470
Depreciation e
— Owned property, plant and equipment - BB - BENM&E 17,412 9,610
— Leasehold land for own use - BEREE LM 4,242 6,342
— Properties leased for own use - HEEBRNME 8,794 5,499
30,448 21,451
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEREEEBE
equipment 1 123
Gain on early termination of lease RIS R (2 -
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE - 18,566
Impairment losses on property, plantand  #13 « E R EEREER
equipment 35,755 34,687
Impairment losses on financial and eRMREHNEERBEEETE
contract assets — net 23,005 83,723
Short-term leases expenses EERERY 1,252 2,11
Direct operating expenses arising from RS WA ZIREMERES  EEK
investment properties that generated =53
rental income 1,040 1,621
Discontinued operations: BRIEEEEK
Amortisation of other intangible assets HEihER G EESE GEASHEMA)
(included in cost of sales) 4,303 36,875
Depreciation e
— Owned property, plant and equipment - BAYE - B E LB 194 1,382
Impairment losses on other intangible Efh L EERREESE
assets 10,211 419,802
Impairment losses on financial assets — net 4 F & Z R EE 12 F5E 725 42
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F ——F+_-A=+—HI FE

14. Employee costs and five highest paid individuals

14. EERARANVNBESHAL

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
(re-presented)
(Fe&E7)
Continuing operations: BEREER
Employee costs (including directors) EEXRA (BIEESE)BIE:
comprise:
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE - #FreREMER 136,327 120,312
Contributions on defined contribution S E M FURRET 24K
retirement plans 4,643 808
140,970 121,120
Discontinued operations: BRIEEEEK
Employee costs (including directors) EERA (BIEESE)BIE:
comprise:
Wages, salaries and other benefits IE& - e kEMBER 1,373 3,279
Contributions on defined contribution S E M FURRET 24K
retirement plans - -
1,373 3,279
142,343 124,399
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

14. Employee costs and five highest paid individuals 14.

(Continued)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one
(2020: one) was director of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 15 below. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2020: four) individuals were as follows:

BERARAENESHFA L@

rEELAREHEETY —R(ZF=F
F:—R)RARAEE  WEZMEER
TXHEISRETRER - T OA(ZF =

TE OB ALZHEMT

2021 2020

—EB-—fF —EC-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Salaries and other benefits e MHEAER] 4,166 5,260
Contributions on defined contribution ATEHRFGRIRE IR

retirement plans 148 53

4,314 5,313

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BREAMSNATEE

Number of individuals

AH
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZZ 1,000,000 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T Z 1,500,000 7 7T 2 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

15. Directors’ emoluments 15. EEME
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a EE=EMe
The remuneration of every director of the Company paid/payable AN E R E

by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out

o=

—F+=A

=T -BIEFEER/EBRRATE

below: HEEZHEeHIIOT
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries and toretirement  Discretionary
Name of director BEfE Fees allowances  benefit scheme bonus Total
BB
e FeREE  BAHEMR Bt act
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tix TR TR TAT
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Yao Jianhui (“JH Yao’) phEErs ((eE)) o - - - -
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong (noted (d) ~ SREEER %64 (MizE(d) 500 - - 50 550
Ms. Xia Lingjle BEAfENT 240 917 47 50 1,254
Non-executive Director FyES
Ms. Zhan Yushan HERL 240 360 18 50 668
Independent Non-executive BUHTES
Directors
Ms. He Suying fRERT 240 - 12 20 272
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEEET 240 - 12 20 272
Mr. Wong Chun Bong TRAEE 240 - - 20 260
1,700 1,217 89 210 3,276
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(@)

%5—:\«&

BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE
15. Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 15. EEM < @
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ E=EM< @
The remuneration of every director of the Company paid/payable AEERBE_ZT_ZF+= ﬂ
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out =t+—HLEFEEHN EAARA
below: HEEZHEeHIIOT
Employer's
contribution
Salaries and to retirement Discretionary
Name of director e Fees alowances  benefit scheme bonus Total
EERAK
itk ek BAEIRR Byigiear @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL Tin TEx Fisn Thr
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. JH Yao phEms s - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Xiaodong (note (c)) RER LA () 600 - - 50 650
Ms. Xia Lingjle EAfENT 240 721 6 205 1172
Non-executive Director FyES
Ms. Zhan Yushan HERTL 240 360 18 50 668
Independent Non-executive B FHTES
Directors
Ms. He Suying fRERT 240 - 12 20 272
Dr. Tang Lai Wah HEERL 240 - 12 20 272
Mr. Wong Chun Bong THRALE 240 - - 20 260
1,800 1,081 48 365 3,294
Notes: MIE
(@  No arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to @ BEZZEZ—FRIZEZTFI+=

waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020. No inducement for joining the Group or compensation
for loss of office was paid or payable to any directors during the
year (2020: Same).

(b) Bonus is determined by the Salary Review Committee with
reference to the performance of the Group.

(c) The remuneration shown represented remuneration received from
the Group by these directors in their capacity as employee to the

Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the Company.

A=t+—HILFE " I?ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ&?
AFRBREEAMES 228 &
A AR E S 4 AN kR S AT R
IE%EFFE%{’E%JJD)\ZK’ilZﬁ
BRERBBEE( T _2F:
L) e

A RBFHRTEEE2
I%%ﬁfﬁf‘im °

ERE

EXFHBIE R FEEAEIER
AEBRE R RIERARAES
Z B AARSR BULE R BN
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15. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d) Mr. Zhang Xiaodong was resigned as the executive director of the
Company on 12 October 2021.

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2020: nil).

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
As at 31 December 2021, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors
(2020: nil).

Save as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the Group
was a party and in which a director of the Group had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2020: nil).

16. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution
of HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations
of all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension
scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

There are no provisions under the retirement scheme whereby forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce future contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

EEME @
(@) EE=M< @
fsE : (48)

o REREER-ZE-_—F+A+=
HEHIARRIITES -

e #HEZZEZ-_—F+ZA=+—HL
FE - AEEVEREREEER
BEMRETEE=AZARE(ZE
ZEF ) o

b) EERRS  RHELEHNZE
KEL
R-BE-—F+-F=+—H &
NEERZEBAESLEH 2 EEAR
LEEHESAERECERAZEA
ZER - BUERRZEMR FLHE
(ZZ=FF :8) -

B aUBmAEMBIMEES
SN MERKEF AEAE R ETE
EARKEEBERARKEERTTLH
ARASEEENEPERIRERE
BEARaMEBEARS R
BHR(ZZZF  8) -

RKEREE

AREBERBEFBREIELTE ST EUEDAH
BRERZBBRERILANIELTESE
(MafEEstal]) - AEEREREEBIME
ZHRBREEFHERTE 5%  WAEH
BEGAKS1,600ETTAR - MATIEZK
EERAEEETEERR 2 REEM
o

REERF BN B LR EESAH
BB SR RIRKE A EIMKE -
ZEMBRRARREEAFERTENSE
THEOLLARRERSEBIHNK  UXNE
BRKEA - BHWMBUFAREZSHE QR
ERAE RAREKBR ZRABHMEE
ZEMBR RIS T RER G EINE—RE
EVERETBIFRE Z K -

RORETEIIRE T W AR W AR A] BAEIR B &
IR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

17. Discontinued operations 17. BRIEEEER
On 23 July 2021, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company RZEBE-_—F+A-+=H —MAREME
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of the E2EBENMBRARRI L EE WM RA
entire equity interest of Yue Jin Asia (together with an interest-free BHENRSREVB LSRRI NI
shareholder’s loan owned by Yue Jin Asia) for a cash consideration e CEREZRTMNEBNRERRER) -
of HK$1. Yue Jin Asia and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in BRTMNEERBAREZCHBENSLE
operation of a yacht club as well as provision of training services in the HERE G T A RIREIEFIRTS - ZHEFED
PRC. The disposal was completed on 23 July 2021. R_ZE-—FtA=-+=H%=K -
The revenue, results and cash flows of Yue Jin Asia were as follows: ERDMNOEETE  ZERRSRAT
1 January to 1 January to
23 July 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
—HA—BZ —A—H=ZE
tA=+t=H +-A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PEE FExT FAT
Revenue | 9 6,568 18,915
Cost of sales B (6,233) (41,694)
Selling expenses HERMX = (11
Administrative expenses TBAX (853) (4,313)
Impairment losses on other Hit\mpEEREsa
intangible assets 13 (10,211) (419,802)
Impairment losses on financial SREERERE - F8
assets — net 13 (725) 42)
Other income, gains/(losses) HEmu A - Wk (E518) 10 8,371 10,250
Loss from operations FEgey 8 =] (3,083) (436,797)
Finance costs BEKAK 11 (15,607) (22,797)
Loss before income tax KBTS R A ES 18 (18,690) (459,594)
Income tax credit TS e 12 - 49,884
Loss after tax from discontinued BRI EBRTEEE
operations (18,690) (409,710)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR A RE 40(b)(ii) 103,142 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRI EEBNFER=H (E8)
discontinued operations 84,452 (409,710)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

17.

18.

Discontinued operations (Continued) 17. BRIEKEEK
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Cash flows from discontinued operations: #& M Q& EREL SHERE !
Net cash generated from KEEBEEZIREIFE
operating activities 3,163 10,338
Net cash used in investing activities WEEB TR RS T8 (128) (1,720)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBEL (i) 2IRE 558
financing activities 4,692 (14,070)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash R4 RIRESE@EWILN, (Fd) F5E
equivalents 7,727 (5,452)

Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of
the profit or loss on disposal, are disclosed in note 40(b)(ii).

A profit of approximately HK$103,142,000 arose on the disposal of Yue
Jin Asia, being the proceeds of disposal less the carrying amount of
the subsidiary’s net liabilities and attributable goodwill. No tax charge or
credit arose from the disposal.

During the year, the Company completed the disposal of its entire
equity interest in Yue Jin Asia. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements and the comparative figures have been re-presented to
reflect the results of the discontinued operations separately.

Dividends

The directors of the Company did not recommend payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

19. Earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share iN/NG)
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on

the following data:

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

Ft_A=+—HIFFE

19. 8RER(B1R)

BERERE ARG EREAR N

SEEF, (B1R) TORIBA T BURRTE -

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTF
’000 000
TR Fa%
Number of shares BE%
Weighted average number of ordinary SEERERREE AT (EE) B
shares for the purpose of calculating FHHEEMEE
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share 5,218,284 4,550,105
(a) From continuing and discontinued operations () REFEKERDRIEREE

(b)

%

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
(re-presented)
(Fg=5))
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of calculating  stEFREREFN](EiE) 8
basic earnings/(loss) per share HH (E5i8) 334,621 (735,144)
From continuing operations (b) REFELELER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
(re-presented)
€ <=7
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to RARIEE ANEERNFERF, (B
owners of the Company 8) 334,621 (735,144)
Less: Profit/(loss) for the year from B REBERIEREEBNAFE
discontinued operations YA (E5iE) 84,452 (409,710)
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of calculating 5T &R BB L EKNFIRER
basic earnings/(loss) per share from &R (EE) 8EF (&18)
continuing operations 250,169 (825,434)
ENBHEEBRAT 2021 F3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F ——F+_-A=+—HI FE

19. Earnings/(loss) per share (Continued) 19. BREF, (FHE) @
(c) From discontinued operations (c) RECDKRLLEEK
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
(re-presented)
(Fe&E5)
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of calculating  :TE R BB KR ILEEEBHFIRE
basic earnings/(loss) per share from RER, (B8) HHER, (EiE)
discontinued operations 84,452 (409,710)
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding for HE B h_T-_FTF+=A
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. =t+—BIFE - BEFTEIINEA

BEEEYENLBR -

238 Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021

4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. Property, plant and equipment

e MR R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —F+_-H=+—HIF/ZF

20. 1% - BERRE

Land and
properties
leased for
own use Construction
carried Office Motor Leasehold in progress
at cost equipment vehicles ~ improvements Yacht Buildings (‘CIP") Total
FAAIEZ
HEEEAN i hRIE
HRhE B0z g EL i B2 (kRIR) il
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tin Tiin T Tin Tin Tin T T
Cost oA
At 1 January 2020 H-E-TE-F-R 135,191 5,966 338 56,243 3459 5230 3016 27437
Addtons TE 29,135 1915 556 19,119 - - 5,641 56,366
Disposdls e - (56) 281) (587) - - - (o]
Exchange diference EXZR 8961 499 18 5741 4 306 2157 18,295
At 31 December 2020 and WoE-EE
1 January 2021 +ZR=t-BR
“Ro-5-F-f 17321 834 3789 80522 3813 55% 30814 315,134
Addtions RE 8,083 3019 1% 31,488 - - - B33
Disposdls -4 - (128) - - - - - (128)
Disposal of subsiaries HEREA - [411) (1313 (5252 (3944 - (34519 o7,019)
Transfer fom CIP gRafETE - - - 6,069 - - 6,059) -
Witten of i 2.369) - - - - - - 3%
Eary termination o ease RRRILRE (140 - - - - - - (140
Exchange difference EXEE 6730 3% (189) 2768 1 2 764 10,761
At 31 December 2021 NoE=-F
+2R=+-A 186,182 6,893 2403 68,31 - 5756 - 269,569
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20. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

20. ¥ - MENRE @

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

Land and
properties
leased for
own use Construction
carried Office Motor Leasehold in progress
at cost equipment vehicles  improvements Yacht Buildings (‘CIP") Total
BEASIRL
EERER HE hRIE
HHRYE HOERE g k3 i B2 (RIR) it
HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
Tin i Thn Tin Tin Thn Tin T
Accumulated depreciationand ~ E3HTEREEEE
impaiment losses
At1 January 2020 RoFITE-F-A 10441 2314 1188 41,462 2109 21 2,016 80811
Deprecietion e 184 1612 668 8197 36 17 - 2833
Disposels it - 0] (158) (%) S 5 S (304
Impaiment losses FERE 687 s = 5 5 s = 34,687
Exchange difference EXZE 213 80 413 3398 14 % 1810 8,659
At 31 December 2020 and A3
1 January 2021 t-R=1-8k
558 59,701 3956 211 52,961 2586 8 33,806 185,086
Depreciation i 13,036 1638 30 15,304 ) 192 - 30,642
Disposdls if-3 - 24 - - - - - 24
Disposal of subosicaries HERBA - (3759 629) (9.9%) ny - (34519 (91,549
Witen off i 2369 - - - - - - 2.368)
Eary termination o ease RRAIEE (103 = = > S S = (103
Impaiment losses HERE 25730 = = 10025 = = = 3,755
Exchange diference EiZE 2347 26 (251) 1411 q pAi 633 4416
At 81 December 2021 RoE--E1-f=t-
A 98,341 2023 1624 29,765 - 700 - 132453
Carying amount RAE
At 31 December 2021 WoE-f
1-A=t-8 87,841 4870 79 38,550 - 5,056 - 137,116
At31 December 2020 RB-ZEToA=T-
A 113576 4368 1678 27561 1287 5050 598 169,448
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

20. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic have had negative impacts to the global economy, business
environment and directly and indirectly affect the operations of the
Group. The financial performance of the operations of a golf practising
court, a karaoke box and fitness rooms were adversely affected
resulting from the deteriorated economic environment and uncertain
outlook of the Group’s business following the influence of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Accordingly, the Group assesses the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment allocated to the respective cash-
generating unit(s) (“CGU(s)”) and as a result the carrying amounts of
the property, plant and equipment were written down to its recoverable
amounts of approximately HK$137,116,000 (2020: HK$59,144,000).
An impairment loss of approximately HK$35,755,000 (2020:
HK$34,687,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for continuing operations.

As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amount of the CGU related
to operations of a golf practising court, a karaoke box and fitness
rooms have been determined based on value in use calculations, which
is arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on the most recent financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. The key assumptions for the
cash flow projections are those regarding the annual projected revenue
over five-year period, growth rate and discount rate. The annual
projected revenue over five-year period ranged from approximately
HK$16,673,000 to HK$18,687,000 (2020: HK$13,708,000 to
HK$16,037,000), HK$7,077,000 to HK$9,156,000 and HK$ 11,303,000
to HK$15,896,000 for operations of a golf practising court, a karaoke
box and fithess rooms, respectively. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth
rate of 3% (2020: 3%). The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates.
The pre-tax discount rate used is 16.77% (2020: 15.88%), 16.92%
and 25.34% for operation of a golf practising court, a karaoke box and
fitness rooms, respectively.

The estimates would face a challenge due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
therefore management’s estimated cash flows factor in possible cash
flow scenarios.

20.

e PR R M

Ft_A=+—HIFFE

M - BMERRE @

HEZZZ—F+ZA=+—HLFE"
COVID-19/@& B ¥ 2 B E - SR IRIBIEK
%E?&; WEEKHEESE T ASENE

o S COVID-19 B E » KBIRE
sm F AEEEBATRTHE - SRRk
Bi5 - FROKERESREBEMNP KRR
EMZETFIRE -

At - AEEFHEOEES AR S EL BN
([(BEEESEM])MOYME - BEREHED
AR ESEE - WAL S - BB REE
EE@{EWH;EETH&@%%E #7137,116, ooo
BIL(ZE=ZF : 59,144,000/ T) °

A BENE M2 AR NER Zﬁ,‘%«
EEBRRERIB4 535,755,000/ L (=
T T4 : 34,687,000/87C) °

R—_T-_—F+_A=+—8 Bk
WES - RRNOKIEREFEEZDHFANE
SEABNMAINESRED ENEREE
HEF  WRETBXEGHEMET 2 MER
BEH - ZATEFBEREA QB ESEZ
WEAFHR I HNBEEENRESRERE
/E'Jﬂ;t'j © EE%/}ILE}E ﬁ‘JFfrTxﬁHE’JEﬁfUE““
BRRTFHFERENE XS  BRENE
K7 BE - CERBRREES - FROK
ENREFEHRAFRFEBAEERI BN
T 16,673,000 JT = 18,687,000/ jT( —
T — T4 : 13,708,000 7T E 16,037,000
#7T) ~ 7,077,000 T E 9,156,000 7% 7T &
11,303,000 7% JT & 15,896,000 7T ° i
AFHzReREEAGNET SR
E3%(ZEZTF :3%)HH - ZIERE
TRBEERSEEENCENMEEBNTF
HRAEER  BLSMAREEE « £
OKE&&%iFﬁ%ﬁH KR RTARIR R 9 Bl &
16.77% ( ZZE —Z F : 15.88%) * 16.92%
K 25.34% o

X COVID-19&IEE » EMetimERdk

B RLERENMAHRERES KA
Eﬁﬁ/mi‘i?\ﬁlﬁ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B ISR AR B E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% — & ——

Ft_A=1—HIFFE

20. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment amounting to approximately HK$5,056,000 (2020:
HK$5,050,000) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank loan (note
31 (a)).

The analysis of carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of

20. ¥ - MENRE @

75_/\—7—

F+ZA=+—RH - REERYD

5,066,000 7 ( =& — F 4 : 5,060,000 %

TO) I l?ﬁ)%&
REEBIRTT

ZIRREE RS

SHEE T - MER
KA R (H5E31() °

DHEREEEREED

underlying asset is as follows: raaTs
2021 2020
—E-—& —ECTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B FE T FAT
Land and properties leased for own  IRITER ARG BE 2 HEEE B+
used, carried at depreciated cost K W EE
— Leasehold land for own use - BERMEE L [0) 48,251 59,144
— Properties leased for own use - HEEERNYE (ii) 39,590 54,432
87,841 113,576
Notes: Fit 3
i) Leasehold land for own use i) BRAAELH

(ii)

The Group has obtained the right to use a parcel of land in the PRC for its
operation of a golf practising court. The lease term is 17 years. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to lease the land, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its various offices
through tenancy agreements with independent third parties and a related
party, a company in which Mr. JH Yao has significant influence over the
related party while the leases with independent third parties typically run
for an initial period of 2 to 8 years (2020: 2 to 5 years) while the lease with
the related party runs for an initial period of 20 years (2020: 20 years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE
Investment properties REYZE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Fair value AFE
Completed properties held for BEHEENER, SHEREE
rental purpose and/or for capital 2R T
appreciation:
At 1 January Hn—H—H 1,069,035 1,055,973
Disposal HeE (415,604) (11,675)
Fair value loss NEEE (1,209) (34,734)
Exchange differences B 3, =%8 42,230 59,471
At 31 December Wt+=—A=+—H 694,452 1,069,035
Investment properties under EEREWE
development:
At 1 January “n—A—H 4,965,506 4,321,668
Additions NE 350,562 390,071
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(o)(iii)) HERE A 7 (B 5E 40()(ii)) (2,224,723) -
Fair value gain/(loss) AFEUE (EE) 71,922 (17,563)
Exchange differences PE W Z=%8 205,483 271,330
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=1+—H 3,368,750 4,965,506
Total #Et 4,063,202 6,034,541
Unrealised profit/(loss) on properties AR EEBENYE
revaluation included in profit or loss BERBREN,(E18)
for the financial year — continuing - BEEEER
operations 70,713 (562,297)
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December RZEZ—FRZIZEZFF+A=1—
2021 and 2020 have been carried out by Valtech Valuation Advisory =IN $%.TX§%¥E"]L\:FEEEE§%_L#%
Limited, an independent professional valuer who holds a recognised HEMTIZETEBRAREL - ZhEMF

and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of the investment property being valued.

The valuation for completed properties was derived using the direct

comparison approach based on recent market prices without any

significant adjustment being made to the market observable data.

BEZAIMEBNERXEE - IR RG
EREMEN I MBI T EEE &R -

RIYEZGETRBINHERAERL
ROEAERSLY - BWEHAEBRENTISEUE

TEHEMEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

21.

Investment properties (Continued)

The valuation for investment properties under development was
derived using the direct comparison approach by making reference to
comparable sales evidence as available in the property market. The
construction cost incurred and estimated construction cost to complete
the development as at the date of valuation are also taken into account.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest
and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

During the year, there were no transfers into or out of level 3 or any
other level (2020: nil).

During the year, the Group has disposed of investment properties
under development upon disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$2,224,723,000 (note 40(b)(iii).

During the year, the Group has entered into an agreement to dispose
the completed properties of approximately HK$392,608,000 in relation
to the land resumption of the local government authority in Shenyang
and the remaining of approximately HK$22,996,000 was disposed to
independent third parties.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of investment properties
amounting to approximately HK$640,816,000 (2020: approximately
HK$2,395,811,000) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank
loans (note 31(a)) and approximately HK$1,251,987,000 (2020:
approximately HK$1,126,955,000) for the Group’s other borrowings
(note 31(b)).

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of investment properties
amounting to approximately HK$46,992,000 was pledged as security
for a bank borrowing granted to a former subsidiary which had been
overdue (note 31(f)).
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WAREE » AEBEZREEHERRRBLE
R E Y4 2,224,723,000 5 7T (Pt 5
40(b)(iii)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —F+_-H=+—HIF/ZF

22. Goodwill 22. HE
HK$’000
FET
Cost RA
At 1 January 2020 N_E-_TF—H—H 301,810
Exchange differences PEH =58 17,625
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R_E-_ZEF+_A=+—HER=ZE-_—F—H—H 319,435
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries 1A TR E I E A B (B EE 40(b)(i))

(note 40(b)(ii)) (805,806)
Exchange differences b 5 Z=%E 6,374
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—F+_A=+—H 20,003
Accumulated impairment losses iR ESE
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZEF—F—H 283,635
Impairment losses HEEE 18,566
Exchange differences PEHZ8 17,234
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZEZEF+ A=+ —HBR=ZZE=—F—H—H 319,435
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries R \ERERR I A 7] (B EE 40(0) i)

(note 40(b)(ii)) (305,806)
Exchange differences MEH =5 6,374
At 31 December 2021 R-_EBE-—%+-_HA=+—H 20,003
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—H -
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF+-A=+—H -

EFBEHEFERAT 2021 F 245

A

2



4

246

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

22. Goodwill (continued) 22,

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) had been allocated according to operating segment

BE @)

REBEHTRENHEEREER RS
MR EREBAHIRSELEM -
BiREE (R RFIRERR) HRELE
DED BT

as follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Operation of a yacht club R — MRS
Shenzhen Dapeng Yacht Club Company  EYIIANE B & B R A )
Limited (“Dapeng Yacht Club”) ([ RuswefEe |) = -
Provision of training services R AEIE S BRI

Shenzhen Dapeng International Education 3l ABEFIFE# 5 B R A T
Company Limited (‘Dapeng International ([ ABEEIE#E )
Education”)

Real estate and property investment BHERYERE
Yunfu Baoxin Property Limited (“Yunfu EYENEEARA AR ([EFEH]
Baoxin”) (formerly known as Yunfu A ([EFEEEEERAA])

Baoneng Property Limited)

The goodwill allocated to Yue Jin Asia within the segment of operation
of a yacht club as well as provision of training services was fully
impaired in prior year. During the year, the Group has disposed of its
segment of operation of a yacht club as well as provision of training
services (note 40(b)(ii)).

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on the higher
of fair values less cost to disposal and value in use calculation.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amount of the CGU
related to Yunfu Baoxin have been determined based on value in use
calculation, which is arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
an independent professional valuer. The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on the most recent financial budget approved by the
directors of the Company covering a seven-year period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —F+_-H=+—HIF/ZF

22. Goodwill (continued)

The key assumptions for the cash flow projections are those regarding
the discount rate, annual projected revenue over seven-year period
and growth rate. The Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. The annual projected revenue over
seven-year period and growth rate are based on past performance and
expectation of market development.

The key assumptions for the cash flow projections used in 2020 are as

22.

BE @)

ReRnEFRNMRANEEBRRIIEMEER
A FHFERAIEERIEREZMR
& o NEEF AR IR B AT SRR
ERRHE N 3R S B AR E RO BR T
R REETRER R - CFEHIFRIBREERE
FIEREDIRBERRLIERTSERAE

# o

R-ZE-ZFRSREFAUMRANTIER

follows: ELUNNE
Yunfu Baoxin
Discount rate BRIR &K 17.23%
Annual projected revenue over L FHFETEA L ERE Ranged from
seven-year period (HK$’000) (F#7T) 28,870 to 348,693
71 28,870 = 348,693
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE
23. Other intangible assets HthBIL&EE
Operating right Total
s st
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Cost Jo#:N
At 1 January 2020 RZZE=ZZTF—H—H 818,656 818,656
Additions NS 1,720 1,720
Exchange differences M = %A 47,898 47,898
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RA-—E-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H
&777 F—H—H 868,274 868,274
Additions NE 128 128
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(o)(ii)) o B 2 R (B 5% 40(0)i)) (884,617) (884,617)
Exchange differences PEH =58 16,215 16,215
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-HA=+—H - -
Accumulated amortisation and ZFt @R REEE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2020 R-E-_ZTF—AHF—H 271,191 271,191
Amortisation b3 36,875 36,875
Impairment losses BEEE 419,802 419,802
Exchange differences PEH =% 39,058 39,058
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 =% _’gi‘f' B=+—H
rZFEZ—F—H—H 766,926 766,926
Amortisation B 4,303 4,303
Impairment losses BERE 10,211 10,211
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(b)(i) HH ES BT a8 A B (B3R 40(0)(i)) (795,766) (795,766)
Exchange differences [ = %A 14,326 14,326
At 31 December 2021 R-_TE_—F+_A=+—H - -
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2021 I ——%+-HA=+—H - -
At 31 December 2020 WZE_ZFE+_A=+—H 101,348 101,348

On 27 August 2014, Yuejin Sports entered into an Operation
Entrustment Agreement with Shenzhen Dapeng New District
Management Committee, pursuant to which the operation of Shenzhen
marine sports base and sailing school would be entrusted to Yuejin
Sports for a period of 20 years for a total cash consideration of
RMB785,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$942,000,000),
50% of which amounting to RMB392,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$471,000,000) was paid in 2014 and the balance
of RMB392,500,000 will be settled by 10 equal annual instalments of
RMB39,250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$47,100,000) each
from the eleventh year of the date on which the assets were transferred.
The transfer of assets was completed on 11 March 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

23. Other intangible assets (Continued)

The operating right was used in the Group’s operation of a yacht club
and provision of training service. During the year, the Group disposed of
these assets upon the disposal of subsidiaries disclosed in note 40(b)(ii).

During the year, the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic have had
negative impacts to the global economy, business environment and
directly and indirectly affect the operations of the Group. The financial
performance of the operations of yacht club as well as training services
were adversely affected resulting from the deteriorated economic
environment and uncertain outlook of the Group’s business following
the influence of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Accordingly, the Group assesses the recoverable amount of the other
intangible assets allocated to its respective CGUs and as a result the
carrying amount of the other intangible assets was written down to
their recoverable amounts of approximately HK$44,378,000 (2020:
HK$51,089,000) in the segment of yacht club and approximately
HK$44,473,000 (2020: HK$50,259,000) in the segment of training
respectively. An impairment loss of approximately HK$10,211,000
(2020: HK$419,802,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of which the amount
of approximately HK$5,620,000 (2020: HK$231,314,000) arose in
the segment of yacht club and approximately HK$4,591,000 (2020:
HK$188,488,000) arose in the segment of training respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs related to Dapeng Yacht Club and Dapeng International
Education have been determined based on value in use calculations,
which is arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by an
independent professional valuer. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on the most recent financial budgets approved
by the directors of the Company covering a five-year period. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rates of 1% (2020: 1%). The growth rates
do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the business in
which the CGUs operate. The pre-tax discount rate used is 17.64%
(2020: 17.86%) for Dapeng Yacht Club and 14.17% (2020: 14.27%) for
Dapeng International Education respectively.

23. &

e PR R M

Ft_A=+—HIFFE

Hit B EE @)
EEERN ARG E RO E AT R
SERIARAS - AR - AR A A

NElBHEZEEE (R E400))EEE)
MR [E - COVID-19% 15 18 3 ¥ 2 B &
- EERIRSAaAETE  YEENEE
FEXREBENLE - HINZCOVID-19%&1E

FE RERERE AEEEBERTSTH
BR - RS AT M IRFIRISEE B T RIRE

ME SRR -

At - "EBFEIREESEEREESE
BAMEMEREEZTRE 2R - WA
i EMmEEEECRABED IR EREE
Ffr 53 8B I 35 3l 20 BB UR 2 H AT Y Bl & BB 49
44,378,000/8 L (ZZ = FF : 51,089,000

BIT) M #4144,473,0008 T (- T - T ¢
50,259,000/ 8 7T) - RizAEm kHM 2

Mz R IER 2R EEE % 510,211,000
BIL(ZT T F: 419,802,000/ 7T ) *
H fh £5,620,0008 o( ZF = T F:

231,314,000/8 7T ) & 494,591,000 7t (=

T —FF: 188,488,000/87T) D RIEAR
EﬂﬁAﬁﬁ’\*B&i N EB o
HE —&FE+-A=+—HIFE -

ﬁ%ﬁ&@&k%l%ﬂﬁﬁ@MEiﬁi
BRI SR TR BB HE L EME
THENBERAEERET - B8
BIBEA RN R B BN E A F NS
BEEFERRSREREN - RAFHHEN
BERENFERBRTMETFHERER1%(=
ToTF 1%) HEE o SNERETRBBRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

23. Other intangible assets (Continued)

24,

The estimates would face a challenge due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
therefore management’s estimated cash flows factor in possible cash

flow scenarios.

Investments in subsidiaries

The following are the particulars of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2021 and 2020 which, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Place of incorporation/

23. HtEFEEE @

X COVID-19&RIEFE - ZE Mt B mEERk
B AHERENGETRERES RATEN
REnERBRERE -

RHEQRNRE

UTARAREERATEHEAREE
# AEABMEZEEHBAAR T~
FR-F-TFTAST-AZHEMN - E
RA - REEHBAR 2 HEREHE
BB -

registration and Particular of Percentage of ownership
operation/kind of issued share interest/voting
Name legal entity capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
SR,
BRREELY BaEES RER/
L HERRRER BRTRAFE AMERRNED L TEXH
Direct Indirect
B# &
Glory Sun Investment Holdings British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited limited liability company
ENRERRERAT EBRNME  AREART BERIET 100% - REER
Baoxin International British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
Development Limited limited liability company
ENERERERAR EBRAHE  EREALA EER1ET - 100% REMER
Karsen International Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares S 85%  Investment holding
limited liability company US$50,000
SAERARRAR RERAES  EREALRA EiB150,000% T - 85%  REMMR
Micron Capital Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares = 85%  Investment holding
limited liability company US$50,000
FREXARRA RERAHE  AREALH EiBRr50,000% T - 85% RELEHK
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Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

24. AMIBRARNIKRE @)

registration and Particular of Percentage of ownership
operation/kind of issued share interest/voting
Name legal entity capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
R,
BRREELY/ RAEERRER/
£B HERRER BRTRAZE MERNNE I TEXH
Direct Indirect
B# o}
Micron Technology Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares US$1 - 85%  Investment holding
limited liability company
FAMBARRA KBRAHE  BREALA EER1ET - 85%  REMMR
Baoxin Development (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
Limited company
BEENERARAT BE - BREMLAF EERIET - 100% EEEE
Baoxin Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company
BAENEEERAA B EREELA LER1ET - 100%  REER
Glory Sun Land Management Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$1 - 100%  Administrative for the
Limited company group
ENEHERERAR BE  AREARA LRk - 100% BT
Qianhai Glory Sun Group Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company
AEENEEARAT BE - BREMLAF EERIET - 100%  REER
Baoxin Technology (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share - 85%  Investment holding
Limited company HK$100,000
EREMHBARLA B AREARA AR 100,000 7T - 85% RERR
Micron Technology Development Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares - 85%  Investment holding
Limited company HK$80,000,000
FAMBRERERAR B AREARA 30 80,000,000/ 7 - 86% REMRR
Rich Wealth Investment Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares - 85%  Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited company HK$203,700,000
B RIE () AR AT B AREARA Ei#0% 203,700,000 57T - 85%  RERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

24. AMIBRARNKRE @)

24. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

registration and Particular of Percentage of ownership
operation/kind of issued share interest/voting
Name legal entity capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
R,
BRREELY/ BEERERER/
£B HEERRER BRTRAZE MEOERNE S TEXK
Direct Indirect
i o
Baoxin Holdings Company The PRG, limited liability Registered capital S 100%  Property investment
Limited company (wholly-foreign RMB1,000,000,000
owned enterprise)
ENIERARAR T BREERA FMERARE - 100% WERE
(EBERE) 1,000,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Baoxin Logistics The PRC, limited liability Registered capital = 100%  Trading of home
Company Limited company RMB300,000,000 appliances and
building materials
REFIRER AT T AREFRA AMERARE - 100% EEREAM
300,000,000 TSR
Shenzhen Baoxin Supply Chain The PRC, limited liability Registered capital - 100%  Trading of commodities
Company Limited company RMB332,000,000 and home
(2020: appliances and
RMB132,000,000) building materials
AEEHERERAR HE - BREALR FMERARE - 100% AFXHGUREERE
332,000,000 7 P RN
(Z2=%F:
AR #132,000,0007T)
Shenzhen Baoxin Trading The PRC, limited liability Registered capital = 100%  Trading of commodities
Company Limited company RMB10,000,000
REHHEERAT HE - BREARA FMERARE - 100% KFX%
10,000,0007T
Shenzhen Baoxin Industrial The PRG, limited liability Registered capital = 85%  Property investment
Company Limited company RMB1,764,800,000
BEFREEBERAR hE BRELAT SRERARH - 85% LA
1,764,800,000 7T
Shenzhen Jitong Industrial The PRC, limited liability Registered capital - 85%  Realestate
Gompany Limited company RMB1,200,000,000 development
RIEREXERAT T AREART AMERARE - 8% BHERE
1,200,000,000 7T
Changchun City Baoxin Property The PRC, limited liability Registered capital - 59.86%  Real estate
Development Company company RMB426,000,000 development
Limited
REMEHNEHEREERAA HE - AREERT AMERARE - 59.86% EiERE
426,000,000 7T
Hunan Meilian Property Company ~ The PRG, limited liability Registered capital - 43.35%"  Real estate and
Limited (“Hunan Meilian”) company RMB163,265,036 property investment
HEEREXBRAT T AREERA FMERARE - 4335%°  BHERMERE
(Iir%E ) 163,265,036 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

24. AMIBRARNIKRE @)

registration and Particular of Percentage of ownership
operation/kind of issued share interest/voting
Name legal entity capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
R,
BRREELY/ RAEERRER/
£B HEERRER BRTRAZE MEOERNE R TEXH
Direct Indirect
i o}
Weinan Baoneng Property The PRC, limited liability Registered capital - 51%  Realestate
Company Limited company RMB300,000,000 development
EEMEREEERLA HE - AREMERA AMERARE - 51% RHERE
300,000,000 7T
Shantou Taisheng Technology The PRC, limited liability Registered capital - 85%  Real estate and
Limited company RMB2,000,000,000 property investment
WETREMBRARLR HE - BRELAF AMERARE - 8% BMERMERE
2,000,000,0007C
Yunfu Baoxin The PRC, limited liability Registered capita - 85%  Real estate
company RMB360,000,000 development
EFEHN HE - BRELAF HMETARE - 8% BERE
360,000,0007C
Shenzhen Ruiteng Enterprise The PRG, limited liability Registered capital - 85%  Property investment
Management Company company RMB10,000,000 (2020:100%)
Limited (“Shenzhen Ruiteng”)
A CEERERAR HE - BREMLAA HMERARE - 8% MERE
(MRImHe ) 10,000,0007C (ZZ22%5:
100%)
Shenzhen Qianhai Virdom The PRG, limited liability Registered capital - 85%  Property investment
Education Investments company RMB10,000,000 (2020:100%)
Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Qianhai”)
AR BHEREBRAR HE - BREMLAR HMERARE - 8% MERE
(MRIATE ) 10,000,0007¢ (ZZ22%5:
100%)
Shenzhen Borui Enterprise The PRC, limited liability Registered capital - 85%  Investment holding
Management Company company RMB720,000,000
Limited
REREEERERAR - BREMLAR FMERARE - 85% A
720,000,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

24. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 24,

RMtE A RMKRE @)

Place of incorporation/

registration and Particular of Percentage of ownership
operation/kind of issued share interest/voting
Name legal entity capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
R,
BRREELY/ BEERERER/
£B HEERRER ERTRAFE MEOERNE S TEXK
Direct Indirect
i o
Shenzhen Chaoshang Joint The PRC, limited liability Registered capital - 48.28%"  Investment holding
Investment Company Limited company RMB625,000,000
(“Chaoshang Joint Investment”)
R ke RERBERAR HE - ARELRA AMERARE - 48.28%"  HEEK
(THEmaRE]) 625,000,000
Chaoshang Group (Shantou) The PRG, limited liability Registered capital - 48.28%"  Real estate and
Investment Company Limited company RMB600,000,000 property investment
HREECLE) REFRLA T AREERA AMERARE - 4828% EHERNERE
600,000,0007T
Shantou Chaoshang Chengzhen The PRC, limited liability Registered capital = 46.46%*  Real estate and
Comprehensive Management company RMB600,000,000 property investment
Company Limited and infrastructure
construction
WETHRERERSRERLR  FE EREERA AMERARE - 46.46%"  FHE  MEFRER
600,000,0007C EfRegs
Shenyang Baoxin Commercial The PRG, limited liability Registered capital - 85%  Property investment
Company Limited company (wholly-foreign HK$183,000,000
owned enterprise)
REEHHERRAT T ARELRA AMER - 85% MERA
(HEBERE) 183,000,000757C
* For the indirect percentage of ownership interest/voting power/profit * BRBEES REE DB NME

sharing which are lower than 50%, the Group is considered to have
control over the subsidiaries as the Group possesses the power over the
subsidiaries, exposure, and rights to variable returns from the investee,
and the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.

Notes:

B O HIER 50% » BIA & ERAR e A I
BARMNEHE  AAREEHMNERR
wEEN I RERESRERAYHRT
BERRBERHIHETERAZEERT

RO -

P

(i) The names of certain of the companies referred to in these consolidated
financial statements represent management’s best effort in translation of
the Chinese names of these companies as no English names have been
registered or available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

24. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

(@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —ZF —

Material non-controlling interests (@)
The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The

—FZA=1—HILFE

24. RIBARNIRE @30

BEAFFERIMERS
TRETRZEHEIEH s ([3F
zHtE s ) B AEEMEBEX

summarised financial information represents amounts before 2B ATER - WESR T AT
inter-company eliminations. ZUEERBENT -
Chaoshang
Joint
Name Hunan Meilian Investment
=g il ES HEBSRE
2021 2021
—EB-—fF —B-—F
Principal place of business/country of ~ =B ¥ 2E FF AR The PRC/The PRC  The PRC/The PRC
incorporation thEHhE hE S E
% of ownership interests/voting rights ~ JE32E | \%Eiéfmﬁﬁ WiEB RS
held by NCI BEEED 56.65%/56.65% 51.72%/51.72%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8":
Non-current assets JEMBNEE 319,846 1,051,899
Current assets BB E 3,705,232 4,143,544
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (311,260) (367,500)
Current liabilities PEN=NE (3,131,320) (3,214,833)
Net assets BEZE 582,498 1,613,110
Accumulated NCI N el 276,346 772,560
Year ended 31 December: BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE:
Revenue ] 4,717 556,384
(Loss)/profit for the year REZ (EHE) /%= F (148,499) 38,616
Total comprehensive income iﬁqﬁzﬁﬁ,ﬁ@ (122,943) 99,673
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI SEE I 2 (B518) R T (84,125) 21,039
Total comprehensive income AEEE TG S 2 B EE
allocated to NCI (69,648) 52,618
Dividend paid to NCI A T 3EEE I 1 A R 2 AR - -
Net cash generated from/(used in) EESEEIES () 2IRE 558
operating activities 538,121 (186,571)
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEESEE, () 2IRE T8
investing activities 11,038 (125,492)
Net cash (used in)/generated from AT (FTiE) EEZESFE
financing activities (562,628) 260,359
Net decrease in cash and cash RWe NIBEZER LV IFZE
equivalents (13,469) (51,704)
BRBEHEEERLT 2021 F3k
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B ISR AR B E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

24. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

(@)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

24, RHEBRATNKRE @)
(@) EARFEEZHIMERERS E)

Guangxi
Shengze
Chaoshang Investment
Hunan Joint Company
Name Meilian Investment Limited
EARERE
18 M E HEBaRE BRAF
2020 2020 2020
—EEF —ECEF —E_EEF
Principal place of business/ T M ER The PRC/ The PRC/ The PRC/
country of incorporation The PRC The PRC The PRC
B, E hE,HE fhE,
% of ownership interests/ FEIEGIME RIS B 2 T 1 56.65%/ 51.72%/ 15%/
voting rights held by NCI R REREA S 56.65% 51.72% 15%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
At 31 December: R+=—HA=+—8:
Non-current assets IEMENEE 326,009 920,953 2,351,083
Current assets mEBEE 2,984,181 3,669,129 705,176
Non-current liabilities FEREERE (1,358,106) - -
Current liabilities BB E (1,246,643) (3,076,645) (2,456,785)
Net assets BEFE 705,441 1,513,437 599,474
Accumulated NCI REF IR RS 345,994 719,942 150,043
Year ended 31 December: #HBE+-A=+—HILEE:
Revenue R 144,415 379,711 =
Loss for the year REFEE (2,807) (10,873) (114,048)
Total comprehensive income 2 E a5 4258 36,138 71,312 (110,981)
Loss allocated to NCI DELE I s 2 1R (1,590) (5,946) (17,107)
Dividend paid to NCI IR T IR MR a2 IR B = - -
Net cash (used in)/ generated & &8 (FTfE) EL 2
from operating activities REFHE (150,555) 414,917 (158,935)
Net cash used in investing KA EHEZIRS F5
activities (3,016) (104,074) (153,567)
Net cash generated from/ BEEBIEL S (FTFE)
(used in) financing activities 2 IR & %58 140,537 (269,577) 408,327
Net (decrease)/increase in Be MREEEY
cash and cash equivalents  (Ji4>) /18 iS5 (13,034) 41,266 95,825
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests
Deemed partial disposal of Shenzhen Ruiteng and Shenzhen
Qianhai

On 15 and 18 January 2021, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company has disposed of its entire equity interest of
two subsidiaries, Shenzhen Ruiteng and Shenzhen Qianhai,
respectively to an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company at a cash consideration of RMB1 each, the
Group’s effective equity interest in Shenzhen Ruiteng and
Shenzhen Qianhai were then reduced from 100% to 85% upon
completion. Accordingly, the Group recognised an increase in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$5,064,000 directly in equity. The transaction was completed
on 15 and 18 January 2021.

25. Financial assets at FVTOCI

24. RIBARNIRE @30

(b) ERFEFIMER IS
BAEH &R 35 88 SoRYIAS

= —F—H +£E|)S€+)\EI ’
Nal—EEE2EERARE DR
—REARR Tﬁmétié‘f%ﬂ% Al
b‘é%ﬂl\iﬁﬂé& &3 BiT 1 R P B
2EHRE  REREZIAEAR
T ° RTERE - REBKFEIIIG
H%&/mﬂllﬁu/im,ﬁ-Hﬂiéﬁamo%ﬁz
LEBE%  EI - AEBRERT
EERRARREE ABGERIEN
#75,064,00087C c ZRXHER_Z
——F—A+RBARTNBEEX -

BRAVEEBEMEEWESIK
ZEMEE

=
Al—

H%D)DHT{E%%
D
5

2021 2020
ZB-—F —TFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Listed investments, at fair value LEWRE - BATE
Equity securities in the USA A EBERRAES 4,694 7,477

The Group designated the listed investments at FVTOCI (non-recycling),
as the investment is held for strategic purposes.

On disposal of these equity investments, any related balances within
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to accumulated losses.

The fair values of listed securities are based on current bid prices.

Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in the following currencies:

BB AR BOMEEE - MASEE
ERAHEEBEMEmKEIIRZ Lk
B (TAEE) -

RHEEZERARER - PO ESBE
fi 2 E WS 5Bk 2 AR AR T ARG R E
MOBERFER -

ETREFHORFEAENEABREE

BAHEEREbEEEGRI IR RERE
AT 3 EHEHE -

2021 2020
—E-—F —EITF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Us$ ET 4,694 7,477
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE
26. Derivative financial asset . TTEERmEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BaE FE T FET
Financial asset at FVTPL EATEAEBERYECEREE
Put option Foh B (@) = 32,044

(@  As a part of the consideration for the acquisition of Yue Jin
Asia and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Yue Jin
Asia Group”) in 2016, the Group shall have the option (the “Put
Option”) to, at the Group’s discretion, sell the Option Shares (as
defined below) to the seller of Yue Jin Asia at any time within
5 calendar years from 28 December 2016 upon the Shenzhen
Dapeng New District Management Committee or any other
relevant governmental authority enforcing its rights under
the Operation Entrustment Agreement for any breach of the
Operation Entrustment Agreement by any member of the Yue Jin
Asia Group before 28 December 2016 at the Option Share Price
(as defined below).

The consideration for the Option Shares (“Option Share Price”)
shall be the higher of (i) the cash equivalent of the sum of (a) the
amount paid in cash by the Group to the seller of Yue Jin Asia
and (b) the value of all the consideration shares issued by the
Company to the seller of Yue Jin Asia as at the date when the
Put Option is exercised; or (i) the fair market value of the Option
Shares to be determined by an independent professional valuer
as at the date when the Put Option is exercised.

Where:

Option Shares means all of the issued shares in the capital of
Yue Jin Asia as at the completion date of the sale and purchase
of the issued shares in the capital of Yue Jin Asia after exercise of
the Put Option.

During the year, the put option had been de-recognised as a
result of the disposal of Yue Jin Asia (note 40(b)(ii).

As at 31 December 2020, the Put Option was stated at fair value
based on the valuation performed by Valtech Valuation Advisory
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuer. The valuer
conducted the valuation based on a profit forecast obtained from
the Company (level 3 fair value measurements).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE
Inventories 27. F&

2021 2020
—E-—F ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Properties under development Y 7,184,282 8,962,872
Properties held for sale FELEmE 2,832,206 1,912,187
Others Hit 452 -
10,016,940 10,875,059

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense included a written- REBEE—T-_—F+-A=+—HLFE "
down of inventories of approximately HK$163,998,000 (2020: B R F%Ffﬁ SE B 17 & K AN B 5 AR S (B A R
HK$121,729,000) in the carrying amount of the Group’s properties held EZE - F+Z A=+ —HIEFERE
for sale to the net realisable value during the year ended 31 December HFEVEFEAEMRETZRFENTE

2021 and HK$15,097,000 in trading of seafood during the year ended
31 December 2020.

The amount of properties under development expected to be recovered
in more than one year is approximately HK$4,953,882,000 (2020:
approximately HK$7,811,366,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of properties under
development and properties held for sale amounting to approximately
HK$4,923,458,000 (2020: HK$3,123,958,000) and approximately
HK$49,803,000 (2020: HK$1,324,689,000) respectively are pledged as
security for the Group’s bank loans (note 31(a)).

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of properties under
development and properties held for sale amounting to approximately
HK$1,382,918,000 (2020: HK$3,354,329,000) and HK$1,208,000,000
(2020: HK$NIl) respectively are pledged as security for the Group’s
other borrowings (note 31(b)).

R 49 163,008,0008 TT( —Z T — T £ :
121,729,000 70) * Jh /BB B 7 &MU
15,097,000 7T ©

TEHRBB—FRREMNEENELSTY
#4,953,882,0008 (Z T & F : 4
7,811,366,000 7T) ©

%*%*—¢+*H:+—Hv$ﬁﬁﬂ
Bl A& #94,923,458,0008 7L ( — T —_F F :
3,123,958,000 7% 7T ) K& #749,803,000/% 7T
— T T4 : 1,324,689,00078 7T ) HIE
MERBFEHEMED TEM - UMEALE
EERITER AR (MI5E31(@) °

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H" KAESD
Al A #491,382,918,000 8 L ( —E T 4F ¢
3,354,329,000 % 7T ) & 1,208,000,000 & 7T

ZETF TR A EWEREBED
EMED TS - LMEAREBEMERZ
iR (M15E31(b)) ©
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27. Inventories (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of properties held
for sales amounting to approximately HK$32,136,000 is pledged as
security for a bank borrowing granted to a former subsidiary which had
been overdue (note 31(f)).

According to state-owned land use rights grant contracts dated in
March 2014 (“Land Use Right Contract 2014”), the parcels of land
in the PRC for the property development project of which certain
property under development of approximately HK$145,571,000 held
by a subsidiary namely Yunfu Baoxin was required to be completed by
March 2017.

As at 31 December 2021, the development was still under construction.
A failure to meet any development milestones contained in the Land
Use Rights Contract 2014 may lead to a daily penalty of 0.01% of the
consideration of the Land Use Right Contract 2014 in according with
the terms of the Land Use Rights Contract 2014. The Group had made
submissions to relevant land authority on application of extension of
completion of development on the ground amongst others that such
delay has been due to various reasons beyond its control. During the
year, a written notice has been served to Yunfu Baonxin by the relevant
land authority stating that Yunfu Baoxin shall accelerate the progress
of construction works and the relevant land authority reserves the right
to pursue penalty. After consultation with the PRC legal advisor, the
directors of the Company consider that the probability for penalty by
the relevant land authority in respect of the possible breach of the Land
Use Rights Contract 2014 is minimal, and therefore no provision is to
be recognised as of the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

FE

RZZE-_—F+-A=+—0  HEHEY
¥R E 432,136,000/ L E T - A
EARE T RIK B A R CEHARITIE TR 2 I
m (HFE31(7) -

BIERAPAE-_T—NF=-A BB L HE
AEETEN(ZZE—NFLERES
#1)  AIRAREZ T AR ERMIEIER
BEWBAR(ANEZEM BA2E THE
PI¥E#) 145,671,000 8 THER T —tF=
ARIET -

R-ZT-_—F+-fF=+—8 E@HA%E
BADTEERRR T o WRAEER — T —UF L
FRAESAPA 2 RZEREREE - A7)
REeRB - E-NFELEREANZIE
P BFHWR - —NFE L ERESOR
B 20.01%&15K - AEBEERZHN (K
RETE) B EEGSEENSERERSM
MABBIHEEBRR T ERTEK NS
FoRAEE  BELHEEREAETYE
RPN EmMBA - RPEDZEFEMRER
TRREE mEBLHEEBRREBERED
BIRER o EMAPBEZBRHZREE  AQ
RIESERA  FHRIHEERGAEERS
T—MF i AEESDMENRZ SR 88
PEARGE - E I EE RS HR W R R (5
1 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE
28. Contract assets and contract liabilities 28. EHEEREGHERE
(a) Contract assets (a) BHEE
2021 2020
—E-—& —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Contract assets arising from: EHEEEER -
Construction services RS 38,743 37,256
Less: loss allowance for ECL B FEEMEEBE SRR E (4,124) (3,963)
34,619 33,293

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional.

Significant changes in the contract assets balances during the
year are as follows.

BRHEETBEEASENRETTT
RERFERZRENENBR - 1))
B A BN BUR N A B ARRE
BREENEMK A ERIEE
BEBFEEFA -

BREBERBRNFANERESHN
™o

2021 2020
B —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Continuing operations: HEREER
Impairment losses on contract assets ABRAEEREREE (©)] (59,822)
Write-off of contract assets as uncollectible & 494 2l $5 4A] Yk [ = (125,013)
Reclassified to trade receivables with EOBEEERERERAEK
right to consideration to become HEVE 5 R IE
unconditional - (137,575)

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
milestones are reached.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be recovered
in more than one year is approximately HK$34,619,000 (2020:
approximately HK$33,293,000).

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising
from contract asset are set out in note 6(c).

REBNRESNBIEERNELEY
BEERERERANEBRNR MK
bk o

%Eﬁﬂﬁﬁzafﬁ?éu&@ MENEES
RE49/534,619,0008 TL( —FE —F4F :
,%@ 33,293,000/ 7C) °

ERASEEERRMANEEES:

ZIEERREZE—SFBHNME
6(c) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

28. Contract assets and contract liabilities 28. EHEEREHNERE®@®
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHEE

2021 2020
—E- —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT

Contract liabilities arising from: EHBEELR -
Sale of properties SHEYE 2,336,958 1,917,192
Operation of a golf practising court KESRRIRGEE S 2,992 2,504
Operation of children playrooms CERERRE 1,746 1,295
Operation of fitness rooms EEREE 9,793 2,937
Operation of a karaoke box EERR OKJE 74 =
2,351,563 1,923,928
Contract liabilities represent sales proceeds received from EHBEERAEEBEDE K2
purchasers in connection with the Group’s pre-sales of properties, ERANRES  REERE - BH

operation of a golf practising court, children playrooms, fitness
rooms and a karaoke box.

B R RALOKJE A B 77 B 2 34 & P

B3R -

Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the ERNBREHRNEFRNZEREH W
year are as follows. T o
2021 2020
— B —E T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Revenue recognised that was included AFVEHNBBEESRIERRE
in the contract liability balance at the E-t]
beginning of the year (860,455) (5619,541)
Revenue recognised that was not included Rt AFEHA LB B2 DHER
in the contract liability balance at the -
beginning of the year (695,205) -
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result HERBAREHANEERD
of disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(b)(iil))  (FF3F 40(b)(iii)) (1,823,945) -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result AW EBEEME ZIZEEHE
of receiving deposits in respect of pre- K| &g
sales of properties 3,854,737 1,654,589

Glory Sun Land Group Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

Ft_A=+—HIFFE

29. Trade and other receivables 29. EZRHEHMEWFIE

2021 2020

—E-—F ZTTF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET FHET

Trade receivables H 5 W GRIA 77,179 113,258
Less: loss allowance for ECL B BHIEEERZ BIERE (697) (782)
76,482 112,471

Other receivables H b e g ZaE 108,089 183,596

Other receivables from related parties Hfth pE U A E 5 50E (BIRE 44(0))

(note 44(b)) 498 558
Consideration receivables (note (a)) JEURAE (PFI7E (a) 540,039 13,416
Prepayments and other deposits (note (b)) 81 5008 & E4biE 4 (H13T (b)) 4,267,383 4,407,020
Other tax assets Hib 18 E &= 124,495 285,437

5,040,504 4,890,027
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EW R IE 42 %A 5,116,986 5,002,498
Notes: BisE
(@  Asat31 December 2021, consideration receivables represent the balance @ RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8" EKK

of the proceeds (net of impairment losses) in connection with the disposal
of financial assets at FVTOCI of approximately HK$3,755,000 in the PRC
in prior year; the proceeds (net of impairment losses) in connection with
the disposal of Shenzhen Xinhengchuang Industrial Company Limited of
approximately HK$143,895,000 (note 40(b)(iii)); and the proceeds (net
of impairment losses) in connection with the disposals of the investment
properties in relation to land resumption situated in Shenyang of
approximately HK$392,389,000 (note 21).

As at 31 December 2021, included in prepayments and other deposits of
approximately HK$2,282,256,000 (2020: HK$2,017,710,000) represented
an amount paid for redevelopment project of certain land parcels in
the PRC designated to a subsidiary of the Company by the local PRC
government. The demolition work of redevelopment project has been
completed. The remaining balance substantially represented prepayments
made to the contractors of property development.

EEEENBAFEHEMNTEZIE
ATEEREMEEKEINEZEHE
EZHEREE#(NBRRERSE) L
3,755,000 7T : BRH & ﬁ%ﬁM@
EBRARLZFTSHIE (BMBRRER) X
143,895,000 7% 7T (T 5E 40(p)(ii)) + M &
LB B B T iU 2 IR E WS R
T8 (A0 REE ) 49392,389,000 7 7T (Fff
£21) e

R-IB-—F+-AF=+—8 it AER
%ﬂl&i&ﬁﬂmﬁi\a’@%ﬁﬂjz 282,256,000
BLT(ZTZEF: 2017710000%75)
B EE BT RAA R —HHER
%ﬁz¢@%¥mﬁ2ﬁﬁﬁﬁaaﬁm
RIE - BRAZIEE 2BERIEERNR °
THHETEEAYVERBEABRELZE
A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

29. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group generally allows an average credit period of 2 days
(2020: 2 days) for sales of properties, 10 days (2020: 10 days) for its
customers of trading of commodities and 30 days (2020: 30 days) for
its customers of trading of home appliances and building materials.

Included in trade receivables are trade debtors (net of impairment
losses) with the following aging analysis, based on invoice dates, as of
the end of reporting period.

29. ES R HMEWFIE @)

$E.*T§$¢%¥fﬁ%m$ﬂ1gﬁﬂﬂ7%2
A(ZZE=ZF :2H) BTFHARRS
ﬁM¥ﬁFf%%mELf7f$$-
A EETHEERERGRESE Mﬂgﬁ
T EEER30A(ZEZF4 : 30R) -

RBERREGEREER SRR S
YRR - IRIB3E B EHRREBRE
HERE O ©

2021 2020
ZBE-—F —ECTE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

0-30 days 0-30H 10,811 38,137
31-60 days 31-60 B 11,122 3,443
61-90 days 61-90 B 860 312
91-120 days 91-120 8 5,307 301
Over 120 days 120 BBAE 48,382 70,278
76,482 112,471

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated
in RMB.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are set out in note 6(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

30. Pledged and restricted bank deposits and bank

31.

and cash balances

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s pledged and restricted
bank deposits represented guarantee deposits of approximately
HK$296,132,000 (2020: HK$421,878,000) for construction of pre-
sales properties, deposits of approximately HK$61,250,000 (2020:
HK$172,695,000) (note 31 (c)) pledged to banks to secure notes
payable granted to the Group and a deposit of approximately
HK$24,500,000 (2020:HK$23,560,000) to secure a bank loan granted
to an independent third party.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$319,017,000 (2020: HK$558,761,000) and pledged
and restricted bank deposits of approximately HK$381,882,000
(2020:HK$618,133,000) were denominated in RMB. Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and

30. EEARZRBBTERURR

Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

TRESER

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H '  A&H
EHERZBEHIRTERIELBHER
T8 & W ¥ 2R IR £ 49296,132,0007%
TL( ZZT — T4 421,878,000/8 7T ) + &
BETAEENEMNZBENDER TR
1T H) 17 X 4961,250,000/8 T( — T - T
F 1 172,695,000/ 7t ) (M 5£31(c) & 5t
BB = HERIRITE MR T R4
24,500,000/8 7t (ZZF = Z 4 : 23,560,000
HBIT)

R-ZTE-—F+-A=+—8 AEEMNU
ARBENRITRESEHUAR DA
N2 R HIR1T1F 5 Bl & #)319,017,000%8
JE( =T~ T4 : 558,761,000 B L) K4
381,882,000/87C (ZZE -4 : 618,133,000
BIT) o ARME BN BZ R BISNEE 25
B 45 ~ EIE R IEEIERTE 2 HRR ©

Borrowings 31. X
2021 2020
—E-—-fF —TEF
Current  Non-current Current Non-current
nE IEFRED B FERE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
iiE=s FHET FHET FHT FHT
Secured B
Bank loans IRITER (@) 1,179,308 2,025,782 505,951 4,857,200
Other borrowings Hbfask (b) 1,885,741 - 1,847,999 1,453,522
Notes payable R EE& © 62,628 - 217,810 -
3,127,677 2,025,782 2,571,760 6,310,722
Unsecured I 19
Other borrowings EAbIER (b) 345,327 637,604 550,969 632,468
Corporate bonds NEfES (d) 680,000 - 874,000 -
Loans from related parties
(note 44(b)) BEH ES (HE440) (o) 1,251,084 - 1,423,745 =
2,276,411 637,604 2,848,714 632,468
5,404,088 2,663,386 5,420,474 6,943,190
ENBEMEEBRAT 2021 F3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

31. Borrowings (Continued) 31. fER @
As at 31 December 2021, total current and non-current borrowings RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H ' "R@BN&ER
were scheduled to repay as follows: BB ZERHNT ¢
Borrowings others than
Bank loans bank loans
IRITEM ER(FEIERITER)
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—F —IE-TF B CZ—E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THERT FAT
Within one year —FER 1,179,308 505,951 4,224,780 4,914,523
More than one year, but not
exceeding two years BiE—F  BETHBBME - 904,657 527,865 1,918,714
More than two years, but not
exceeding five years BEWTF - BTNEBERTF 2,025,782 3,952,543 109,739 167,276
3,205,090 5,363,151 4,862,384 7,000,513
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in AEBEFOREMEN TS EEHE -
the following currencies:
HK$ RMB Us$ Total
BT AR x st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET THET FET
2021 B &
Bank loans RITER - 8,205,090 - 3,205,090
Other borrowings Hinfgm - 2,868,672 - 2,868,672
Notes payable JENZEE - 62,628 - 62,628
Corporate bonds NEMESR 680,000 - - 680,000
Loans from related parties RETER 294,000 907,940 49,144 1,251,084
974,000 7,044,330 49,144 8,067,474
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

Borrowings (Continued)

31. BER@

HKS$ RMB Total
BT AR HEET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT

2020 —B-8E
Bank loans RITER - 5,363,151 5,363,151
Other borrowings HABIER - 4,484,958 4,484,958
Notes payable ANES - 217,810 217,810
Corporate bonds RNalESH 874,000 - 874,000
Loans from related parties FiEHER 514,000 909,745 1,423,745
1,388,000 10,975,664 12,363,664

The range of effective interest rates at 31 December were as follows:

RTZA=+—H  BEREFENHBEDT

2021 2020

—E—— —ETHF

Bank loans RITER 4.65%-10.26% 4.65%-8.75%
Other borrowings H AR Nil-15.00% Nil-15.00%
££15.00% FE15.00%

Notes payable AL Nil-3.6% Nil-3.6%
Z23.6% TE3.6%

Corporate bonds NEESH 8.80%-10.00%  8.80%-10.00%
Loans from related parties FEHER Nil-12.00% Nil-10.00%
£212.00% FZE10.00%

The borrowings are arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

(@ As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank loans of
HK$3,205,090,000 were secured by:

(i) corporate guarantee given by certain subsidiaries of the
Group;

(i) corporate guarantee given by a related company of the
Group;

@iy  personal guarantee given by a director of the Company;
(iv)  equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group;

(v)  the Group’s property, plant and equipment (note 20);

(vi)  the Group’s investment properties (note 21); and

(vi)  the Group’s properties under development and properties
held for sale (note 27).

fERABENE LB - SARBAZERAFE

RS

@) R-TE-——#+—-A=+—0 A&
) &Y 3R 17 B 503,205,090,000 7 7T

TS B -

() AEEETFHELDREGA
AR

() AEBMEBADRENATE
R

@iy  ARFEFELHEARER
(v) ANEEETHEBEARAIRRRE

V)  ANEESWE - BB KR (W
£¥20)

(vi) ANEBNEEDEME21)
)5

Vi) AERBEERVERFIELED
% (P 27) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

31. Borrowings (Continued) 31. B

(a8  (Continued) @
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank loans of
HK$5,363,151,000 were secured by:

(i) corporate guarantee given by certain subsidiaries of the

Group;

(ii) corporate guarantee given by a related company of the
Group;

(i) personal guarantee given by a director of the Company;

(iv)  equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group;

(v)  the Group’s property, plant and equipment (note 20);

(vi)  the Group’s investment properties (note 21); and

(vi)  the Group’s properties under development and properties
held for sale (note 27).

(b) As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s other borrowings of (b)

HK$1,885,741,000 were secured by:

i) corporate guarantee given by certain subsidiaries and
related companies of the Group;

(i) corporate guarantee given by an independent third party;

(i)  personal guarantee given by a director of the Company;

(iv)  intragroup group receivables of a subsidiary of the Group;

(v)  properties owned by an independent third party;

(vi)  the Group’s investment properties (note 21); and

(vi)  the Group’s properties under development and properties
held for sale (note 27).
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y7777¢+ A=+—R &%
I®] 10 R 17 & 5£5,363,151,0007% 7T A
MT%EWEW-

) AEEETFHELDREOHA
AR -

iy ANEEBEHARIRENQRE
R

u)

il

@iy ARDFEBELHEAER
vy AEEETHBRRAME

v  AEENYE - BER&E
££20)

V) AEEIREWE(E21)
P53

Vi) AEEBEEVERBIELED
¥ (FsE27) »
RZZTZ—F+=ZA=+—08  *%
B 5 H b 5 70 1,885,741,0007% 7T i
AT S BB -

) AEEETHEARLERA
AR A RIFELR

(i) BUE=FHIREMHDBER
(i)  ANRFEBELABEARER

(iv) mﬁlfﬁWFﬁﬂm%@W
E.J_E”&W\

V) HBIBEZFHEENDE:

V) AEEREME(ME21):
&

Vi) AEREERZVERFIELED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. Borrowings (Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s other borrowings of

HK$3,301,521,000 were secured by:

(i) corporate guarantee given by certain subsidiaries and
related companies of the Group;

(ii) corporate guarantee given by an independent third party;

(i)  personal guarantee given by a director of the Company;

(iv)  intragroup group receivables of a subsidiary of the Group;

(v)  properties owned by an independent third party;

(viy  the Group’s investment properties (note 21); and

(vi)  the Group’s properties under development (note 27).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s remaining other
borrowings of approximately HK$982,931,000 (2020:
HK$1,183,437,000) were unsecured and unguaranteed.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has utilised approximately
HK$62,628,000 (2020: HK$217,810,000) of notes payable
which is secured by a charge over the pledged bank and
restricted deposits amounted to approximately HK$61,250,000
(2020:HK$172,695,000) (note 30).

On 1 April 2021, the Company issued corporate bonds at a
nominal value of HK$180,000,000 which are guaranteed by a
subsidiary of the Group, unsecured and bearing interest at a rate
of 8.8% per annum respectively with maturity on 31 March 2022.

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

FrA=+—HIFE

31. B @

(b)

R-ZBE-_ZTF+_A=+—H A&
[ 1Y E b £ 303,301,521,000 % 7T i
AT & BB -

() AEEETHBELF
AR EER

REER

iy WIBEZFELHOREIER
@iy ADFEBELHEARR

(v) A& I*F'EJMT%Q
EEEGIA

EIEESENY

V) BBYE=FHANDE:
Vi) AEENREME(HE21):
K

(vi)  AEEEEYE (HE27) -

RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H &%
[ 5 T E {5 5K 49 982,931,000 /8 7T
(ZZ—ZF4 :1,183,437,000/% 7T )
BEEALERER

RZBE-_—F+-_A=+—H &«
%= B A 462,628,000 T ( = &
— T4 : 217,810,000 7T ) FE =
B BB HEIFERTRZREIFR
#61,250,0008 T( — T = & F:
172,695,000 7T ) 2 ¥ 50 A 18 (Bt
F£30) °

RZEBE-Z—FWMA—H  NAR)ET
[ {8 180,000,000 % 7T 2 A AlfE S -
DRI AEE M B AR R E
R EER - RFNESBERE
R-ZE-—F=A=+—HEIH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

31.

Borrowings (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

On 21 January 2020, the Company issued corporate bonds at
a nominal value of HK$374,000,000 which are guaranteed by a
subsidiary of the Group, unsecured and bearing interest at a rate
of 8.8% per annum with maturity on 10 November 2021. Such
corporate bonds had been repaid during the year.

On 19 May 2020, the Company issued corporate bonds at a
nominal value of HK$500,000,000 which are guaranteed by a
subsidiary of the Group, unsecured and bearing interest at a rate
of 10% per annum with maturity on 18 May 2021. The corporate
bonds had been extended to 22 May 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, amounts of approximately
HK$1,251,084,000 are unsecured and repayable within 1
year of which approximately HK$1,141,940,000 is interest
bearing ranged from 8% to 12% per annum and unguaranteed,
approximately HK$49,144,000 is interest-free and unguaranteed,
and approximately HK$60,000,000 is bearing an interest at 10%
and guaranteed by the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, amounts of approximately
HK$1,423,745,000 are unsecured and repayable within 1
year, of which approximately HK$1,143,745,000 is interest
bearing ranged from 8% to 10% per annum and unguaranteed,
approximately HK$220,000,000 is interest-free and
unguaranteed, and approximately HK$60,000,000 is bearing an
interest at 10% and guaranteed by the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of investment
properties amounting to approximately HK$46,992,000
and properties held for sales amounting to approximately
HK$32,136,000 of a subsidiary were pledged as security for a
bank borrowing granted to a former subsidiary which had been
overdue. A provision for the obligation of a subsidiary have been
made as the repayment of the bank borrowing from a former
subsidiary was in default.
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RZZFZFF—A=+—0  ARA
%17 {E 4 374,000,000 7 ST H) A A
&% REEHFAAEE-—RNBA
AREER - REER BFMX
88E:E BR-—_ZT=——F+—A
THEH - ZELFEFERFEANE
2 o

RZEZZTFRATNA  KAR)E
17T HE1E £ 500,000,000 % T A A B &
%5 ZEEFHASE B AR
RHER - BEER - BFEFER10E
He - BR-ZE-—HA+/\BF
B RREFEERE-S-__FH
A=+=H-

RZEBE-_—F+-A=+—8" 4
1,251,084,000% 7T & EEF - HR
—FREE - H+41,141,940,000
BILEFHNENTIEZ12EFTER
HIEIR ¢ #749,144,0008 T AR BN
IR 4960,000,00078 T 102
AR BBARTRMER -

RZZEZZEF+-RA=+—H" 4
1,423,745,000 Bt AEER - AR
—FREE - HEF491,143,745,000
BILIEFHENTEE10ETER
EYE(R © #7220,000,00078 7T AR B
N ¥ (R #960,000,0005% JT %10
EFHE HBRARRREER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —F+_-H=+—HIF/ZF

31. Borrowings (Continued)

©

No provision for the obligation of the certain subsidiaries under
corporate guarantee have been made as the directors of the
Company considered that it is not probable the repayment of
borrowings would be in default.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a number of unutilised
loan facilities of approximately HK$5,293,846,000. Subsequent
to 31 December 2021, the Group has further obtained a number
of other loan facilities from a number of fund providers with an
amount of approximately HK$42,875,000. Subsequent to 31
December 2021, the Group has drawn down approximately
HK$32,205,000.

31. B @

@)

HRARBEERR/ENEERRZ
AREERA - MW B ARIEREAT
AETHBRREEEHREME -

RZEBEZ—F+ZA=+—H 'K
SEEBZERDAERBREYD
5,293,846,000/8 L - R T - —F
TZA=+—H% AEEEZE
B RBEENSZEHAMERRME
#742,875,0008 L - R=ZT = —4F
F+TZA=+—H% AEEDIRELY
32,205,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE
32. Trade and other payables 32. ESRHMEMNTIE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH&T FAET
Trade payables Z S e I8 2,940,351 2,978,021
Wages and salaries payables ENTERFS 13,437 23,421
Accruals B TE A 4,092 5,706
Other tax liabilities HiBHIEEE 73,874 2,943
Interest payables FERHF B 222,023 206,406
Interest payables to related parties FEfTRAE T 2 7B (7 44(0))

(note 44(b)) 33,857 24,589
Secured deposits from contractors HIEEBEIRS 355,490 341,204
Other payables H{th fE R 342,805 314,867
Other payable to an non-controlling E AP IEIE B fE e 2 BB (M 5E (@)

interest (note (a)) 48,554 46,916
Other payables to related parties L A R 77 OB (BT (a) K 44(0))

(note (a) and 44(b)) 5,271 114,065

1,099,403 1,080,117
4,039,754 4,058,138
Note: BT -
(@  Other payables to an non-controlling interest and related parties are (a) HEtbENIEESIMERSREE S ZRIBA

unsecured, non-interest bearing, and repayable on demand.

The credit period of trade payables in relation to trading of commodities
is ranged from 10 to 360 days (2020: ranged from 10 to 180 days);
provision of real estate and property investment is ranged from 7 to 30
days (2020: ranged from 7 to 30 days) and trading of home appliances
and building materials is 30 days (2020: 30 days). A):
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

32. Trade and other payables (Continued) 32. ESRHEMEMFIE @
Included in trade payables are trade creditors with the following aging B REMENFIEREESHENER - &
analysis, based on invoice dates, as of the end of reporting period: RERRENEZAHNRESTIT -
2021 2020
—E—— ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
0-30 days 0-30 H 1,870,833 1,963,931
31-60 days 31-60H 7,178 11,936
61-90 days 61-90H 4,392 2,503
91-120 days 91-120H 7,592 517
Over 120 days 120 HMA £ 1,050,356 999,134
2,940,351 2,978,021
Financial guarantee 33. BIBER

33.

(@)

Guarantee in respect of borrowings of a former subsidiary:

(@) FLATME AR ERE LR

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Non-current portion JEBNEREL S
Financial guarantee B3 M ISR 89,628 -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group issued guarantee of
approximately HK$89,628,000 to bank in respect of banking
facilities granted to a former subsidiary. Under the guarantee,
the Group and other independent third parties were jointly and
severally liable for all or any of the borrowings of each of them
from the bank upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make
payments when due.

The maximum liability of the Group at 31 December 2021 under
the guarantee is the amount of bank loans drawn under the
guarantee at that date of approximately HK$1,660,573,000.

R-ZBE-_—F+-A=+—H £&
E AT E A R ER R TRVE MR
1TE1THEIR 49 89,628,000 87T © B IE
ZERER  WIZERNEEBIERER
BEER  AEEREMBUE=FE
B 5 £/ R B B R SR 1T A E AT A ST
AERAERERT -

WZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H ' &K
SERERETZESETARZ
HIRBMZERBT ZRITERY
1,660,573,000 7 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

33. Financial guarantee (Continued)

33. BMEER @

(b)  Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities for certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties:

As at 31 December 2021, guarantees amounting to
approximately HK$24,509,000 (2020: approximately
HK$501,299,000) are given to banks with respect to mortgaged
loans procured by the purchasers of the Group’s properties.
Such guarantees will be released by banks upon the issuance
of the real estate ownership certificate to the purchasers or the
satisfaction of the mortgaged loans by the purchasers, whichever
is earlier. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default
in mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group will
be responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interest and penalty owed by the defaulted
purchasers to the banks and the Group is entitled to take over
the legal title and possession of the related properties. The
directors of the Company consider that the likelihood of default in
payments by purchasers is minimal.

34. Consideration payable

The consideration payable classified as non-current liabilities in relation
to the Operating Right (note 23) is set out as follows:

(b)

ERAEEMEETE T ZRIBME
ZHER

R-BE-_—F+-_A=+—HHASE
EMEE FFIESHIRBER - MR
TR IEIR 424,509,000 T (= F
— T4 501,299,000 7T ) © SRITH
REFEREEENEFSERBEER
R (URFERE) BREAER -
BEZEERIER  BEREBEHBR
ZBPIE  ASEKEREERENE
RS RITHRERIRIBA S REST
FEUKEI®  BASEEFEZER
BMEREEEERFEBE - A QT
EERAEF R RIEN ] REEMT
Higo

34. BHRE

BRAEERE (HE23) 2N RE (D BRI
mREBE) &I

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 January 2020 R-B-FF—HF—H 136,019

Imputed interest charged HEFEEA 18,826

Exchange differences b 5 =%E 8,902
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 NR-_ZB-_FEFE+-_A=+—8

k=—ZF-_—-%—-H—H 163,747

Imputed interest charged HERBER 13,010

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(b)(ii) HH & BB 22 ] (BT 40(0) i) (179,826)

Exchange differences PEH Z=%8 3,069

At 31 December 2021

R-ZBZ—5+ZA=+—H

Pursuant to the Operation Entrustment Agreement, the consideration
payable at initial amount of RMB392,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$471,000,000) will be settled by 10 equal annual
instalments of RMB39,250,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$47,100,000) each from the eleventh year of the date on which the
assets were transferred. The transfer of assets was completed on 11
March 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE

Consideration payable (Continued)

The imputed interest charged for the year is calculated by applying
effective interest rate of 13.04%.

During the year, the Group disposed of the consideration payable
through the disposal of subsidiaries disclosed in note 40(b)(ii).

As at 31 December 2020, the consideration payable classified as
current liabilities represents outstanding amount in relation to the
acquisition of assets of RMB500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$589,000) as disclosed in 40(a).

Deferred tax

The following are the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by
the Group:

Other
intangible Investment
assets  Inventories properties

it

#VEE #E EUIES
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TER TEL TEL

34. ENRE @)

FALENSERIZEERENE13.04EE

WAREE  AEBECEBHEWNBRRLE
FERHRAB (FABEE 40(0)(i) #HEE) ©

R_E_TF+-_A=+—8 " “*E?%méb
BEZENREERKEEESBRE
@%E/\Eﬁ%oo,ooomm?‘.?ﬁé%@ssg,ooo
BIT)  WNFTEE 40(0) T ER o

35. ELEBIE
FEEHRAZEEHIBEEEREENT
Property, Financial
Put plant and guarantee
option  equipment contract LAT Total

EN 1

EAE S ERE BBERRK  IHRER EH)
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000
TER TEL TEL TER TEL

At 1 January 2020 R-E-EE-F-A 4953 322,991 461,169 2,654 435 (8,294) (19,852) 808,635
Charge/(credit to profit orloss 1%/ (; ) REE 285

for the year (note 12) (3 12) (49,888) (24,063) (13,469) 4573 8,672 8,355 (9.822) (75,642)
Exchange differences EXEE 356 17,299 26,638 - 466 (61) (1,669 43039
At31 December 2020and1  R=Z=EF+-F=1-H

January 2021 R=E--%-B-H - 316,227 474,338 7,221 9,573 - (31,333) 776,032
Credt to profit o loss for FARERZBE

the year (note 12) (K 12) - (59.256) (32749 7.227) 19,362 - (3538  (11212)
Disposal of subsiclaries (note M2 R) (HfzE40p)i)

40(o) i) - - (66,027) - - - 16,798 (49,229)
Exchange differences EREE - 11,582 18,354 - 219 - (1,310) 28,845
At 31 December 2021 R-Z--%+-fA=t-R - 268,553 393,922 - 430 - (19,383) 643,522
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

35. Deferred tax (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purpose:

5. IEZERIIE (#)

T 2ME W ZBERBERITAT

2021 2020

—E—— ZETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHT

Deferred tax assets EEFIEE E - (36,657)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBRE 643,522 812,689
643,522 776,032

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$442,123,000 (2020: approximately
HK$364,889,000) which were available for offset against future profits
and are subject to expiry period of five years. During the year ended 31
December 2021, unused tax losses of approximately HK$112,814,000
were reversed upon disposal of subsidiaries. No deferred tax assets
have been recognised in respect of the estimated tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, withholding
tax is imposed at 10% on dividends declared to foreign investors in
respect of profit earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onward. At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised is approximately HK$783,766,000 (2020: approximately
HK$970,525,000). No liability has been recognised in respect of these
differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing
of reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

36. Share capital 36. RA
2021 2020
—E-—F —EITF
Number Number
of shares of shares
IR AR &L
’000 HK$°000 000 HK$’'000
Tz FET Fix FAET
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares of BREE.05BILZ
HK$0.05 each B
At 1 January and 31 R—A—HXK
December +=-—A=+—H 8,000,000 400,000 8,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAL :
Ordinary shares of BREESE LY
HK$0.05 each =tk
At 1 January ®n—A—H 4,550,105 227,505 4,550,105 227,505
Shares issued on Be S R EETTAR (9 (P 5E)
placement (note) 910,020 45,501 - -
At 31 December Wt+—_A=+—8H 5,460,125 273,006 4,550,105 227,505
Note: MyeE

On 7 April 2021, 910,020,000 ordinary shares of the Company were allotted and
issued to the placees at HK$0.3 each, pursuant to a placing agreement dated 18
March 2021. The placement was completed on 7 April 2021 and the premium
on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately HK$227,034,000 after
deducting the share issuance expenses, was credited to the Company’s share
premium account.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

MR-_Z-—FMA+H 910,020,000 AR &)
TEBREREAEAE-_S-_—F=A+N\AZE
EHEUEAR0.IE T MAR AR R LT - B
EEER-_S=-—FHALAZEK - METRGD
Z3m{B#)227,034,00078 7T (AEHNBRAR D B TTH X
%) BRF AR R BIRRDIEERR ©

REEEREERARRAEEETEEA
SELE RSB aERRARNF
BRENEREERKEAE@E - AEE
B R AR BT F W AR

AEENERGBBIEARRRA ARERE
@ EFERDBEITERAE  MELRE

1o
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36. Share capital (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure of the Group
on a timely basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issue of new debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital.
Total debt comprises borrowings. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity (i.e. share capital, accumulated losses and other
reserves) except for non-controlling interests.

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2021 and 2020
were as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

36. B @)

AR EFERHAEBNENERBETE
Bl - tEREHN—#D  ARRIEFEERE
BARAREEEREAEENRER - A%
BRI ERE - BTHRO REER
7 ARBETHES TOEEREARE -

AEBREBELHBERZLXEESR
AR o P R TR B F R AL AR E ARG
g BRABEEREN - KHARELAERE
a2 FTAMRER D (BIBA - REHER R
HAbE#E) - HESEEBIERERSN

RZBZ—FR_ZT-_FF+-_A=+—H
ZEBEE AR RN

2021 2020

—BE-—F T EF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Total debt (borrowings) HER (B0 8,067,474 12,363,664
Less: bank and cash balances o RITRIRE R (841,393) (735,501)
Net debt B E 7,726,081 11,628,163
Adjusted capital PRSI 2,953,934 2,282,849
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BT L AT B AR AR bt 3 262% 509%

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report from the share
registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing the non-public
float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE

37. Holding company statement of financial position 37. 1R B B AR TR A A Bl

and reserve movement of the company B2H
(@) Holding company statement of financial position (a) ERQBBBMRRE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTTF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
BaE FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIEE = —
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b fE U IE 3,744 3,628
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E e 4,605,638 4,899,928
Bank and cash balances RITRIR B 5 18,546 23,289
4,627,928 4,926,845
Current liabilities REBAR
Borrowings B 1,839,105 2,237,745
Other payables H1th et F0IE 81,728 55,657
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHMTF FIRIE 24,215 45,520
1,945,048 2,338,922
Net current assets REEEFE 2,682,880 2,587,923
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABER 2,682,880 2,587,923
Non-current liability EREAE
Borrowing B - -
NET ASSETS AEFE 2,682,880 2,587,923
Capital and reserves BRA R EE
Share capital f% 7 273,006 227,505
Reserves Fe 37(b) 2,409,874 2,360,418
TOTAL EQUITY EFEE 2,682,880 2,587,923
* represented balance less than HK$1,000 * FEERERT 2 1,000 7T
Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and EFEER-_F-__F=A=t+—H
signed on its behalf by: BEWHRUATATREZEE :
Yao Jianhui Xia Lingjie
Pk BEE
Director Director
EFE EFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F ——F+_-A=+—HI FE

37. Holding company statement of financial position
and reserve movement of the company (Continued)

(b)

Reserve movement of the Company

37. ERDAMBRRERRAD A
e @

(b) AATREED

Shares  Share redemption Contributed Shareholder's Accumulated
premium reserve surplus contribution losses Total
REE  REBEREE B4ER RETE ZithE h
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Thn Fin i FAn i Thn
(note 38(b)() (note 38(b)il) (note (a)) (note (b))
(P 38(0)) (P 38(0)0) (B3 ) (PH3E)
At1 January 2020 WZE-EE-f-H 3,189,824 2,269 29,412 1,392 (665,555) 2,557,342
Total comprehensive income for - AEE 2 ENRES
the year = = = = (196.924) (196,924)
At31December2020and ~ R=E-FE+-A=1-H
1 January 2021 R=E=-£-5-A 3,189,624 2,269 29,412 1,392 (862,479) 2,360,418
Shares issued on placement  BREBZTIRIA (1 36)
(note 36) 227,034 - - - - 227,034
Total comprehensive income for - AEZE 2 AN ES
the year - - - - (177,578) (177,578)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--£+ZA=1-R 3416858 2269 29412 1,239 (1,040,057) 2409874
Notes: FisE

(@) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
pursuant to a group reorganisation and the nominal value of the
ordinary shares issued by the Company in exchange thereof.

(b) The shareholder’s contribution of the Company represents
contribution from the intermediate holding company for cancellation

of the Company’s share options in 2012.

38. Reserves

(@)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

changes in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —Z ——

38. Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

M

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Share redemption reserve represents the aggregate
amount of the share capital and share premium in
relation to the repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Merger reserve arose as a result of business combination
under common control.

Statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the
PRC subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account
as required by the relevant PRC statue.

Other reserve mainly represents gains/losses arising from
changes in Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control.

The shareholder’s contribution of the Group represents (i)
waiver of an amount due to a shareholder of the Company
in 2001 and 2002, (i) the contribution from the intermediate
holding company for cancellation of the Company’s share
options in 2012 and (jii) the contribution from the ultimate
holding company on acquisition of a subsidiary in 2020.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the net assets of
foreign operations into presentation currency. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(0) to the consolidated financial statements.

FVTOCI reserve represents fair value reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investment
designated at FVTOCI that are held at the end of the
reporting period.

38. f@#fE @)

FrA=+—HIFE

(b) REEHEERE®D

M

(i)

(i)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

REFMERBERANE AR
h@&f%WZﬁiTﬁ”ﬁ
FTARRBRR - ENEEER
DIk S BHE% - ARAEH
BRENEENBEESKBIETD
FEZEE -

BOEOFEEEEBEREAR
BIARGIRAT R Z A KB
i EAREE o

B HHEE I RN R ZES T
XBABES

ETE R IE R IR AR R P BUA
BRTE - 15 BT X B A9
NORETADERHEE S

EW%%IE%I$%EKW

DR B (T EHE
%?W%%Eimw 5/ &
& -

AEEHNRFRIEEREOIN=ZZ
T FER-ITZTE_FERE
TAMENARQR—BRES
B MRZE—ZFRIHEA
NEIBEREmRE R EZERA
ﬂmﬁﬁ'&mm:%:gﬁ
R B RAAYER A R h U —
WEA ﬂ%&éo
EHFEEREREBINELE
EFEREINEMEMEL Y
FRBsINEZEE - BRAMEIIE
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39. Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants include the employees, executives, officers and directors of
the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 2 April 2004 and was expired on 1 April 2014.

The Company terminated the Scheme and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed in the
annual general meeting dated 26 March 2014 which became effective
on the same date. The New Scheme will remain in force for ten years
commencing from the effective date. Any options granted under the
Scheme prior to its termination continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of issue and the rules of the Scheme.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the New Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the New Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 20 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$10 in total or other amount as determined by the board of the
Company by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than ten
years from the date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date
of the New Scheme, if earlier.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

Share-based payments (Continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share
options; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 December 2021, the number of shares in respect of which
options has been remained outstanding under the Scheme and New
Scheme was nil (2020: nil).

Options are lapsed if the employee leaves the Group and the
relationship with consultants is ceased or terminated by the Group.

Notes to the consolidated statement of cash
flows

(@ Acquisition of subsidiary in prior year
Acquisition of Shenzhen Baoxin Supply Chain Company
Limited (“Baoxin Supply Chain”) in prior year
In July 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 100% equity interest in Baoxin Supply
Chain, which is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Glory Sun
Financial Group Limited, at a total consideration of RMB500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$548,000). The amount of
HK$548,000 was settled during the year. The transaction was
completed in July 2020 and recognised as an acquisition of
assets, rather than a business combination.

39.

40.

U BERNSTR @

BREZITEERESERE  ENMSERIA
T&BE ()RR ABRRERERL A
HATERG 2 P 2 WTTME © (i) RA R B
EX R BT RER 5 BER R 2 FHWH
B R(i) AARBOREL B H (2ER)
ZHfE

FE RN T TR A B BRI R
G LEREZRERN -

RZZE-_—F+-A=+—8 &2k
STEIE T M ARITE Z BTS2 D E

BEAZT(ZZE_ZF :F)-

it 02 B BERA AR S 3 N BB RS 2 BRR 4% 1 b el
REEAE L - BIRBRHERRL -

REREREBRME

(a) RBEFEWBHEBLR
RABIEFEW R E R E#E A
R a] ([ EFHERE )
RZEZZTFLR . AKEFIVE
Efpak - LWBRE AR 500,000
(F2% 7 #7548,0007 JT ) Uk B = 5
SHEBRGRARZHEEZEKHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

40. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 40.

flows (Continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiary in prior year (Continued)
Acquisition of Shenzhen Baoxin Supply Chain Company
Limited (“Baoxin Supply Chain”) in prior year (Continued)

The recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities at the

GEREREXRMT @

(@) RBEFEWEHEDR (@)
B FREWIE T EF R ERE
R a]([EFRER]) (&)
RIKEBHBARE AMKBEERE

date of acquisition of the subsidiary comprise the following: BENEERSTELT
HK$’000
FAT
Other receivables HAth fE I RIE 7,512
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS 2,937
Other payable EoAth JETFRIE (9,870)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities acquired BESAHEREEMBEFRE 579
Gain on acquisition of assets g & Ea s (31)
Total consideration satisfied by cash LR S ARE 548
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEE 2R MAFHE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BESReMNReEEY 2,937

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

(i) Disposal of Shenzhen Xinpeng Fresh Food Industry
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Xinpeng”)
On 23 June 2021, the Group disposed of its 51% equity
interest in Shenzhen Xinpeng which was principally
engaged in trading of seafood for a cash consideration
of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$18,270,000).
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40. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 40. ZREBEERERMET @)

flows (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(b) HEMEXR E)
HERINFTWeEHEFBR

Disposal of Shenzhen Xinpeng Fresh Food Industry (0
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Xinpeng”) (Continued)

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

el (RN ]) ()
REERH - BEFELT

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRB 44
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 45 2,483
Trade and other receivables B 5 R B FE IR 25,215
Net assets disposed of BHEEETE 27,742
Release of translation reserve ARBREE 5 A (2,759)
Release of non-controlling interests AR R IEIE I A (8,519)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — I B A Tl E 1,806
Total consideration satisfied by cash LAIRE S 4R (E 18,270
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEZRESRAFERE
Cash consideration received BUERERE 18,270
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BEHERS MBESEEY (2,483)
15,787

EFEHEEERLT 2021 FHK

285

A

2



4
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

40. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 40. ZREBEERERMET @)
flows (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Disposal of Yue Jin Asia

As stated in note 17, on 23 July 2021, the Group disposed
of its entire equity interest in Yue Jin Asia for a cash

consideration of HK$1.

(b) HEMELT (#)

(i) HEEETH
MMIFE7FRi  RZZE=—F
tAZ+=8" AEEU1E
THHREeRELDEENERT

IME 2 ERRR A -

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: RHEBBOFEENT
HK$’000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment L EN NG 1,403
Other intangible assets HmmpEE 88,851
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR© 45 3,737
Current tax assets EHTIA 9
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A ERIE 10,957
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMFER A (15,762)
Borrowings B (52,800
Consideration payable FERHRME (179,826)
Amount due to the Group FERAEERE (305,346)
Current tax liabilities BIHATHIA B E (4,725)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEaEFRE (453,502)
Release of translation reserve [0l & 5 (15 (34,114)
Derecognition of goodwill (note) BIEEREE (W) =
Assignment of amount due to the Group 22 < N 2 [ ZhIR 305,346
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 17) HEM B A RUES (MisE17) 103,142
Total consideration wRE (79,128)
Satisfied by: ATHNFAZ A -
Cash Re =
Non-cash IR & (79,128)
(79,128)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEACZHESRAFRE !
Cash consideration received BUYIRENRE =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHEReRREEEEY (3,737)
(3,737)
* Represents the balance less than HK$1,000 * EREERTZ 1,000 7T

Note: The goodwill had been fully impaired in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE

40. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash
flows (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Disposal of Shenzhen Xinhengchuang Industrial
Company Limited (“Xinhengchuang”)

On 22 December 2021, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in Xinhengchuang for a cash consideration
of RMB300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately

. MEBEERERMT @

(b) HEMEXR E)

(i)

HK$367,500,000).

HERIFIEBEXER L
7 ([#71881))
RZEZ—F+=ZA=+=
A REBEUREREBEAR
# 300,000,000 ( 18 & 7 4
367,500,0007% JT) & ERH

1B AIK) 2 BRI -

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: REEHBOFEENT

HK$’000

FAET

Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB Ri&E 4,019
Investment properties "B 2,224,723
Deferred tax assets EEFTEE E 39,069
Inventories Ny 3,219,639
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A GRIA 385,126
Current tax assets EHTIA 27,155
Pledged bank balances EEPIRITEER 68,180
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 54,527
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMFERFRIA (1,353,920)
Borrowings B (2,666,248)
Contract liabilities EHaE (1,823,949)
Current tax liabilities BNEATRIE & & (111,839
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE (88,298)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEaBEFERE (21,808)
Release of translation reserve B O1fE 5 R 5,429
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A RIM e 294,251
Total consideration B 277,872
Satisfied by: IATSERZA
Cash =4 367,500
Non-cash IR % (89,628)

277,872
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEAZRESRAFE
Cash consideration received YIRS RE 220,500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERESMREEEY (54,527)

165,973

The consideration has been partially received of
approximately HK$220,500,000 and the remaining was
included in consideration receivables of approximately
HK$147,000,000 under current assets as at 31 December
2021. The balance has been fully received subsequently in
January 2022.

RZE-Z—F+=—A=+—
H BB KELD
220,500,000/ 7T+ M & T~
HBEFARBDEEETL
147,000,000 T2 FEURHR(E -
BEBEERENR _ZE_—_F—A8
FEEURER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E MR R R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

40. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 40. ZREBEERERMET @)
flows (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MEITBELEMEEYIR
activities
Other
payables Other
to an non- payables
Interest controlling to related Lease
Borrowings payables interest parties liabilities
Aot pEf HipfEf
FEHIMES BEL
&R EAFE ZFE ZHE HERE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT THET TAT THET
(note 31) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 43)
(FzE31) (Fi5E32) (Fi#5E32) (K31 32) (Fii5E43)
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—%—F—-H 12,363,664 230,995 46,916 114,065 59,951
Changes from cash flows: Benes
Repayment to an non-controlling  {& 4 3E428 I 14 #E %5
interest - - (230) - -
Repayment to related parties BE@ER - = - (110,536) -
Proceeds from borrowings ERFERIE 5,117,219 =
Interest paid BAFE = (799,271) - - -
Proceeds from issue of corporate /7R AlE RSB
bonds 180,000 - - - -
Repayment of borrowings BBER (6,873,804) - - - -
Repayment of corporate bonds ~ EBARIfE%S (374,000) - - - -
Repayment of principal portion ~ EEHREEEZ AL HH
on lease liabilities - - - - (6,405)
Repayment of interest portion on BB EEEZ S HH
lease liabilities - - - - (6,003)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 2% 373,443 3,745 1,868 2,623 2,352
Other changes: Hipg
Finance cost (note 11) RER (7E11) = 852,530 = = 6,003
Disposal of subsidiaries (note ~ HEME A F (i 40(0)
40(b)) (2,719,048) (32,119 - (881) -
Increase in lease liabiliies from ST FHHEEHME
entering into new leases aEEm - - - - 8,683
Decrease in lease liabllities from 4|t EEHAE B ERD
termination of leases - - - - 37)
i —
At 31 December 2021 +-A=t—H 8,067,474 255,880 48,554 5,271 64,544
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —F ——F +=-A=+—HIFFZE

40. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 40. ZREBEERERMET @)
flows (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) METBEENEEHR@E
activities (Continued)

Other payables Other
to an non- payables to
Interest controlling related Lease
Borrowings payables interest parties liabilities
H AL Ht RS
JeiEl R BEh
EES FERFS, LB ZHE HERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TR THI TAET THT
(note 31) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 43)
(F7E31) (P 32) (F7E32) (FE32) (F7E43)
At 1 January 2020 ~E-EF-f—H 8,469,595 472,075 44,558 78,088 30,314
Changes from cash flows: fﬁimf”‘“’“
Repayment to an non-controling & & JE2 i #ERS
interest - - (232) - -
Advances from related parties B 2B - - - 29,896 -
Proceeds from borrowings ERFEHIR 14,572,149 - - - -
Interest paid ERFIE - (986,392) - - -
Proceeds from issue of corporate /TR RIEH 2B
bonds 879,000 - - - -
Repayment of borrowings BEER (10,883,740) - - - -
Repayment of corporate bonds B A Al{EH (1,210,500) - - - -
Repayment of principal portion ~ EEHREEEZ 25
on lease liabilities - - - - (2,432)
Repayment of interest portion on  ERAERGE 2 FEEHH
lease liabilities - - - - (3,086)
Exchange adjustments B 5, 7% 537,160 3,973 2,590 6,081 2,934
Other changes: Hip# )
Finance cost (note 11) e eNGEI - 741,339 - - 3,086
Increase in lease liabilities from ]V ¥AEEHBE
entering into new leases BEEM - - - - 29,135
ZETHF
At 31 December 2020 ‘|'_)EI =f+-A 12,363,664 230,995 46,916 114,065 59,951
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F ——F+_-A=+—HI FE

41. Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, in addition to those disclosed elsewhere in
the financial statement, the Group and the Company did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2020: nil).

41. HARERE

R-ZT-—F+-F=+—8  BHERE
Epthih H FrigsEE s - ANEE KR A E
FRERSAEE(ZZFF : &) -

42. Commitments 42, &I
2021 2020
s T TE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Contracted but not yet provided for: BERTH B R -

Property, plant and equipment Y - B MR AE 21,643 3,781

Investment properties and inventories ~ EEREMELFE
under construction 7,827,487 15,957,923
7,849,130 15,961,704
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

43. Lease 43. HE
Lease Liabilities HESE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the TRINFAAREAARREEHBEAEFR
Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current reporting period. BRE KV HARR -
Total minimum lease Present value of
payments the lease payments
BIEEENREE HEMREZRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—ZE-—fF —ETF —E-—F —ZETF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT FExT FAT
Within one year —FR 12,029 12,657 5,918 6,521
After one year but —FREMFERN
within two years 11,627 10,481 6,216 5,082
After two year but MERERFA
within five years 34,545 36,997 23,845 24,836
After five years RF& 41,739 37,327 28,565 23,512
99,940 97,362 64,544 59,951
Less: total future B R SR AR
interest expenses (35,396) (87,411)
Present value of lease FA& kT8 2 IR (A
liabilities 64,544 59,951
The present value RREEFKEZIRE
of future lease DT

payments are
analysed as follows:

Current liabilities REIBE 5,918 6,521
Non-current liabilities ~ FEGEIEE 58,626 53,430
64,544 59,951
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——#+ - A=+—HI FE

43. Lease (Continued)

The Group as lessor:

The Group leases out investment property under operating leases.
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms for an initial
period of 2 to 15 years (2020: 2 to 10 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the minimum rent receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

43. FHE @)

FEBEERHBA (B
AEERBEEBERRREYE - BOD
i HeBEEBEBVFR2E15F
(ZB-TF : 2E105) -

REREIA - TSR EE T2 RE
TS 1T :

2021 2020

—EB-—F —TEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Within one year —F R 32,781 18,316
Later than one year and not later than BB —F RN BEARFE

two years 31,970 15,198
Later than two years and not later than BBERFRETBE=F

three years 23,561 14,645
Later than three years and not later than i@ =B T EREPUF

four years 18,419 7,801
Later than four years and not later than BBEUF RN BARF

five years 12,973 6,933

After five years AF% 35,219 7,804

154,923 70,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

44. Related party transactions

(@)

44. BEHRS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed BRérE B TS Bt it 5 PR B 2 s S5 &
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements. TR REERRIN o
The Group had the following transactions with its related parties @ FA-AEBBEEREDBETUAT
during the year: R :
2021 2020
—E——F —ETHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PiEE FExT FAT
Ultimate holding company BRAERAT
— Interest expenses on loans - BXRABEHX (ii) - 21,674
Fellow subsidiaries EEXN NG
— Commission fee for issue - BIRRIEFNASER
corporate bonds (ii) - 2,500
- Interest expenses on loans - BRI ERX (ii) = 48,425
— Administrative expenses -TBAX (ii) - 500
- Management fee income - EEERA (i) = (224)
Related companies BAE QT
— Commission fee for issue - BTN REENEEER
corporate bonds @), (i) 2,500 -
— Sales of seafood - BEHE (i), (i) - (1,323)
— Interest expenses on loans -BEZRBRX ), (i) 93,705 2,641
— Administrative expenses - 1TERAX (i), (ii) 7,156 34,367
— Selling expenses - HERX i), (i) 4,046 4,159
— Management fee income - BEBWA (i), (i) (240) -
Director B2=E
— Interest expenses on corporate - REMEEFIEHAE
bond (i) 4,883 2,961
Notes: s

0] A director, Mr. JH Yao, has significant influence over the related

parties.

(ii) The transactions were entered into at the terms mutually agreed
with the related party in the ordinary course of the Group’s

business.

) EESEBELHBENEEARY

2

(i) FZEXRZDRAEERTERBRE
R 4% SR 4 7 AR B 10 TE A IR RET

VAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B ISR AR B E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —F - —# +—-H=+—HIFFZE

44. Related party transactions (Continued)

(0)

44, BEFR S #)

The Group had the following balances with its related parties b) FRN - NEBEEEBEESHEFUNTE
during the year: £
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BaE FE T FHET
Ultimate holding company BRAER AT
— Interest payables (note 32) - FERTFILE (FEE32) (ii) = (14,25%)
- Loans (note 31) - B (fF5E31) (ii) = (320,745)
Fellow subsidiaries ERKMEAR
— Interest payables (note 32) - FETFIB (FIEE32) (ii) - (10,334)
— Other payables (note 32) — H e FRIE (M7 32) (i) - (30,753)
— Loans (note 31) - B3R (K3E31) (i - (883,000)
Related companies BAE QA
— Other receivables (note 29) - H e gk aE (fEE 29) @), (i) 498 558
— Interest payables (note 32) - FERFE (FIES2) (i), (i (33,857) =
— Other payables (note 32) - Bt et 5om (fiEr 32) (i), (i) (5,271) (83,312)
- Loans (note 31) - B (MF5E31) (i), (ii) (1,201,940) (220,000)
Director =S
— Corporate bonds subscribed - REHATIES = (112,000)
— Loans (note 31) - B (fzES1) (i (49,144) -
Notes: MIsE -
() A director, Mr. JH Yao, has significant influence over the related 0] ERkEBLEYRESEEAY
parties. L
(i) The transactions were entered into at the terms mutually agreed (i) ZERGIRAEEB B EBBIZ

with the related party in the ordinary course of the Group’s

business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —E ——F+ - HA=+—HI FEF

44. Related party transactions (Continued)

(@)

Key management personnel comprises the directors and other
member of the Company. The remuneration of directors and
other member of the Company during the year was as follows:

44, BEHR S &)

©

IREBEABBRARREEREM
KB - RRRIERREMKBNAE
EzBEemT

2021 2020

—BE-—F T T

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAT

Fees e 1,700 1,800

Salaries and allowances 4 NoEaL 2,471 2,231

Discretionary bonus BIBTEAT 307 462
Employer’s contribution to retirement B RV FFT SR

benefit scheme 107 66

4,585 4,559

45. Events after reporting period

(@)

On 11 March 2022, the Company proposed to implement the
capital reorganisation which will involve (i) share consolidation,
(ii) capital reduction and (iii) share sub-division (the “Capital
Reorganisation.

(i) Share consolidation
Every fifty (50) issued and unissued ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company will be
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of par value
HK$2.50 each in the share capital of the Company (the
“Share Consolidation”).

(i) Capital reduction

Following the Share Consolidation becoming effective,
the Capital Reduction be implemented, pursuant to
which, (a) any fractional Consolidated Share in the issued
share capital of the Company arising from the Share
Consolidation shall be cancelled; and (b) the issued share
capital of the Company will be reduced by cancelling
the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$2.45 on each of
the then issued Consolidated Shares such that the par
value of each issued Consolidated Share will be reduced
from HK$2.50 to HK$0.05. The credit arising from
the Capital Reduction in the amount of approximately
HK$267,546,115 will be applied to offset against the
balance of the accumulated losses of the Company up to
the effective date of the Capital Reduction.

45. HEPREBE

(@)

RZEBEZ=—F=A+—0 ARQRE
HERRAEA  ABFRORNDE
BF ~ (i) BANEIRL R (i) ARt #748 (T At
E DD

0 RirE
AR B EAHF R (50) Bz
FREELOEBTLZEETR
RETEBRAHA/ARAK
AR — (1) B E{E 2.50 8 7T
Zathn (B astl) -

2 N1y
ZPERR D & BHAEBIE - IR
WS TEMR EI - @RH
AHRARREEITIRAFRE
EZEMEREFRDE T
8 b)) ARRBBITRAE
BETHAEBRAN (RERERE
EETAMHRMFH2.458 T
AR TLABR - S EKRE %%
TEMRGN 2 EEFH2.50%8
TCHIRZ 0.0578 7T o BRAEIR,
BT = A 2 #E BR #9267,546,115
BB EREAAREER
NEDRAER A Bz Rt B4
ﬁfjé\ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F ——F+_-A=+—HI FE

45. Events after reporting period (Continued)

(@) Continued)

(i) Share Sub-division

Immediately following the Capital Reduction becoming
effective, each of the authorised but unissued Consolidated
Shares of par value HK$2.50 each will be sub-divided into
fifty (50) New Shares of par value HK$0.05 each. The New
Shares will rank pari passu in all respects with each other
in accordance with the memorandum and the articles of
association of the Company.

The completion of the Capital Reorganisation is conditional
upon, among other things, the Shareholders approval for the
relevant special and ordinary resolutions in respect of the Capital
Reorganisation in the extraordinary general meeting to be held on
20 April 2022. For the details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 11 March 2022 and the circular of the
Company dated 30 March 2022.
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45, REHEREE @)

(@)

(&)

(i) RIGIA
ZHERAERERE - 5K
FREE2508 T2 EEER
BITAMHRGOES AR T (50)
f% & I% E1E0.057 T 2 1%
Mo MERAARCHBERRXR
M RERMAE FRMDELZ
RIS AEFTA A E = A REHAT o

BAEEBEF(HPBE) RREH
R-B-—FNA - +HRETHRE
FRIAE LR R AN EAMNIER
BRI REBRZERE - HHREER -3
BR2EARNRBRATE =
AT+—RAZAERARGIHBA=ZE
T F=A=tHZBK-



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

REY=

/=3I

Equity Approximate
attributable to  gross floor area Estimated date of
Location the Group  (square meters) Type Lease expiry Progress in development completion
TEEES  BREREER

HE BlRER (Frx) EH ERNRED  IERE fhater B A
Shantou Chaoshang Financial Centre 48.28% 48,516 Complex" 2057 Superstructure under way December 2024
Junction between Haibi Road East and

Zhucheng Road North, Zhugang New City,

Longhu District, Shantou
BT A= GAmE LETRERD 024E12R
TR S ER R

S p
Shantou Taisheng Science and Innovation Park 85.00% 7,483 Commercial 2067 In service Completed
Baoneng Times Bay, Junction between Jinwan (Bay Culture

Second West Street and Shangang Road, Centre)

East New Habour City, Longhu District,

Shantou
MEREREIR A% ERAER =5z
TR R s EE (EExLAD)

RUBERARERERE
Shantou Taisheng Science and Innovation Park 85.00% 273,484 Complex' 2057 Phase: Completed; January 2024

(Phase 1,2) Phase 2: Groundwork
Baoneng Times Bay, Junction between Jinwan

Second West Street and Shangang Road,

East New Habour City, Longhu District,

Shantou
ISEREREE (— —H4) GRmE “B:EEm: 204515
TR R BRI EE 4 ZEETR

RIBERAREERE
Shantou Baoneng City Garden (Phase 3) 46.46% 47912 Complex' 2084 Superstructure under way August 2022
South City Street, Chaoyang District, Shantou
SRR (ZH) FAmE FETRERR 02%8F
ST s R RAE
Shantou Baoneng City Garden (Phase 3) 46.46% 2,497 Kindergarten 2084 Superstructure under way April 2023
South City Street, Chaoyang District, Shantou
SRR (ZH) iR FETREAR 02354

BT AR EEE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

Equity Approximate

attributableto  gross floor area Estimated date of
Location the Group  (square meters) Type Lease expiry Progress in development completion
rREES  BNEREER

e ERER (F5%) EAl LRNRED IREE fEEt TR A
Hunan Jinxiang International Star City 43.35% 13,994 Commercial 2063 In senvice Completed
Chaohui Road, Yuhua District,

Changsha, Hunan
HEsAEREN [ BARA B
HERPTREERER
Shenyang Waterfront City 85% 2,186 Residential 2082 In senvice Completed
No. 305/307, Xijiang North Street,

Yuhong District, Shenyang, Liaoning
BEKER frx BARA B
BELEBTRRER T 305/3075
Shenyang Waterfront City 85% 12,305 Commercial 2062 In senvice Completed
No. 299/301, Xijiang North Street, (Shops)

Yuhong District, Shenyang, Liaoning
BEKER % (55) BARA BT
BELEBTNRER T4 209/301 %
Hefei Time Original Garden 85% 1,943 Commercial 2081 In service Completed
No. 82, Baxia Road, Hefei Economic and

Technological Development Area
aEEXRELE [ BARA B
aETERRETHR62%
Hefei Lingxiang Garden 85% 6,063 Commercial 2049 In service Completed
No. 449, Huangshan Road, (Shops)

Shushan District, Hefei
AR % (%5) BARA BT
AERELEZILE 495
Shenzhen Ocean Towers 100.00% 177 Residential 2074 In senvice Completed
20A, 20H, Tower 5, District A, Phase 3,

Ocean Towers, Seaworld,

Nanshan District, Shenzhen
MIEELE frx BARA B

AIMEUES Lt REETEIS
AE51R20A - 20H
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE BFEHEDE
Equity Approximate
attributableto  gross floor area Estimated date of
Location the Group  (square meters) Type Lease expiry Progress in development completion
rEEES  BREREER

e ERER (Fhx) EAl ERNRED  IBRE it B A
Changchun Baoneng Centre (Office) 59.86% 183,877 Complex' 2057 Superstructure under way December 2024
Jiefang Avenue North, Fengshun Street West,

Chaoyang District, Changchun
REEEPL(RLE) FamE LETRERD 20245127
RESGRBIABIL - ZIRENE
Weinan Baoneng Prosperity Mansion 51.00% 337,488 Residential 2088 Phase 1: Completed; December 2022

(Phase 1,2) Phase 2: Superstructure under way
Southeast Point, Crossroads of Shuangwang

Avenve (National Highway 310) and Weiging

Road, Linwei District, Weinan
EREREN (- —H) frz —H B 202512
EENRERETAE(310HE) ZH: LETRENY

HEFRTFRAA
Yunfu Baoneng Yuelan Mountain (Phase 1-3) 85.00% 211,245 Residential 2084 Phase 1: Completed; December 2025
No. 1, Zjing Road, Duyang Town, Phase 2, 3: Not yet commenced

Yunan District, Yunfu
SEENRL(—22H) frz —#: BRI 20055128
EEMERRAGELAR 1% ZOZE AT
Shantou Chaoshang Financial Centre 48.28% 173,466 Complex 2057 Superstructure under way December 2024
Junction between Haibi Road East and

Zhucheng Road North, Zhugang New City,

Longhu District, Shantou
Il A FaEE LETRERD 2045127
AR 2R R

HRABIARRE
Shantou Taisheng Science and Innovation Park 85.00% 398,985 Complex’ 2057 Phase 1: Completed; January 2024

(Phase 1, 3) Phase 3: Superstructure under way
Baoneng Times Bay, Junction between

Jinwan Second West Street and

Shangang Road, East New Habour City,

Longhu District, Shantou
WEREREE (- =) FABEN —8: B 024517

IEE Y= et i )
IEBR AR E LR

=H: FETREA
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

Equity
attributable to
the Group
REEER
e ERESR

Location

Approximate
gross floor area
(square meters)
BOUREER

(F5X)

Type

g3l

Lease expiry

RENREH

Progress in development

IEEE

Estimated date of
completion

fhat T B

Shantou Baoneng City Garden (Phase 1-3), 46.46%
South City Street, Chaoyang District,
Shantou

s MR (-Z=H)

AT AR EEE

Shantou Baoneng City Garden (Phase 3), 46.46%
South City Street, Chaoyang District,

Shantou

WEESH TR (ZH)

WETHEESELE

Hunan Jinxiang Intemational Star City 43.35%

(Phase 1-4)

Chaohui Road and Northeast Point of

Jiayu Road, Yuhua District,

Changsha, Hunan
MRS 2R (—Z0E)
HRR)TREERRRAERERILA
Hunan Jinxiang Interational Star City 43.35%

(Phase 3, 4)
Chaohui Road, Yuhua District, Changsha, Hunan
HESAEREN (= - md)
HERITREAER
Changsha Baoneng Hall 43.35%
Intersection of Chaohui Road and Jiayu Road,

Yuhua District, Changsha, Hunan

2
ROBEAR

HRR)TREEFEREERRRER
Changsha Mellian Plaza 43.35%
Intersection of Chaohui Road and Jiayu Road,

Yuhua District, Changsha, Hunan
ROFHES
MERITREEREENRER
Shenzhen Baoneng City Garden 85.00%
16A, Block J, Tower 4, Baoneng City Garden,

Liuxian Avenue North, Nanshan District,

Shenzhen

“W%‘ﬁ&

ﬂ\\mﬁm TUJKiEiHEU%E
4IFJE16A

BIIEE

247,091

21,917

34,428

4,344

120,451

57,750
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Residential

[

Complex?

FaBRN

ComplexA

T

Commercial

[k

Residential

[z

Residential

[

Residential

2084

2084

2053

2053

2053

2053

2082

Phase 1, 2: Completed and up for sale;

Phase 3: Superstructure under way

— B RIRE:
B PETRER

Superstructure under way

LETRERD

Completed and up for sale

RIfE

Completed and up for sale

RIfE

Superstructure under way

LETRED

Under planning

it e

Completed and up for sale

TIfE

April 2023

02354

April 2023

02354

Completed

B 5k

Completed

25k

September 2022

2022594

June 2025

202656

Completed

Bk
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